
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


Action: 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-64-2021 


 
Date Introduced:   May 11, 2021 


 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 


the following applicants: 


 


Name      Place of Business 


  Miyah Carbajal    Tailgaters  


  Jacob Eden     Tailgaters  


  Carissa Alt     Deaks 


  Nicholas Pedersen    Kwik Trip #967 


  Abigail Cline      Kwik Trip #967 


  William Nicholson    Kwik Trip #967 


  Sohpia Izydor     Kwik Trip #967 


  Michael Fischer    Kwik Trip #967 


  Tessa Pickett     Kwik Trip #967 


  Robert Field     Kwik Trip #739 


  Dana Ertl     American Legion 


  Robert York     America Legion 


  David Hye     Nevermind Bar 


  Isaac Eugster     Nauti Norske  


  Heidi Swenor     Aldi  


  Stephen Garbe     BP  


   


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 


Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 


applicants. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 







 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 








QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 


RESOLUTION NO. R-65-2021 
 


RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND 


ESTABLISHING PARAMETERS FOR THE SALE OF NOT TO 


EXCEED $2,350,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY 


NOTES, SERIES 2021A 


 


WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that it is necessary, 


desirable and in the best interest of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City") 


to raise funds for public purposes, including paying the cost of acquiring equipment, park 


improvements, street improvements, parking lot repairs, stormwater improvements, and other 


capital projects (collectively, the "Project");  


 


WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that the Project is within 


the City's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in 


Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes;  


 


WHEREAS, the City is authorized by the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin 


Statutes, to borrow money and issue general obligation promissory notes for such public 


purposes;  


 


WHEREAS, it is the finding of the Common Council that it is in the best interest of the 


City to direct its financial advisor, Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers"), to take the steps 


necessary for the City to offer and sell the general obligation promissory notes (the "Notes") at 


public sale and to obtain bids for the purchase of the Notes; and  


WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the sale of the Notes in a timely manner, the Common 


Council hereby finds and determines that it is necessary, desirable and in the best interest of the 


City to delegate to the Mayor or Director of Finance/Comptroller (each an "Authorized Officer") 


the authority to accept on behalf of the City the bid for the Notes that results in the lowest true 


interest cost for the Notes (the "Proposal") and meets the terms and conditions provided for in 


this Resolution by executing a certificate in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A 


and incorporated herein by reference (the "Approving Certificate"). 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that: 


 


Section 1.  Authorization and Sale of the Notes; Parameters.  For the purpose of paying 


costs of the Project, the City is authorized to borrow pursuant to Section 67.12(12) Wisconsin 


Statutes, the principal sum of not to exceed TWO MILLION THREE HUNDRED FIFTY 


THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,350,000) upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in 


this Resolution.  Subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Section 17 of this 


Resolution, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to make, 


execute, issue and sell to the financial institution that submitted the Proposal (the "Purchaser") 


for, on behalf of and in the name of the City, Notes aggregating the principal amount of not to 


exceed TWO MILLION THREE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,350,000).  


The purchase price to be paid to the City for the Notes shall not be less than 99.0% nor more 


than 104.00% of the principal amount of the Notes. 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 -2- 


 


 


 Section 2.  Terms of the Notes.  The Notes shall be designated "General Obligation 


Promissory Notes, Series 2021A"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of up to 


$2,350,000; shall be dated as of their date of issuance; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or 


any integral multiple thereof; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and mature or be subject to 


mandatory redemption on the dates and in the principal amounts set forth below, provided that 


the principal amount of each maturity or mandatory redemption amount may be increased or 


decreased by up to $50,000 per maturity or mandatory redemption amount and that the aggregate 


principal amount of the Notes shall not exceed $2,350,000.  The schedule below assumes the 


Notes are issued in the aggregate principal amount of $2,350,000. 
 


Date Principal Amount 


05-01-2022 $370,000 


05-01-2023 170,000 


05-01-2024 100,000 


05-01-2025 115,000 


05-01-2026 215,000 


05-01-2027 215,000 


05-01-2028 265,000 


05-01-2029 290,000 


05-01-2030 290,000 


05-01-2031 320,000 


 


Interest shall be payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year 


commencing on May 1, 2022.  The true interest cost on the Notes (computed taking the 


Purchaser's compensation into account) will not exceed 2.50%.  Interest shall be computed upon 


the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of 


the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 


 


Section 3.  Redemption Provisions.  The Notes shall not be subject to optional 


redemption or shall be callable as set forth on the Approving Certificate.  If the Proposal 


specifies that certain of the Notes are subject to mandatory redemption, the terms of such 


mandatory redemption shall be set forth on an attachment to the Approving Certificate labeled as 


Exhibit MRP.  Upon the optional redemption of any of the Notes subject to mandatory 


redemption, the principal amount of such Notes so redeemed shall be credited against the 


mandatory redemption payments established in the Approving Certificate in such manner as the 


City shall direct. 


Section 4.  Form of the Notes.  The Notes shall be issued in registered form and shall be 


executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated 


herein by this reference. 


Section 5.  Tax Provisions. 


(A)  Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy.  For the purpose of paying the 


principal of and interest on the Notes as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and 


resources of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there is hereby levied upon all of the 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 -3- 


 


taxable property of the City a direct annual irrepealable tax in the years 2021 through 2030 for 


the payments due in the years 2022 through 2031 in the amounts as are sufficient to meet the 


principal and interest payments when due. 


(B)  Tax Collection.  So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the 


Notes remains unpaid, the City shall be and continue without power to repeal such levy or 


obstruct the collection of said tax until all such payments have been made or provided for.  After 


the issuance of the Notes, said tax shall be, from year to year, carried onto the tax roll of the City 


and collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as other 


taxes of the City for said years are collected, except that the amount of tax carried onto the tax 


roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund 


Account created below. 


(C)  Additional Funds.  If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds 


from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on said Notes when due, 


the requisite amounts shall be paid from other funds of the City then available, which sums shall 


be replaced upon the collection of the taxes herein levied. 


 


Section 6.  Segregated Debt Service Fund Account. 


 


(A)  Creation and Deposits.  There be and there hereby is established in the 


treasury of the City, if one has not already been created, a debt service fund, separate and distinct 


from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 


accounting principles.  Debt service or sinking funds established for obligations previously 


issued by the City may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service 


fund. 


 


Within the debt service fund, there hereby is established a separate and distinct account 


designated as the "Debt Service Fund Account for General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 


2021A" (the "Debt Service Fund Account") and such account shall be maintained until the 


indebtedness evidenced by the Notes is fully paid or otherwise extinguished.  There shall be 


deposited into the Debt Service Fund Account (i) all accrued interest received by the City at the 


time of delivery of and payment for the Notes; (ii) any premium which may be received by the 


City above the par value of the Notes and accrued interest thereon; (iii) all money raised by the 


taxes herein levied and any amounts appropriated for the specific purpose of meeting principal of 


and interest on the Notes when due; (iv) such other sums as may be necessary at any time to pay 


principal of and interest on the Notes when due; (v) surplus monies in the Borrowed Money 


Fund as specified below; and (vi) such further deposits as may be required by Section 67.11, 


Wisconsin Statutes. 


 


(B)  Use and Investment.  No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service 


Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and 


interest on the Notes until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Notes 


canceled; provided (i) the funds to provide for each payment of principal of and interest on the 


Notes prior to the scheduled receipt of taxes from the next succeeding tax collection may be 


invested in direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in time to make such 


payments when they are due or in other investments permitted by law; and (ii) any funds over 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 -4- 


 


and above the amount of such principal and interest payments on the Notes may be used to 


reduce the next succeeding tax levy, or may, at the option of the City, be invested by purchasing 


the Notes as permitted by and subject to Section 67.11(2)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, or in permitted 


municipal investments under the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Permitted 


Investments"), which investments shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service Fund Account.  


Any investment of the Debt Service Fund Account shall at all times conform with the provisions 


of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any applicable Treasury 


Regulations (the "Regulations"). 


 


(C)  Remaining Monies.  When all of the Notes have been paid in full and 


canceled, and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service 


Fund Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the City, unless the 


Common Council directs otherwise. 


 


Section 7.  Proceeds of the Notes; Segregated Borrowed Money Fund.  The proceeds of 


the Notes (the "Note Proceeds") (other than any premium and accrued interest which must be 


paid at the time of the delivery of the Notes into the Debt Service Fund Account created above) 


shall be deposited into a special fund (the "Borrowed Money Fund") separate and distinct from 


all other funds of the City and disbursed solely for the purpose or purposes for which borrowed.  


Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund may be temporarily invested in Permitted Investments.  


Any monies, including any income from Permitted Investments, remaining in the Borrowed 


Money Fund after the purpose or purposes for which the Notes have been issued have been 


accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are not needed and which obviously thereafter 


cannot be needed for such purpose(s) shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund Account. 


Section 8.  No Arbitrage.  All investments made pursuant to this Resolution shall be 


Permitted Investments, but no such investment shall be made in such a manner as would cause 


the Notes to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or the 


Regulations and an officer of the City, charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall 


certify as to facts, estimates, circumstances and reasonable expectations in existence on the date 


of delivery of the Notes to the Purchaser which will permit the conclusion that the Notes are not 


"arbitrage bonds," within the meaning of the Code or Regulations. 


Section 9.  Compliance with Federal Tax Laws.  (a)  The City represents and covenants 


that the projects financed by the Notes and the ownership, management and use of the projects 


will not cause the Notes to be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the 


Code.  The City further covenants that it shall comply with the provisions of the Code to the 


extent necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Notes including, if 


applicable, the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code.  The City further covenants 


that it will not take any action, omit to take any action or permit the taking or omission of any 


action within its control (including, without limitation, making or permitting any use of the 


proceeds of the Notes) if taking, permitting or omitting to take such action would cause any of 


the Notes to be an arbitrage bond or a private activity bond within the meaning of the Code or 


would otherwise cause interest on the Notes to be included in the gross income of the recipients 


thereof for federal income tax purposes.  The City Clerk or other officer of the City charged with 


the responsibility of issuing the Notes shall provide an appropriate certificate of the City 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 -5- 


 


certifying that the City can and covenanting that it will comply with the provisions of the Code 


and Regulations. 


 


(b) The City also covenants to use its best efforts to meet the requirements and 


restrictions of any different or additional federal legislation which may be made applicable to the 


Notes provided that in meeting such requirements the City will do so only to the extent 


consistent with the proceedings authorizing the Notes and the laws of the State of Wisconsin and 


to the extent that there is a reasonable period of time in which to comply. 


 


Section 10.  Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The Notes are hereby 


designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265 of the Code, 


relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax 


purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations. 


Section 11.  Execution of the Notes; Closing; Professional Services.  The Notes shall be 


issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of 


the Mayor and City Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), sealed 


with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof, and delivered to the Purchaser 


upon payment to the City of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of 


delivery (the "Closing").  The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the Notes 


may be imprinted on the Notes in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the City 


has contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Notes, at least one of the signatures 


appearing on each Note shall be a manual signature.  In the event that either of the officers 


whose signatures appear on the Notes shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such 


signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they 


had remained in office until the Closing.  The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and 


directed to do all acts and execute and deliver the Notes and all such documents, certificates and 


acknowledgements as may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing.  The City 


hereby authorizes the officers and agents of the City to enter into, on its behalf, agreements and 


contracts in conjunction with the Notes, including but not limited to agreements and contracts for 


legal, trust, fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate calculation services.  


Any such contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the Notes is hereby 


ratified and approved in all respects. 


Section 12.  Payment of the Notes; Fiscal Agent.  The principal of and interest on the 


Notes shall be paid by Associated Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin, 


which is hereby appointed as the City's registrar and fiscal agent pursuant to the provisions of 


Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes (the "Fiscal Agent").  The City hereby authorizes the 


Mayor and City Clerk or other appropriate officers of the City to enter a Fiscal Agency 


Agreement between the City and the Fiscal Agent.  Such contract may provide, among other 


things, for the performance by the Fiscal Agent of the functions listed in Wis. Stats. Sec. 


67.10(2)(a) to (j), where applicable, with respect to the Notes. 


 


Section 13.  Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Notes.  The City shall cause books 


for the registration and for the transfer of the Notes to be kept by the Fiscal Agent.  The person in 


whose name any Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner 


thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Note shall be made 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 -6- 


 


only to the registered owner thereof.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy 


and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 


Any Note may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Note at 


the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment 


duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon such 


transfer, the Mayor and City Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee or 


transferees a new Note or Notes of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and the 


Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book.  No registration 


shall be made to bearer.  The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Note surrendered for transfer. 


The City shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 


authorized to execute any new Note or Notes necessary to effect any such transfer. 


Section 14.  Record Date.  The 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each 


interest payment date shall be the record date for the Notes (the "Record Date").  Payment of 


interest on the Notes on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the 


Notes as they appear on the registration book of the City at the close of business on the Record 


Date. 


 


Section 15.  Utilization of The Depository Trust Company Book-Entry-Only System.  In 


order to make the Notes eligible for the services provided by The Depository Trust Company, 


New York, New York ("DTC"), the City agrees to the applicable provisions set forth in the 


Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations, which the City Clerk or other authorized representative 


of the City is authorized and directed to execute and deliver to DTC on behalf of the City to the 


extent an effective Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations is not presently on file in the City 


Clerk's office. 


 


Section 16.  Payment of Issuance Expenses.  The City authorizes the Purchaser to 


forward the amount of the proceeds of the Notes allocable to the payment of issuance expenses 


to Old National Bank at Closing for further distribution as directed by the City's financial 


advisor, Ehlers & Associates, Inc. 


 


 Section 17.  Conditions on Issuance and Sale of the Notes.  The issuance of the Notes and 


the sale of the Notes to the Purchaser are subject to approval by the Authorized Officer of the 


principal amount, definitive maturities, redemption provisions, interest rates and purchase price 


for the Notes, which approval shall be evidenced by execution by the Authorized Officer of the 


Approving Certificate. 


 


The Notes shall not be issued, sold or delivered until this condition is satisfied.  Upon 


satisfaction of this condition, the Authorized Officer is authorized to execute a Proposal with the 


Purchaser providing for the sale of the Notes to the Purchaser. 


 


Section 18.  Official Statement.  The Common Council hereby directs the Authorized 


Officer to approve the Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Notes and deem the 


Preliminary Official Statement as "final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 


promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 -7- 


 


Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule").  All actions taken by the Authorized Officer or other officers 


of the City in connection with the preparation of such Preliminary Official Statement and any 


addenda to it or final Official Statement are hereby ratified and approved.  In connection with the 


Closing, the appropriate City official shall certify the Preliminary Official Statement and any 


addenda or final Official Statement.  The City Clerk shall cause copies of the Preliminary 


Official Statement and any addenda or final Official Statement to be distributed to the Purchaser. 


 


Section 19.  Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure.  The City hereby covenants 


and agrees, for the benefit of the owners of the Notes, to enter into a written undertaking (the 


"Undertaking") if required by the Rule to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial 


information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events in 


accordance with the Rule.  The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the owners of the Notes or 


by the Purchaser on behalf of such owners (provided that the rights of the owners and the 


Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific performance of 


the obligations thereunder and any failure by the City to comply with the provisions of the 


Undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Notes). 


 


To the extent required under the Rule, the Mayor and City Clerk, or other officer of the 


City charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall provide a Continuing Disclosure 


Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and terms of the 


City's Undertaking. 


 


Section 20.  Record Book.  The City Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of 


proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct 


statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the 


Notes in the Record Book. 


 


Section 21.  Bond Insurance.  If the Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond 


insurance with respect to the Notes, the officers of the City are authorized to take all actions 


necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance.  The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to 


agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and which are 


acceptable to the Mayor and City Clerk including provisions regarding restrictions on investment 


of Note proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal bond insurance policy, the rights 


of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Notes by the bond insurer and 


notices to be given to the bond insurer.  In addition, any reference required by the bond insurer to 


the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of Note provided herein. 


  







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 -8- 


 


Section 22.  Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date.  All prior resolutions, 


rules or other actions of the Common Council or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 


hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict.  In the 


event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, 


such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof.  The foregoing shall take 


effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law. 


 


Adopted, approved and recorded May 11, 2021. 


 


 


 


_____________________________ 


Tim B. Swadley 


Mayor 


ATTEST: 


____________________________ 


Holly Licht 


City Clerk 


 (SEAL) 


 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 


EXHIBIT A 


 


Approving Certificate 


 


CERTIFICATE APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 


AND DETAILS OF  


GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTES, SERIES 2021A 


 


The undersigned [Mayor] [Director of Finance/Comptroller] of the City of Stoughton, 


Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City") hereby certifies that: 


 


1. Resolution.  On May 11, 2021, the Common Council of the City adopted a 


resolution (the "Resolution") authorizing the issuance and establishing parameters for the sale of 


not to exceed $2,350,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2021A of the City (the 


"Notes") after a public sale and delegating to me the authority to approve the Preliminary 


Official Statement, to approve the purchase proposal for the Notes, and to determine the details 


for the Notes within the parameters established by the Resolution. 


 


2. Preliminary Official Statement.  The Preliminary Official Statement with respect 


to the Notes is hereby approved and deemed "final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-


12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and 


Exchange Act of 1934.  


 


3. Proposal; Terms of the Notes.  On the date hereof, the Notes were offered for 


public sale and ____________________ (the "Purchaser") offered to purchase the Notes in 


accordance with the terms set forth in the Proposal attached hereto as Schedule I and 


incorporated herein by this reference (the "Proposal").  Ehlers & Associates, Inc. recommends 


the City accept the Proposal.  The Proposal meets the parameters and conditions established by 


the Resolution and is hereby approved and accepted. 


 


The Notes shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $__________, which is 


not more than the $2,350,000 approved by the Resolution, and shall mature on May 1 of each of 


the years and in the amounts and shall bear interest at the rates per annum as set forth in the 


Pricing Summary attached hereto as Schedule II and incorporated herein by this reference.  The 


amount of each annual principal or mandatory redemption payment due on the Notes is not more 


than $50,000 more or less per maturity or mandatory redemption amount than the schedule 


included in the Resolution as set forth below: 


 


Date Resolution Schedule Actual Amount 


05-01-2022 $370,000 $___________ 


05-01-2023 170,000 ___________ 


05-01-2024 100,000 ___________ 


05-01-2025 115,000 ___________ 


05-01-2026 215,000 ___________ 


05-01-2027 215,000 ___________ 


05-01-2028 265,000 ___________ 







 


 -10-  


Date Resolution Schedule Actual Amount 


05-01-2029 $290,000 $___________ 


05-01-2030 290,000 ___________ 


05-01-2031 320,000 ___________ 


 


The true interest cost on the Notes (computed taking the Purchaser's compensation into 


account) is _________%, which is not in excess of 2.50%, as required by the Resolution. 


 


4. Purchase Price of the Notes.  The Notes shall be sold to the Purchaser in 


accordance with the terms of the Proposal at a price of $_________, plus accrued interest, if any, 


to the date of delivery of the Notes which is not less than 99.0% nor more than 104.00% of the 


principal amount of the Notes as required by the Resolution. 


 


5. Redemption Provisions of the Notes.  The Notes maturing on May 1, ______are 


subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on May 1, _______ or on any 


date thereafter.  Said Notes are redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities 


selected by the City and within each maturity by lot, at the principal amount thereof, plus 


accrued interest to the date of redemption.  [The Proposal specifies that some of the Notes are 


subject to mandatory redemption as set forth on an attachment hereto as Exhibit MRP and 


incorporated herein by this reference.]   


 


6. Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy.  For the purpose of paying the principal of 


and interest on the Notes as the same respectively falls due, the full faith, credit and taxing 


powers of the City have been irrevocably pledged and there has been levied on all of the taxable 


property in the City, pursuant to the Resolution, a direct, annual irrepealable tax in an amount 


and at the times sufficient for said purpose.  Such tax shall be for the years and in the amounts 


set forth on the debt service schedule attached hereto as Schedule III.  


 


7. Approval.  This Certificate constitutes my approval of the Proposal, and the 


principal amount, definitive maturities, interest rates, purchase price and redemption provisions 


for the Notes and the direct annual irrepealable tax levy to repay the Notes, in satisfaction of the 


parameters set forth in the Resolution. 


  







 


 -11-  


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Certificate on __________ pursuant to 


the authority delegated to me in the Resolution. 


 


 


  


Tim B. Swadley 


Mayor 


 


OR 


 


  


Jamin Friedl 


Director of Finance/Comptroller 


 


 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 


SCHEDULE I TO APPROVING CERTIFICATE 


 


Proposal 


 


 


To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Certificate. 


 


 


(See Attached) 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 


SCHEDULE II TO APPROVING CERTIFICATE 


 


Pricing Summary 


 


 


To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Certificate. 


 


 


(See Attached)  


 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 


SCHEDULE III TO APPROVING CERTIFICATE 


 


Debt Service Schedule and Irrepealable Tax Levies 


 


 


To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Certificate. 


 


 


(See Attached) 


 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 


[EXHIBIT MRP 


 


Mandatory Redemption Provision 


The Notes due on May 1, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are subject to 


mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a redemption 


price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued 


interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are required to be made 


in amounts sufficient to redeem on May 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds 


specified below: 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20   


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20   


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20   


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20   


 Redemption 


       Date       Amount 


 ____ $______ 


 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity)] 


 







QB\68194550.1 


 


 


 


EXHIBIT B 


 


(Form of Note) 


 


 


UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 


REGISTERED STATE OF WISCONSIN DOLLARS 


DANE COUNTY 


NO. R-___ CITY OF STOUGHTON $_______ 


GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTE, SERIES 2021A 


 


MATURITY DATE: ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE: INTEREST RATE: CUSIP: 


    


May 1, _____ __________ ____% ______ 


 


DEPOSITORY OR ITS NOMINEE NAME:  CEDE & CO. 


PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _______________________ THOUSAND DOLLARS 


($__________) 


FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City"), 


hereby acknowledges itself to owe and promises to pay to the Depository or its Nominee Name 


(the "Depository") identified above (or to registered assigns), on the maturity date identified 


above, the principal amount identified above, and to pay interest thereon at the rate of interest per 


annum identified above, all subject to the provisions set forth herein regarding redemption prior 


to maturity.  Interest shall be payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year 


commencing on May 1, 2022 until the aforesaid principal amount is paid in full.  Both the 


principal of and interest on this Note are payable to the registered owner in lawful money of the 


United States.  Interest payable on any interest payment date shall be paid by wire transfer to the 


Depository in whose name this Note is registered on the Bond Register maintained by Associated 


Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin (the "Fiscal Agent") or any 


successor thereto at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding 


each interest payment date (the "Record Date").  This Note is payable as to principal upon 


presentation and surrender hereof at the office of the Fiscal Agent. 


For the prompt payment of this Note together with interest hereon as aforesaid and for the 


levy of taxes sufficient for that purpose, the full faith, credit and resources of the City are hereby 


irrevocably pledged. 


This Note is one of an issue of Notes aggregating the principal amount of $___________, 


all of which are of like tenor, except as to denomination, interest rate, maturity date and 


redemption provision, issued by the City pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.12(12), 


Wisconsin Statutes, for public purposes, including paying the cost of acquiring equipment, park 


improvements, street improvements, parking lot repairs, stormwater improvements, and other 


capital projects, as authorized by a resolution adopted on May 11, 2021 (the "Resolution" ) as 


supplemented by a Certificate Approving the Preliminary Official Statement and Details of 







 


 -2-  


General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2021A (the "Approving Certificate").  Said 


Resolution is recorded in the official minutes of the Common Council for said date. 


The Notes maturing on May 1, _____ are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the 


option of the City, on May 1, _____ or on any date thereafter.  Said Notes are redeemable as a 


whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the City, and within each maturity by 


lot (as selected by the Depository), at the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the 


date of redemption. 


 


[The Notes maturing in the years ________ are subject to mandatory redemption by lot 


as provided in the Approving Certificate, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to 


the date of redemption and without premium.] 


 


In the event the Notes are redeemed prior to maturity, as long as the Notes are in 


book-entry-only form, official notice of the redemption will be given by mailing a notice by 


registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic 


transmission or in any other manner required by the Depository, to the Depository not less than 


thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date.  If less than all of the 


Notes of a maturity are to be called for redemption, the Notes of such maturity to be redeemed 


will be selected by lot.  Such notice will include but not be limited to the following:   the 


designation and date of the Notes called for redemption, CUSIP number, and the date of 


redemption.  Any notice provided as described herein shall be conclusively presumed to have 


been duly given, whether or not the registered owner receives the notice.  The Notes shall cease 


to bear interest on the specified redemption date provided that federal or other immediately 


available funds sufficient for such redemption are on deposit at the office of the Depository at 


that time.  Upon such deposit of funds for redemption the Notes shall no longer be deemed to be 


outstanding. 


It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, things and acts required by law to 


exist or to be done prior to and in connection with the issuance of this Note have been done, have 


existed and have been performed in due form and time; that the aggregate indebtedness of the 


City, including this Note and others issued simultaneously herewith, does not exceed any 


limitation imposed by law or the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin; and that a direct annual 


irrepealable tax has been levied sufficient to pay this Note, together with the interest thereon, 


when and as payable. 


This Note is transferable only upon the books of the City kept for that purpose at the 


office of the Fiscal Agent, only in the event that the Depository does not continue to act as 


depository for the Notes, and the City appoints another depository, upon surrender of the Note to 


the Fiscal Agent, by the registered owner in person or his duly authorized attorney, together with 


a written instrument of transfer (which may be endorsed hereon) satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent 


duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney.  Thereupon a new fully 


registered Note in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the new depository in 


exchange therefor and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the City for any tax, 


fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such registration.  The 


Fiscal Agent shall not be obliged to make any transfer of the Notes (i) after the Record Date, (ii) 







 


 -3-  


during the fifteen (15) calendar days preceding the date of any publication of notice of any 


proposed redemption of the Notes, or (iii) with respect to any particular Note, after such Note has 


been called for redemption.  The Fiscal Agent and City may treat and consider the Depository in 


whose name this Note is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving 


payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due hereon 


and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Notes are issuable solely as negotiable, fully-


registered Notes without coupons in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 


This Note has been designated by the Common Council as a "qualified tax-exempt 


obligation" pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 


1986, as amended. 


This Note shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of 


Authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Fiscal Agent. 


No delay or omission on the part of the owner hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall 


impair such right or be considered as a waiver thereof or as a waiver of or acquiescence in any 


default hereunder. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, by its 


governing body, has caused this Note to be executed for it and in its name by the manual or 


facsimile signatures of its duly qualified Mayor and City Clerk; and to be sealed with its official 


or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue specified above. 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


 


By: ______________________________ 


Tim B. Swadley 


Mayor 


 


(SEAL) 


 


By: ______________________________ 


Holly Licht 


City Clerk 







 


 -4-  


Date of Authentication:  _______________, ______ 


 


CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 


 


 This Note is one of the Notes of the issue authorized by the within-mentioned Resolution 


of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 


ASSOCIATED TRUST COMPANY, 


NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 


GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN 


 


 


 


By____________________________ 


        Authorized Signatory 







 


 -5-  


ASSIGNMENT 


FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 


____________________________________________________________________________ 


(Name and Address of Assignee) 


____________________________________________________________________________ 


(Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee) 


the within Note and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 


______________________________________, Legal Representative, to transfer said Note on 


the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 


Dated:  _____________________ 


Signature Guaranteed: 


_____________________________   ________________________________ 


(e.g. Bank, Trust Company    (Depository or Nominee Name) 


or Securities Firm) 


NOTICE:  This signature must correspond with the 


name of the Depository or Nominee Name as it 


appears upon the face of the within Note in every 


particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 


change whatever. 


____________________________ 


(Authorized Officer) 











 


 
 


  
 


 


 


 


 


  







 


 
 


  
 


 


 


 


  







 


 
 


  
 


 


 







 


 
 


  
 


  







 


 
 


  
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 
 
 







Financing Plan Issue Sizing
GO Notes


2021
Projects


Capital Projects - 10 Year 2,279,436
Capital Projects - 20 Year 0
Stormwater Utility 144,750
Funds available (150,000)


Project Needs 2,274,186


Issuance Expenses
Municipal Advisor 23,900
Bond Counsel 13,000
Rating 13,500
Paying Agent 850
Underwriter Fees 23,500


Total Funds Needed 2,348,936


Rate Months
Less Interest Earnings 0.06% 3              (341)


Rounding 1,405


Size of Issue 2,350,000


Page 6







Projected Impact of Proposed Projects


Less Abatements Impact on a


 $  100,000 of Value


Taxes Change


YEAR YEAR Prin (5/1) Rate Interest Total YEAR
2020 1,176,283,200 5.88% 5,239,393      (1,894,781)     3,344,613    2.84 2020                                           3,344,613    2.84 284.34      2020
2021 1,199,002,400 1.93% 4,452,731      (1,018,804)     3,433,927    2.86 2021                                                                                                                       3,433,927    89,314       2.86 286.40      2.06 2021
2022 1,246,132,248 3.93% 4,749,663      (1,524,692)     3,224,971    2.59 2022 370,000      0.70% 35,332     405,332     (17,184)        (45,000)   (62,184)        343,148       3,568,119    134,192     2.86 286.34      (0.06) 2022
2023 1,271,054,893 2.00% 4,539,863      (1,227,849)     3,312,014    2.61 2023 170,000      0.75% 23,793     193,793     (16,489)        (16,489)        177,304       3,489,317    (78,802)      2.75 274.52      (11.81) 2023
2024 1,296,475,991 2.00% 4,483,597      (1,062,204)     3,421,393    2.64 2024 100,000      0.80% 22,755     122,755     (16,373)        (16,373)        106,382       3,527,775    38,457       2.72 272.10      (2.42) 2024
2025 1,322,405,511 2.00% 4,420,409      (1,055,645)     3,364,764    2.54 2025 115,000      0.90% 21,838     136,838     (16,245)        (16,245)        120,593       3,485,357    (42,418)      2.64 263.56      (8.54) 2025
2026 1,348,853,621 2.00% 4,132,025      (946,390)        3,185,635    2.36 2026 215,000      1.00% 20,245     235,245     (16,103)        (16,103)        219,142       3,404,777    (80,580)      2.52 252.42      (11.14) 2026
2027 1,383,696,793 2.58% 3,696,121      (907,368)        2,788,753    2.02 2027 215,000      1.15% 17,934     232,934     (15,941)        (15,941)        216,993       3,005,746    (399,031)   2.17 217.23      (35.19) 2027
2028 1,411,370,729 2.00% 2,532,873      (766,945)        1,765,927    1.25 2028 265,000      1.25% 15,041     280,041     (15,761)        (15,761)        264,280       2,030,207    (975,538)   1.44 143.85      (73.38) 2028
2029 1,439,598,144 2.00% 2,159,929      (683,579)        1,476,350    1.03 2029 290,000      1.35% 11,428     301,428     (15,566)        (15,566)        285,862       1,762,211    (267,996)   1.22 122.41      (21.44) 2029
2030 1,468,390,107 2.00% 1,220,404      (243,229)        977,175       0.67 2030 290,000      1.50% 7,295       297,295     (15,353)        (15,353)        281,942       1,259,117    (503,094)   0.86 85.75         (36.66) 2030
2031 1,497,757,909 2.00% 991,879         (396,979)        594,900       0.40 2031 320,000      1.60% 2,560       322,560     (15,120)        (15,120)        307,440       902,340       (356,777)   0.60 60.25         (25.50) 2031
2032 1,527,713,067 2.00% 998,479         (397,829)        600,650       0.39 2032                                                                                                                       600,650       (301,690)   0.39 39.32         (20.93) 2032
2033 1,558,267,328 2.00% 998,741         (398,179)        600,563       0.39 2033                                                                                                                       600,563       (88)             0.39 38.54         (0.78) 2033
2034 1,589,432,675 2.00% 1,002,116      (397,816)        604,300       0.38 2034                                                                                                                       604,300       3,738         0.38 38.02         (0.52) 2034
2035 1,621,221,328 2.00% 669,529         (62,454)          607,075       0.37 2035                                                                                                                       607,075       2,775         0.37 37.45         (0.57) 2035
2036 1,653,645,755 2.00% 671,654         (62,454)          609,200       0.37 2036                                                                                                                       609,200       2,125         0.37 36.84         (0.61) 2036
2037 1,686,718,670 2.00% 610,675                                610,675       0.36 2037                                                                                                                       610,675       1,475         0.36 36.20         (0.63) 2037
2038 1,720,453,043 2.00% 611,125                                611,125       0.36 2038                                                                                                                       611,125       450            0.36 35.52         (0.68) 2038


TOTALS 48,181,204 (13,047,196) 35,134,008 TOTALS 2,350,000 178,220 2,528,220 (160,135) (45,000) (205,135) 2,323,085 37,457,093 TOTALS


NOTES Rates based on A1 3/2/21 sale + 0.25


Levy 
ChangeTotal 


Abatements


Existing Debt Payments Projected Debt Service


Equalized Value 
Projection


Total of All 
Obligations


Total 
Abatement 


Sources


Net Debt 
Service Levy


Debt 
Service 


Tax 
Rate


General Obligation Notes, 2021


Dated 6-23-21


$2,350,000 Funds on 
Hand


Debt 
Service 


Tax 
Rate


Net Debt 
Service Levy


Total 
Projected 


Debt Service 
Less 


Abatements


Change 
in Value Stormwater 


Utility


Page 7







Allocation of General Obligation Notes, 2021
Purpose
Amount
Dated
Payment Date


Year Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Interest Total Outstanding
2021 0.00% -                 -               -                    -                 -                   2,350,000     
2022 355,000        0.70% 33,148       388,148        15,000       0.70% 2,184       17,184       370,000        35,332       405,332        1,980,000     
2023 155,000        0.75% 22,304       177,304        15,000       0.75% 1,489       16,489       170,000        23,793       193,793        1,810,000     
2024 85,000          0.80% 21,383       106,383        15,000       0.80% 1,373       16,373       100,000        22,755       122,755        1,710,000     
2025 100,000        0.90% 20,593       120,593        15,000       0.90% 1,245       16,245       115,000        21,838       136,838        1,595,000     
2026 200,000        1.00% 19,143       219,143        15,000       1.00% 1,103       16,103       215,000        20,245       235,245        1,380,000     
2027 200,000        1.15% 16,993       216,993        15,000       1.15% 941          15,941       215,000        17,934       232,934        1,165,000     
2028 250,000        1.25% 14,280       264,280        15,000       1.25% 761          15,761       265,000        15,041       280,041        900,000        
2029 275,000        1.35% 10,861       285,861        15,000       1.35% 566          15,566       290,000        11,428       301,428        610,000        
2030 275,000        1.50% 6,943         281,943        15,000       1.50% 353          15,353       290,000        7,295         297,295        320,000        
2031 305,000        1.60% 2,440         307,440        15,000       1.60% 120          15,120       320,000        2,560         322,560        -                   


2,200,000$   168,085$   2,368,085$   150,000$   10,134$   160,134$   2,350,000$   178,220$   2,528,220$   


TOTAL 
$2,200,000


6/23/2021


Stormwater Utility
$150,000


6/23/2021


Levy - 10 Year


5/1 5/1


Page 8







Debt Limit Calculation


57.85% 54.99%
47.48% 40.72% 34.24%


27.92%
$0


$10,000


$20,000


$30,000


$40,000


$50,000


$60,000


$70,000


$80,000


Th
ou


sa
nd


s


Debt Capacity - 80% All In Policy


Debt Limit 80% Debt Limit Principal Outstanding


Page 9







3 YEAR TREND IN MUNICIPAL BOND INDICES


Source: The Bond Buyer


The Bond Buyer “20 Bond Index” (BBI) shows average yields on a group of municipal bonds that 
mature in 20 years and have an average rating equivalent to Moody’s Aa2 and S&P’s AA. 


Page 10







QB\68194550.1 
 


 


RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 


RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND 
ESTABLISHING PARAMETERS FOR THE SALE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $2,350,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY 


NOTES, SERIES 2021A 
 


WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that it is necessary, 
desirable and in the best interest of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City") 
to raise funds for public purposes, including paying the cost of acquiring equipment, park 
improvements, street improvements, parking lot repairs, stormwater improvements, and other 
capital projects (collectively, the "Project");  
 


WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that the Project is within 
the City's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in 
Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes;  
 


WHEREAS, the City is authorized by the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin 
Statutes, to borrow money and issue general obligation promissory notes for such public 
purposes;  
 


WHEREAS, it is the finding of the Common Council that it is in the best interest of the 
City to direct its financial advisor, Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers"), to take the steps 
necessary for the City to offer and sell the general obligation promissory notes (the "Notes") at 
public sale and to obtain bids for the purchase of the Notes; and  


WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the sale of the Notes in a timely manner, the Common 
Council hereby finds and determines that it is necessary, desirable and in the best interest of the 
City to delegate to the Mayor or Director of Finance/Comptroller (each an "Authorized Officer") 
the authority to accept on behalf of the City the bid for the Notes that results in the lowest true 
interest cost for the Notes (the "Proposal") and meets the terms and conditions provided for in 
this Resolution by executing a certificate in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A 
and incorporated herein by reference (the "Approving Certificate"). 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that: 
 
Section 1.  Authorization and Sale of the Notes; Parameters.  For the purpose of paying 


costs of the Project, the City is authorized to borrow pursuant to Section 67.12(12) Wisconsin 
Statutes, the principal sum of not to exceed TWO MILLION THREE HUNDRED FIFTY 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,350,000) upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in 
this Resolution.  Subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Section 17 of this 
Resolution, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to make, 
execute, issue and sell to the financial institution that submitted the Proposal (the "Purchaser") 
for, on behalf of and in the name of the City, Notes aggregating the principal amount of not to 
exceed TWO MILLION THREE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,350,000).  
The purchase price to be paid to the City for the Notes shall not be less than 99.0% nor more 
than 104.00% of the principal amount of the Notes. 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 -2- 
 


 
 Section 2.  Terms of the Notes.  The Notes shall be designated "General Obligation 
Promissory Notes, Series 2021A"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of up to 
$2,350,000; shall be dated as of their date of issuance; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or 
any integral multiple thereof; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and mature or be subject to 
mandatory redemption on the dates and in the principal amounts set forth below, provided that 
the principal amount of each maturity or mandatory redemption amount may be increased or 
decreased by up to $50,000 per maturity or mandatory redemption amount and that the aggregate 
principal amount of the Notes shall not exceed $2,350,000.  The schedule below assumes the 
Notes are issued in the aggregate principal amount of $2,350,000. 


 
Date Principal Amount 


05-01-2022 $370,000 
05-01-2023 170,000 
05-01-2024 100,000 
05-01-2025 115,000 
05-01-2026 215,000 
05-01-2027 215,000 
05-01-2028 265,000 
05-01-2029 290,000 
05-01-2030 290,000 
05-01-2031 320,000 


 
Interest shall be payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year 


commencing on May 1, 2022.  The true interest cost on the Notes (computed taking the 
Purchaser's compensation into account) will not exceed 2.50%.  Interest shall be computed upon 
the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of 
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 


Section 3.  Redemption Provisions.  The Notes shall not be subject to optional 
redemption or shall be callable as set forth on the Approving Certificate.  If the Proposal 
specifies that certain of the Notes are subject to mandatory redemption, the terms of such 
mandatory redemption shall be set forth on an attachment to the Approving Certificate labeled as 
Exhibit MRP.  Upon the optional redemption of any of the Notes subject to mandatory 
redemption, the principal amount of such Notes so redeemed shall be credited against the 
mandatory redemption payments established in the Approving Certificate in such manner as the 
City shall direct. 


Section 4.  Form of the Notes.  The Notes shall be issued in registered form and shall be 
executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 


Section 5.  Tax Provisions. 


(A)  Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy.  For the purpose of paying the 
principal of and interest on the Notes as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and 
resources of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there is hereby levied upon all of the 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 -3- 
 


taxable property of the City a direct annual irrepealable tax in the years 2021 through 2030 for 
the payments due in the years 2022 through 2031 in the amounts as are sufficient to meet the 
principal and interest payments when due. 


(B)  Tax Collection.  So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the 
Notes remains unpaid, the City shall be and continue without power to repeal such levy or 
obstruct the collection of said tax until all such payments have been made or provided for.  After 
the issuance of the Notes, said tax shall be, from year to year, carried onto the tax roll of the City 
and collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as other 
taxes of the City for said years are collected, except that the amount of tax carried onto the tax 
roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund 
Account created below. 


(C)  Additional Funds.  If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds 
from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on said Notes when due, 
the requisite amounts shall be paid from other funds of the City then available, which sums shall 
be replaced upon the collection of the taxes herein levied. 
 


Section 6.  Segregated Debt Service Fund Account. 
 


(A)  Creation and Deposits.  There be and there hereby is established in the 
treasury of the City, if one has not already been created, a debt service fund, separate and distinct 
from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles.  Debt service or sinking funds established for obligations previously 
issued by the City may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service 
fund. 
 


Within the debt service fund, there hereby is established a separate and distinct account 
designated as the "Debt Service Fund Account for General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 
2021A" (the "Debt Service Fund Account") and such account shall be maintained until the 
indebtedness evidenced by the Notes is fully paid or otherwise extinguished.  There shall be 
deposited into the Debt Service Fund Account (i) all accrued interest received by the City at the 
time of delivery of and payment for the Notes; (ii) any premium which may be received by the 
City above the par value of the Notes and accrued interest thereon; (iii) all money raised by the 
taxes herein levied and any amounts appropriated for the specific purpose of meeting principal of 
and interest on the Notes when due; (iv) such other sums as may be necessary at any time to pay 
principal of and interest on the Notes when due; (v) surplus monies in the Borrowed Money 
Fund as specified below; and (vi) such further deposits as may be required by Section 67.11, 
Wisconsin Statutes. 
 


(B)  Use and Investment.  No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service 
Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and 
interest on the Notes until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Notes 
canceled; provided (i) the funds to provide for each payment of principal of and interest on the 
Notes prior to the scheduled receipt of taxes from the next succeeding tax collection may be 
invested in direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in time to make such 
payments when they are due or in other investments permitted by law; and (ii) any funds over 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 -4- 
 


and above the amount of such principal and interest payments on the Notes may be used to 
reduce the next succeeding tax levy, or may, at the option of the City, be invested by purchasing 
the Notes as permitted by and subject to Section 67.11(2)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, or in permitted 
municipal investments under the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Permitted 
Investments"), which investments shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service Fund Account.  
Any investment of the Debt Service Fund Account shall at all times conform with the provisions 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any applicable Treasury 
Regulations (the "Regulations"). 
 


(C)  Remaining Monies.  When all of the Notes have been paid in full and 
canceled, and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service 
Fund Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the City, unless the 
Common Council directs otherwise. 
 


Section 7.  Proceeds of the Notes; Segregated Borrowed Money Fund.  The proceeds of 
the Notes (the "Note Proceeds") (other than any premium and accrued interest which must be 
paid at the time of the delivery of the Notes into the Debt Service Fund Account created above) 
shall be deposited into a special fund (the "Borrowed Money Fund") separate and distinct from 
all other funds of the City and disbursed solely for the purpose or purposes for which borrowed.  
Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund may be temporarily invested in Permitted Investments.  
Any monies, including any income from Permitted Investments, remaining in the Borrowed 
Money Fund after the purpose or purposes for which the Notes have been issued have been 
accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are not needed and which obviously thereafter 
cannot be needed for such purpose(s) shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund Account. 


Section 8.  No Arbitrage.  All investments made pursuant to this Resolution shall be 
Permitted Investments, but no such investment shall be made in such a manner as would cause 
the Notes to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or the 
Regulations and an officer of the City, charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall 
certify as to facts, estimates, circumstances and reasonable expectations in existence on the date 
of delivery of the Notes to the Purchaser which will permit the conclusion that the Notes are not 
"arbitrage bonds," within the meaning of the Code or Regulations. 


Section 9.  Compliance with Federal Tax Laws.  (a)  The City represents and covenants 
that the projects financed by the Notes and the ownership, management and use of the projects 
will not cause the Notes to be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the 
Code.  The City further covenants that it shall comply with the provisions of the Code to the 
extent necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Notes including, if 
applicable, the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code.  The City further covenants 
that it will not take any action, omit to take any action or permit the taking or omission of any 
action within its control (including, without limitation, making or permitting any use of the 
proceeds of the Notes) if taking, permitting or omitting to take such action would cause any of 
the Notes to be an arbitrage bond or a private activity bond within the meaning of the Code or 
would otherwise cause interest on the Notes to be included in the gross income of the recipients 
thereof for federal income tax purposes.  The City Clerk or other officer of the City charged with 
the responsibility of issuing the Notes shall provide an appropriate certificate of the City 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 -5- 
 


certifying that the City can and covenanting that it will comply with the provisions of the Code 
and Regulations. 
 


(b) The City also covenants to use its best efforts to meet the requirements and 
restrictions of any different or additional federal legislation which may be made applicable to the 
Notes provided that in meeting such requirements the City will do so only to the extent 
consistent with the proceedings authorizing the Notes and the laws of the State of Wisconsin and 
to the extent that there is a reasonable period of time in which to comply. 
 


Section 10.  Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The Notes are hereby 
designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265 of the Code, 
relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax 
purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations. 


Section 11.  Execution of the Notes; Closing; Professional Services.  The Notes shall be 
issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of 
the Mayor and City Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), sealed 
with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof, and delivered to the Purchaser 
upon payment to the City of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of 
delivery (the "Closing").  The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the Notes 
may be imprinted on the Notes in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the City 
has contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Notes, at least one of the signatures 
appearing on each Note shall be a manual signature.  In the event that either of the officers 
whose signatures appear on the Notes shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such 
signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they 
had remained in office until the Closing.  The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and 
directed to do all acts and execute and deliver the Notes and all such documents, certificates and 
acknowledgements as may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing.  The City 
hereby authorizes the officers and agents of the City to enter into, on its behalf, agreements and 
contracts in conjunction with the Notes, including but not limited to agreements and contracts for 
legal, trust, fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate calculation services.  
Any such contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the Notes is hereby 
ratified and approved in all respects. 


Section 12.  Payment of the Notes; Fiscal Agent.  The principal of and interest on the 
Notes shall be paid by Associated Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin, 
which is hereby appointed as the City's registrar and fiscal agent pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes (the "Fiscal Agent").  The City hereby authorizes the 
Mayor and City Clerk or other appropriate officers of the City to enter a Fiscal Agency 
Agreement between the City and the Fiscal Agent.  Such contract may provide, among other 
things, for the performance by the Fiscal Agent of the functions listed in Wis. Stats. Sec. 
67.10(2)(a) to (j), where applicable, with respect to the Notes. 
 


Section 13.  Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Notes.  The City shall cause books 
for the registration and for the transfer of the Notes to be kept by the Fiscal Agent.  The person in 
whose name any Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner 
thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Note shall be made 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 -6- 
 


only to the registered owner thereof.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy 
and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 


Any Note may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Note at 
the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment 
duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon such 
transfer, the Mayor and City Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee or 
transferees a new Note or Notes of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and the 
Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book.  No registration 
shall be made to bearer.  The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Note surrendered for transfer. 


The City shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
authorized to execute any new Note or Notes necessary to effect any such transfer. 


Section 14.  Record Date.  The 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each 
interest payment date shall be the record date for the Notes (the "Record Date").  Payment of 
interest on the Notes on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the 
Notes as they appear on the registration book of the City at the close of business on the Record 
Date. 


 
Section 15.  Utilization of The Depository Trust Company Book-Entry-Only System.  In 


order to make the Notes eligible for the services provided by The Depository Trust Company, 
New York, New York ("DTC"), the City agrees to the applicable provisions set forth in the 
Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations, which the City Clerk or other authorized representative 
of the City is authorized and directed to execute and deliver to DTC on behalf of the City to the 
extent an effective Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations is not presently on file in the City 
Clerk's office. 
 


Section 16.  Payment of Issuance Expenses.  The City authorizes the Purchaser to 
forward the amount of the proceeds of the Notes allocable to the payment of issuance expenses 
to Old National Bank at Closing for further distribution as directed by the City's financial 
advisor, Ehlers & Associates, Inc. 
 
 Section 17.  Conditions on Issuance and Sale of the Notes.  The issuance of the Notes and 
the sale of the Notes to the Purchaser are subject to approval by the Authorized Officer of the 
principal amount, definitive maturities, redemption provisions, interest rates and purchase price 
for the Notes, which approval shall be evidenced by execution by the Authorized Officer of the 
Approving Certificate. 


 
The Notes shall not be issued, sold or delivered until this condition is satisfied.  Upon 


satisfaction of this condition, the Authorized Officer is authorized to execute a Proposal with the 
Purchaser providing for the sale of the Notes to the Purchaser. 
 


Section 18.  Official Statement.  The Common Council hereby directs the Authorized 
Officer to approve the Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Notes and deem the 
Preliminary Official Statement as "final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 -7- 
 


Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule").  All actions taken by the Authorized Officer or other officers 
of the City in connection with the preparation of such Preliminary Official Statement and any 
addenda to it or final Official Statement are hereby ratified and approved.  In connection with the 
Closing, the appropriate City official shall certify the Preliminary Official Statement and any 
addenda or final Official Statement.  The City Clerk shall cause copies of the Preliminary 
Official Statement and any addenda or final Official Statement to be distributed to the Purchaser. 
 


Section 19.  Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure.  The City hereby covenants 
and agrees, for the benefit of the owners of the Notes, to enter into a written undertaking (the 
"Undertaking") if required by the Rule to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial 
information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events in 
accordance with the Rule.  The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the owners of the Notes or 
by the Purchaser on behalf of such owners (provided that the rights of the owners and the 
Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific performance of 
the obligations thereunder and any failure by the City to comply with the provisions of the 
Undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Notes). 


 
To the extent required under the Rule, the Mayor and City Clerk, or other officer of the 


City charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall provide a Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and terms of the 
City's Undertaking. 
 


Section 20.  Record Book.  The City Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of 
proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct 
statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the 
Notes in the Record Book. 


 
Section 21.  Bond Insurance.  If the Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond 


insurance with respect to the Notes, the officers of the City are authorized to take all actions 
necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance.  The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to 
agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and which are 
acceptable to the Mayor and City Clerk including provisions regarding restrictions on investment 
of Note proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal bond insurance policy, the rights 
of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Notes by the bond insurer and 
notices to be given to the bond insurer.  In addition, any reference required by the bond insurer to 
the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of Note provided herein. 
  







QB\68194550.1 
 


 -8- 
 


Section 22.  Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date.  All prior resolutions, 
rules or other actions of the Common Council or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 
hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict.  In the 
event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, 
such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof.  The foregoing shall take 
effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law. 


 
Adopted, approved and recorded May 11, 2021. 
 
 
 


_____________________________ 
Tim B. Swadley 
Mayor 


ATTEST: 


____________________________ 
Holly Licht 
City Clerk 
 (SEAL) 


 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 


EXHIBIT A 
 


Approving Certificate 
 


CERTIFICATE APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
AND DETAILS OF  


GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTES, SERIES 2021A 
 


The undersigned [Mayor] [Director of Finance/Comptroller] of the City of Stoughton, 
Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City") hereby certifies that: 


 
1. Resolution.  On May 11, 2021, the Common Council of the City adopted a 


resolution (the "Resolution") authorizing the issuance and establishing parameters for the sale of 
not to exceed $2,350,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2021A of the City (the 
"Notes") after a public sale and delegating to me the authority to approve the Preliminary 
Official Statement, to approve the purchase proposal for the Notes, and to determine the details 
for the Notes within the parameters established by the Resolution. 


 
2. Preliminary Official Statement.  The Preliminary Official Statement with respect 


to the Notes is hereby approved and deemed "final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-
12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and 
Exchange Act of 1934.  


 
3. Proposal; Terms of the Notes.  On the date hereof, the Notes were offered for 


public sale and ____________________ (the "Purchaser") offered to purchase the Notes in 
accordance with the terms set forth in the Proposal attached hereto as Schedule I and 
incorporated herein by this reference (the "Proposal").  Ehlers & Associates, Inc. recommends 
the City accept the Proposal.  The Proposal meets the parameters and conditions established by 
the Resolution and is hereby approved and accepted. 
 


The Notes shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $__________, which is 
not more than the $2,350,000 approved by the Resolution, and shall mature on May 1 of each of 
the years and in the amounts and shall bear interest at the rates per annum as set forth in the 
Pricing Summary attached hereto as Schedule II and incorporated herein by this reference.  The 
amount of each annual principal or mandatory redemption payment due on the Notes is not more 
than $50,000 more or less per maturity or mandatory redemption amount than the schedule 
included in the Resolution as set forth below: 


 
Date Resolution Schedule Actual Amount 


05-01-2022 $370,000 $___________ 
05-01-2023 170,000 ___________ 
05-01-2024 100,000 ___________ 
05-01-2025 115,000 ___________ 
05-01-2026 215,000 ___________ 
05-01-2027 215,000 ___________ 
05-01-2028 265,000 ___________ 







 -10-  


Date Resolution Schedule Actual Amount 
05-01-2029 $290,000 $___________ 
05-01-2030 290,000 ___________ 
05-01-2031 320,000 ___________ 


 
The true interest cost on the Notes (computed taking the Purchaser's compensation into 


account) is _________%, which is not in excess of 2.50%, as required by the Resolution. 
 


4. Purchase Price of the Notes.  The Notes shall be sold to the Purchaser in 
accordance with the terms of the Proposal at a price of $_________, plus accrued interest, if any, 
to the date of delivery of the Notes which is not less than 99.0% nor more than 104.00% of the 
principal amount of the Notes as required by the Resolution. 
 


5. Redemption Provisions of the Notes.  The Notes maturing on May 1, ______are 
subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on May 1, _______ or on any 
date thereafter.  Said Notes are redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities 
selected by the City and within each maturity by lot, at the principal amount thereof, plus 
accrued interest to the date of redemption.  [The Proposal specifies that some of the Notes are 
subject to mandatory redemption as set forth on an attachment hereto as Exhibit MRP and 
incorporated herein by this reference.]   


 
6. Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy.  For the purpose of paying the principal of 


and interest on the Notes as the same respectively falls due, the full faith, credit and taxing 
powers of the City have been irrevocably pledged and there has been levied on all of the taxable 
property in the City, pursuant to the Resolution, a direct, annual irrepealable tax in an amount 
and at the times sufficient for said purpose.  Such tax shall be for the years and in the amounts 
set forth on the debt service schedule attached hereto as Schedule III.  


 
7. Approval.  This Certificate constitutes my approval of the Proposal, and the 


principal amount, definitive maturities, interest rates, purchase price and redemption provisions 
for the Notes and the direct annual irrepealable tax levy to repay the Notes, in satisfaction of the 
parameters set forth in the Resolution. 
  







 -11-  


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Certificate on __________ pursuant to 
the authority delegated to me in the Resolution. 


 
 


  
Tim B. Swadley 
Mayor 
 
OR 


 
  
Jamin Friedl 
Director of Finance/Comptroller 


 
 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 


SCHEDULE I TO APPROVING CERTIFICATE 
 


Proposal 
 
 


To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Certificate. 
 
 


(See Attached) 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 


SCHEDULE II TO APPROVING CERTIFICATE 
 


Pricing Summary 
 


 
To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Certificate. 


 
 


(See Attached)  
 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 


SCHEDULE III TO APPROVING CERTIFICATE 
 


Debt Service Schedule and Irrepealable Tax Levies 
 
 


To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Certificate. 
 
 


(See Attached) 
 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 


 


[EXHIBIT MRP 
 


Mandatory Redemption Provision 


The Notes due on May 1, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are subject to 
mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a redemption 
price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued 
interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are required to be made 
in amounts sufficient to redeem on May 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds 
specified below: 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20   


 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20   


 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20   


 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 


For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20   


 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 


 ____   ______ (maturity)] 
 







QB\68194550.1 
 


 


 


EXHIBIT B 
 


(Form of Note) 
 
 


UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
REGISTERED STATE OF WISCONSIN DOLLARS 


DANE COUNTY 
NO. R-___ CITY OF STOUGHTON $_______ 


GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTE, SERIES 2021A 
 


MATURITY DATE: ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE: INTEREST RATE: CUSIP: 
    


May 1, _____ __________ ____% ______ 
 


DEPOSITORY OR ITS NOMINEE NAME:  CEDE & CO. 


PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _______________________ THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($__________) 


FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City"), 
hereby acknowledges itself to owe and promises to pay to the Depository or its Nominee Name 
(the "Depository") identified above (or to registered assigns), on the maturity date identified 
above, the principal amount identified above, and to pay interest thereon at the rate of interest per 
annum identified above, all subject to the provisions set forth herein regarding redemption prior 
to maturity.  Interest shall be payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year 
commencing on May 1, 2022 until the aforesaid principal amount is paid in full.  Both the 
principal of and interest on this Note are payable to the registered owner in lawful money of the 
United States.  Interest payable on any interest payment date shall be paid by wire transfer to the 
Depository in whose name this Note is registered on the Bond Register maintained by Associated 
Trust Company, National Association, Green Bay, Wisconsin (the "Fiscal Agent") or any 
successor thereto at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding 
each interest payment date (the "Record Date").  This Note is payable as to principal upon 
presentation and surrender hereof at the office of the Fiscal Agent. 


For the prompt payment of this Note together with interest hereon as aforesaid and for the 
levy of taxes sufficient for that purpose, the full faith, credit and resources of the City are hereby 
irrevocably pledged. 


This Note is one of an issue of Notes aggregating the principal amount of $___________, 
all of which are of like tenor, except as to denomination, interest rate, maturity date and 
redemption provision, issued by the City pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.12(12), 
Wisconsin Statutes, for public purposes, including paying the cost of acquiring equipment, park 
improvements, street improvements, parking lot repairs, stormwater improvements, and other 
capital projects, as authorized by a resolution adopted on May 11, 2021 (the "Resolution" ) as 
supplemented by a Certificate Approving the Preliminary Official Statement and Details of 







 


 -2-  


General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2021A (the "Approving Certificate").  Said 
Resolution is recorded in the official minutes of the Common Council for said date. 


The Notes maturing on May 1, _____ are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the 
option of the City, on May 1, _____ or on any date thereafter.  Said Notes are redeemable as a 
whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the City, and within each maturity by 
lot (as selected by the Depository), at the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the 
date of redemption. 
 


[The Notes maturing in the years ________ are subject to mandatory redemption by lot 
as provided in the Approving Certificate, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to 
the date of redemption and without premium.] 
 


In the event the Notes are redeemed prior to maturity, as long as the Notes are in 
book-entry-only form, official notice of the redemption will be given by mailing a notice by 
registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic 
transmission or in any other manner required by the Depository, to the Depository not less than 
thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date.  If less than all of the 
Notes of a maturity are to be called for redemption, the Notes of such maturity to be redeemed 
will be selected by lot.  Such notice will include but not be limited to the following:   the 
designation and date of the Notes called for redemption, CUSIP number, and the date of 
redemption.  Any notice provided as described herein shall be conclusively presumed to have 
been duly given, whether or not the registered owner receives the notice.  The Notes shall cease 
to bear interest on the specified redemption date provided that federal or other immediately 
available funds sufficient for such redemption are on deposit at the office of the Depository at 
that time.  Upon such deposit of funds for redemption the Notes shall no longer be deemed to be 
outstanding. 


It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, things and acts required by law to 
exist or to be done prior to and in connection with the issuance of this Note have been done, have 
existed and have been performed in due form and time; that the aggregate indebtedness of the 
City, including this Note and others issued simultaneously herewith, does not exceed any 
limitation imposed by law or the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin; and that a direct annual 
irrepealable tax has been levied sufficient to pay this Note, together with the interest thereon, 
when and as payable. 


This Note is transferable only upon the books of the City kept for that purpose at the 
office of the Fiscal Agent, only in the event that the Depository does not continue to act as 
depository for the Notes, and the City appoints another depository, upon surrender of the Note to 
the Fiscal Agent, by the registered owner in person or his duly authorized attorney, together with 
a written instrument of transfer (which may be endorsed hereon) satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent 
duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney.  Thereupon a new fully 
registered Note in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the new depository in 
exchange therefor and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the City for any tax, 
fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such registration.  The 
Fiscal Agent shall not be obliged to make any transfer of the Notes (i) after the Record Date, (ii) 







 


 -3-  


during the fifteen (15) calendar days preceding the date of any publication of notice of any 
proposed redemption of the Notes, or (iii) with respect to any particular Note, after such Note has 
been called for redemption.  The Fiscal Agent and City may treat and consider the Depository in 
whose name this Note is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving 
payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due hereon 
and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Notes are issuable solely as negotiable, fully-
registered Notes without coupons in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 


This Note has been designated by the Common Council as a "qualified tax-exempt 
obligation" pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended. 


This Note shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of 
Authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Fiscal Agent. 


No delay or omission on the part of the owner hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall 
impair such right or be considered as a waiver thereof or as a waiver of or acquiescence in any 
default hereunder. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, by its 
governing body, has caused this Note to be executed for it and in its name by the manual or 
facsimile signatures of its duly qualified Mayor and City Clerk; and to be sealed with its official 
or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue specified above. 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
 
By: ______________________________ 


Tim B. Swadley 
Mayor 


 
(SEAL) 
 


By: ______________________________ 
Holly Licht 
City Clerk 







 


 -4-  


Date of Authentication:  _______________, ______ 
 


CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
 This Note is one of the Notes of the issue authorized by the within-mentioned Resolution 
of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin. 
 


ASSOCIATED TRUST COMPANY, 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
GREEN BAY, WISCONSIN 


 
 
 


By____________________________ 
        Authorized Signatory 







 


 -5-  


ASSIGNMENT 


FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 
____________________________________________________________________________ 


(Name and Address of Assignee) 


____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee) 


the within Note and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________, Legal Representative, to transfer said Note on 
the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 


Dated:  _____________________ 


Signature Guaranteed: 


_____________________________   ________________________________ 
(e.g. Bank, Trust Company    (Depository or Nominee Name) 
or Securities Firm) 


NOTICE:  This signature must correspond with the 
name of the Depository or Nominee Name as it 
appears upon the face of the within Note in every 
particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 
change whatever. 


____________________________ 
(Authorized Officer) 





		06a-Stoughton, City of - 2021A GOPNs - Resolution

		06b-Stoughton, City of - 2021A GOPNs - Packet Info

		PreSaleReport.Stoughton.2021A

		Stoughton, City of - 2021A GOPNs - Resolution

		ATTEST:

		EXHIBIT A

		[EXHIBIT MRP

		For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20

		Redemption

		For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20

		Redemption

		For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20

		Redemption

		For the Term Bonds Maturing on May 1, 20

		Redemption














 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class B” 


Wine Retailers License and Special Event License to the Taste of Stoughton 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Safety recommended approval 7-0 on April 28, 2021 


   
File Number: R-66-2021  


 
Date Introduced:   May 11, 2021 


 
WHEREAS it is in the best interest of the City to approve an Application for a Temporary Class 


‘B” Beer and “Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License Taste of Stoughton; 


and  


 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee met on April 28, 2021 to consider the terms of the 


Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License and 


recommends approval, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to execute the Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class 


B” Wine Retailer’s License and a Special Event License based on no fines or fees due to the City 


of Stoughton, attached hereto and incorporated as part of this resolution, between the City of 


Stoughton and the Taste of Stoughton.  


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote    _ 


 

















		07a-R-66-2021 Taste of Stoughton

		07b-Taste of Stoughton

		20210423104209506

		Site Map








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\05-11-2021\Sidewalk Cafe.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Creating an Ordinance to Allow for Sidewalk Cafes in the City of Stoughton 


Committee 


Action:    


Public Safety Committee Recommended approval 7-0 on April 28, 2021 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-12- 2021 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 


May 11, 2021 


May 25, 2021 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


 


Section 1. Sec. 14-4 is renumbered 14-4(a) and (b) amended to read:  


 


(a) Upon receipt of each such application, the chief of police shall immediately institute 


such investigation of the applicant's business and moral character as he deems 


necessary for the protection of the public good, endorse his approval or disapproval 


upon such application within 72 hours after it has been filed with the clerk and shall 


recommend the license be issued or denied in accordance with his findings after 


presentation by the applicant of a receipt of the city treasurer showing payment of the 


required fee. 


 


(b) The department of planning and development shall review each application for a 


sidewalk café license for general compliance with subsections 14-481 (c) and (d) and, 


on that basis alone, shall recommend that the license be issued or denied within 72 


hours after it has been filed with the clerk. 


 


Section 2.  Sec. 14-7(d) is created to read:   


 


(d) The city clerk may issue the following licenses subject to report and approval 


from the chief of police and the department of planning and development: 


sidewalk café.  


 


Section 3. Sec. 14-461(25) is created to read:  


 


 (25) Sidewalk cafés…100.00.  


 


Section 4. Chapter 14, Article XIX is created to read:  


 


ARTICLE XIX. – SIDEWALK CAFÉS  


 


 Sec. 14-481 – Sidewalk cafés.  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\05-11-2021\Sidewalk Cafe.docx 


 


(a) Definitions. In this subsection, a “sidewalk café” is an outdoor dining area located 


in any public sidewalk or right-of-way that is operated adjacent to and in 


conjunction with an indoor commercial entertainment use as defined under 


subsection 78-206(4)(h) of this code.  


 


(b) License required. The owner or person in legal possession of a premises authorized 


for indoor commercial entertainment use within the Central Business District may 


apply to the city clerk for a license to operate a sidewalk café. 


 


(c) Application. Application for a license to operate a sidewalk café shall including the 


following information:  


 
(1) A completed City application form.  


 


(2) A written description of the proposed outdoor dining area, including the 


number of tables and chairs and their location in relation to the premises 


and the capacity of the outdoor dining area.  


 


(3) A site plan that accurately depicts the dimensions of the existing sidewalk 


area or other public property and adjacent private property, the proposed 


location of the sidewalk café, and the size and location of existing or 


proposed tables, chairs, steps, planters, barricades, external lighting, 


entryway locations, trees, sign posts, hydrants, sidewalk benches, trash 


receptacles, traffic signal poles, light poles, and any other obstructions.  


 
(4) A current certificate of insurance demonstrating that the sidewalk café area 


is covered by a commercial general liability insurance policy with limits of 


not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and naming the City as an 


additional insured.  


  


(d) Standards and Requirements.  


 
(1) The premises and public sidewalk or right-of-way must be located entirely 


within the Central Business District. 


 


(2) The sidewalk café may not obstruct, impede, or interrupt sidewalk traffic. 


Where a public sidewalk exists in the public right-of-way, the owner or 


person in legal possession of the premises shall preserve an unobstructed 


path with a minimum pavement width of five feet running the length of the 


property line.  


 
(3) The sidewalk café must be clearly delineated by suitable portable 


barricades, such as decorative chains or ropes and posts. The barricades may 


not be affixed to the sidewalk or ground. Barricades are not required to 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\05-11-2021\Sidewalk Cafe.docx 


completely enclose a sidewalk café and may be placed to allow the public 


to enter from the outside as well as from the building.  


 
(4) All materials, equipment, and furniture comprising the sidewalk café must 


be removed from the public right-of-way and from any public property from 


the close of business until the opening of business each day.   


 


(5) No public amenities such as light poles or utility poles, flower planters, 


trees, or other amenities shall be used as a point of attachment for any rope, 


wiring, lighting, signage, or other device as part of the sidewalk café.  


 


(6) Service of food and beverages in a sidewalk café shall be limited to persons 


seated at tables in the outdoor dining area. Signs shall be posted stating that 


possession and consumption of food and beverages is restricted to 


customers within the designated outdoor dining area. Such signs shall be 


clearly visible to both seated customers and to the public.  


 
(7) No alcohol sale, consumption, or possession is permitted in a sidewalk café 


area unless the following conditions are satisfied:  


 
a. The owner or person in legal possession of the premises possesses a 


Class B alcohol beverage license for that premises.  


 


b. The City Council approves an amendment of the applicable Class B 


alcohol beverage license premises description.  


 
c. The alcohol beverage licensee obtains an outdoor consumption 


permit under subsection 14-40(k)(6).  


 


(8) Alcohol may be served in the sidewalk café only by the Class B license 


holder or an employee holding a valid operator’s license.  


 


(9) Alcohol may be served only in single serving containers.  


 


(10) The sidewalk café shall be supervised at all times by the Class B license 


holder or an employee holding a valid operator’s license. 


 
(11) The owner or person in legal possession of a premises with an approved 


sidewalk café shall be responsible for ensuring that alcohol beverages are 


not removed from the premises and that any public sidewalk or right-of-


way adjacent to the sidewalk café remain unobstructed.  


 
(12) No food or beverages may be served, possessed, or consumed in a sidewalk 


café before 8:00 a.m. or after 11:00 p.m. on Fridays and Saturdays and 


before 8:00 a.m. or after 10:00 p.m. all other days.  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\05-11-2021\Sidewalk Cafe.docx 


 
(13) The owner or person in legal possession of a premises with an approved 


sidewalk café shall be responsible for removing all dishes, debris, and 


unused food promptly following a customer’s departure and promptly after 


close of business each day.  


 


(e) Use of Public Right-of-Way. The use of a portion of the public right-of-way as a 


sidewalk café shall not be an exclusive use. All public improvements, including trees, light 


poles, traffic signals, pull boxes, or manholes, are any public improvement or maintenance 


projects shall take precedence over the sidewalk café use. The chief of police, or designee, 


may temporarily order removal of the sidewalk café for special events licensed under Ch. 


14, Art. XVIII or for public health and safety.  


 


(f) Revocation or Suspension. Notwithstanding subsection 14-12, the chief of police, 


or the chief of police’s designee, may temporarily suspend a sidewalk café license at any 


time deemed appropriate to protect the public health, safety, or general welfare. The city 


council or the public safety committee may revoke a sidewalk café license at any time 


without cause. A sidewalk café permit is a privilege, not a right, to use the public right-of-


way or other public property.  


 


(g) Penalty. Any person who violates any provisions of this article or any license issued 


under this article shall be subject to a penalty as provided in section 1-3. Failure to comply 


with any provisions of this article may result in the withholding of approval on any 


subsequent license applications for this or other licenses required by the City. 


 


Section 5. Sec. 64-9(b)(2)f. is created to read:  


 


 f. Sidewalk cafés permitted under section 14-481 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:            


      Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:             


       Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 








 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing the appropriate City Official(s) to pay $550,000 to the Kettle Park West developer in full 


satisfaction of the commercial phase MRO following the conveyance of approximately 4 acres of additional 


parkland to the City 


 


Committee Action:  Finance Committee Approved 6-0 on April 27, 2021 


 


 
Fiscal Impact: $550,000 TID No. 7 


 
File Number: 


 
R-67-2021 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
May 11, 2021 


 
WHEREAS, the City agreed to issue a Municipal Revenue Obligation (“Commercial Phase MRO”) to 


Kettle Park West, LLC (“Developer”), in the principal amount of Five Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 


($550,000); and 


WHEREAS, the development agreement for the residential phase of the Kettle Park West Development 


required the Developer to annex approximately 4 acres of land in the town of Rutland to the City, and to 


convey that land to the City as an addition to the 6.3 acres already dedicated for park purposes; and 


WHEREAS, the Commercial Phase MRO was assigned to the City to protect the City in the event the 4 


acres is not annexed and conveyed to the City; and 


WHEREAS, the annexation of the 4 acre parcel has been completed and the City expects the 4 acres to 


be conveyed to the City in the near future; and 


WHEREAS, following conveyance of the 4 acre parcel, the City is required to issue the Commercial 


Phase MRO; and 


WHEREAS, the Agreement to Undertake Development states, that once issued, the payments on the 


Commercial Phase MRO are to be amortized over the remaining number of years that tax increment 


generated by the District may lawfully be allocated to make payments on the Commercial Phase MRO; 


and 


WHEREAS, the Developer is requesting the City to forego the repayment terms set forth in the 


Agreement to Undertake Development and pay the entire amount in one lump sum following the 


conveyance of the aforementioned 4 acre parcel to the City; and 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee determined sufficient fund balance exists within 


Tax Increment District No. 7 to accommodate this request and the risk to the City in doing so is minimal.  


 


 







 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 


authorizes the appropriate City Official(s) to forego the repayment terms set forth in the Agreement to 


Undertake Development by and between the City of Stoughton and Kettle Park West, LLC as it relates to 


the $550,000 Commercial Phase Municipal Revenue Obligation and pay the entire amount due in one 


lump sum following the conveyance of the aforementioned 4 acre parcel to the City. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 S Forrest, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  April 22, 2021 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Jamin Friedl 
   
Subject: Release of KPW Phase I Municipal Revenue Obligation 
 
The development agreement for the commercial phase of the Kettle Park West development 
entitles the developer to receive a TIF-funding Municipal Revenue Obligation (the “Commercial 
Phase MRO”) to pay the cost of site grading work within that phase, up to $550,000.  When issued, 
the Commercial Phase MRO is payable over the remaining life of the TIF District, without interest.   
 
The Commercial Phase MRO has not yet been issued.  Instead, the developer assigned it to the 
City to secure the developer’s park-dedication related obligations.  The development agreement 
for the residential phase of the Kettle Park West Development required the developer to annex 
about 4 acres of land in the town of Rutland to the City, and to convey that land to the City as an 
addition to the 6.3 acres already dedicated for park purposes.  The Commercial Phase MRO was 
assigned to the City to protect the City in the event the 4 acres is not annexed and conveyed to the 
City. 
 
The annexation of the 4 acre parcel has been completed.  We expect the 4 acres to be conveyed to 
the City shortly.  Once that has occurred, we will issue the Commercial Phase MRO to the 
developer. 
 
Forward Development is requesting the entire amount be paid in one lump sum as opposed to using 
the amortization schedule laid out below. Any changes to the payment schedule as described in 
the Agreement to Undertake Development must be approved by City Council.  
 
Forward Development’s reasoning for this request is laid out below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 
 


1. “But For Test” – The but for test indicated that $5,000,000 was needed to move the 
project forward.  The Council at that time chose to push the $550,000 as an incentive to 
achieve the assessment values. 


2. Project Sources and Uses – The $550,000 of costs did not go away so FDG needed to 
finance that portion themselves.  Debt financing was not available because it had already 
been maximized for construction and other purposes.  Therefore, FDG needed to go to 
outside investors to obtain unsecured notes (i.e. could not be collateralized as it is based 
on a future event).  The interest rate on the unsecured notes is 12%, and they are still 
outstanding today. 


3. Anticipated Payments – In the original project plan, the $550,000 was shown as a lump 
sum payment.  The MRO was written differently, FDG assumes this is because the City 
wanted the flexibility to pay it over and extended timeframe if needed.  However, FDG 
believes the City is required per the previous TIF agreement (Phase 1) and the current 
TIF agreement (Phase 2) to set aside the funds if available to make this 
payment.  Therefore, FDG believes that once the priority payments, prior to FDG’s 
payment being made, the funds can’t be used for any other purpose. 


4. Amount Set Aside for the Excess TIF – Currently, the cash within the TID exceeds 
$900,000 after all payments have been made and therefore $550,000 is available and 
must be set aside for KPW. 


5. 2020 Budgeted Amount – When the project amendment was approved, it showed the 
payment of the $550,000 over 3 years instead of the lump sum as originally 
projected.  The intent wasn’t to show the payment not being made in a lump sum, it was 
just showing the payment based on cash projected (i.e. an estimate).  We are a year later 
in the schedule (i.e. KPW deferred the payment request because of the park dedication 
and annexation issue) so the 1st two payments are available and the tax receipts exceeded 
the projections.  So therefore, the cash is available sooner than projected which is a good 
thing. 


 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Jamin Friedl 







GL Number Description Balance
Fund 207 - TID #7 FUND


*** Assets ***


207-00000-11100 PRIMARY CHECKING 621,010.69$                             
207-00000-11302 WISC INVESTMENT FUND 301,007.02$                             
207-00000-13010 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 2,778.22$                                  (550,000)$               Phase I MRO
207-00000-13070 TAXES RECEIVABLE 193,963.73$                             (7,000)$                   Year 1 Kettle Restoration


Total Assets 1,118,759.66$                          (60,100)$                 Year 2 Kettle Restoration
(8,600)$                   Year 3 Kettle Restoration


*** Liabilities *** (13,800)$                 Year 4 Kettle Restoration
(9,300)$                   Year 5 Kettle Restoration


207-00000-26000 DEFERRED REVENUE -$                                           Remaining Forecasted 2021 Cash Flow:
193,964$                Taxes Receivable


Total Liabilities -$                                           15,842$                  Guarantee Receivable
(9,414)$                   Remaining Budgeted Expenditures


*** Fund Balance *** 473,609$                Note A


207-00000-39000 FUND BALANCE 675,695.12$                             


Total Fund Balance 675,695.12$                             


Beginning Fund Balance 675,695.12$                             
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures 443,064.54$                             
Ending Fund Balance 1,118,759.66$                          
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 1,118,759.66$                          


Note A - This represents the forecasted 12/31/21 Cash Balance in TID 7 after payment of the $550,000 Commercial Phase MRO, upfront payment of all the Kettle Restoration 
costs and remaining budgeted activity. 


BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                                  
Period Ending 04/30/2021                                                      


922,018$                Cash / Investment Balance







                               REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                         
                                                     PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2021                                                     
                                                  % Fiscal Year Completed: 32.88                                                   


YTD BALANCE
2021 04/30/2021


GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


Revenues
207-00000-41110 PROPERTY TAXES 770,000.00 762,485.69
207-00000-42190 TAX INCREMENT GUARANTEE 33,000.00 15,842.14
207-00000-48110 INTEREST 2,800.00 47.54
TOTAL REVENUES 805,800.00 778,375.37


Expenditures
207-57120-50850 ADMINSTRATION 5,000.00 585.83
207-57310-50340-30600000 OPERATING EXPENSES 5,000.00 0.00
207-57342-50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 200,000.00 0.00
207-59230-50930 TRANSFER TO DEBT FUND 334,725.00 334,725.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 544,725.00 335,310.83


TOTAL REVENUES - FUND 207 805,800.00 778,375.37
TOTAL EXPENDITURES -  FUND 207 544,725.00 335,310.83
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 261,075.00 443,064.54







  


____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Plan TID No. 7 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton     
Submitted by Ehlers     Page 18   


 


 


Proposed TID Project Cost Estimates 
 


On-Site On-Site Off-Site Off-Site Other Other


2020 TBD 2023 - 2026 TBD Annual TBD Total (Note 1)


Project ID Project Name/Type


On-Site Projects


1 Stormwater Management 313,200 313,200


2 Mass Grading and Site Restoration 609,800 609,800


3 Collector Streets 1,325,026 1,325,026


4 Engineering, Geo-Tech Investigation 449,605 449,605


5 Contingency 189,958 189,958


6 City Plan Review, Inspection and Testing 112,411 112,411


On-Site Projects - Future (contingent upon available future increment)


1 Parks and Recreations 200,000 200,000


2 Wetland Restoration 100,000 100,000


3 Engineering, Geo-Tech Investigation 40,000 40,000


4 Contingency 30,000 30,000


Off-Site Projects - 1/2 mile radius projects (contingent upon available future increment)


1 Collector Streets 2,828,250 200,000 3,028,250


2 Stormwater Management 661,250 661,250


3 Water, Sanitary and Storm Sewer 310,500 1,100,000 1,410,500


4 Land Acquisition 700,000 700,000


5 Engineering, Geo-Tech Investigation 165,000 165,000


6 Contingency 165,000 165,000


Other Costs


1 District Administrative 80,000 80,000


2 Origination Fees 30,000 10,000 40,000


3 Interest 1,400,000 500,000 1,900,000


Total Projects 3,000,000 370,000 3,800,000 2,330,000 1,510,000 510,000 11,520,000


Notes:


Note 1 Project costs are estimates and are subject to modification


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
Tax Increment District # 7


Estimated Project List


 







  


____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Plan TID No. 7 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton     
Submitted by Ehlers     Page 22   


 


 


Development Assumptions 
 


Actual
Phase I 


Retail


Phase I 


Senior 


Housing


Phase I 


Hotel


Phase II 


Single Family 


Phase II     


Traditional 


Neighborhood


Phase II     


Multi-Family


Phase II 


Condos
Annual Total


1 2015 10,174,500 10,174,500 2015 1


2 2016 7,252,000 7,252,000 2016 2


3 2017 5,510,000 5,510,000 2017 3


4 2018 1,259,900 1,259,900 2018 4


5 2019 12,500,000 12,500,000 2019 5


6 2020 7,592,200 2,265,000 1,760,000 625,000 12,242,200 2020 6


7 2021 1,758,200 3,300,000 1,550,000 900,000 7,508,200 2021 7


8 2022 750,000 5,900,000 8,055,000 900,000 15,605,000 2022 8


9 2023 500,000 4,000,000 5,100,000 900,000 10,500,000 2023 9


10 2024 3,400,000 4,800,000 900,000 585,000 9,685,000 2024 10


11 2025 4,100,000 3,300,000 900,000 1,350,000 9,650,000 2025 11


12 2026 3,500,000 1,750,000 900,000 1,350,000 7,500,000 2026 12


13 2027 3,070,000 1,350,000 4,420,000 2027 13


Totals 24,196,400 3,008,200 12,500,000 7,592,200 29,535,000 26,315,000 6,025,000 4,635,000 113,806,800


Notes:


1. Development assumptions taken from Developer estimates.


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


Tax Increment District # 7


Development Assumptions


Construction Year Construction Year


 
 
 







  


____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Plan TID No. 7 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton     
Submitted by Ehlers     Page 23   


 


 


 


Increment Revenue Projections  
 


Type of District Base Value 1,111,800


District Creation Date Appreciation Factor 0.00%


Max Life (Years) Rate Adjustment Factor 0.00%


Expenditure Period/Termination 15 11/11/2029


Extension Eligibility/Years Yes 3 Tax Exempt Discount Rate 3.00%


Eligible Recipient District Taxable Discount Rate 4.50%


Construction 


Year Value Added Valuation Year


Inflation 


Increment


Total 


Increment


Revenue 


Year Tax Rate Tax Increment


1 2015 10,174,500 2016 0 10,174,500 2017 $23.79 242,013


2 2016 7,252,000 2017 0 17,426,500 2018 $23.87 415,963


3 2017 5,510,000 2018 0 22,936,500 2019 $22.96 526,673


4 2018 1,259,900 2019 0 24,196,400 2020 $22.58 546,394


5 2019 12,500,000 2020 0 36,696,400 2021 $22.58 828,665


6 2020 12,242,200 2021 0 48,938,600 2022 $22.58 1,105,114


7 2021 7,508,200 2022 0 56,446,800 2023 $22.58 1,274,661


8 2022 15,605,000 2023 0 72,051,800 2024 $22.58 1,627,048


9 2023 10,500,000 2024 0 82,551,800 2025 $22.58 1,864,155


10 2024 9,685,000 2025 0 92,236,800 2026 $22.58 2,082,858


11 2025 9,650,000 2026 0 101,886,800 2027 $22.58 2,300,771


12 2026 7,500,000 2027 0 109,386,800 2028 $22.58 2,470,133


13 2027 4,420,000 2028 0 113,806,800 2029 $22.58 2,569,944


14 2028 0 2029 0 113,806,800 2030 $22.58 2,569,944


15 2029 0 2030 0 113,806,800 2031 $22.58 2,569,944


16 2030 0 2031 0 113,806,800 2032 $22.58 2,569,944


17 2031 0 2032 0 113,806,800 2033 $22.58 2,569,944


18 2032 0 2033 0 113,806,800 2034 $22.58 2,569,944


19 2033 0 2034 0 113,806,800 2035 $22.58 2,569,944


Totals 113,806,800 0 Future Value of Increment 33,274,056


Notes:


Actual results will vary depending on development, inflation of overall tax rates.


20


No


City of Stoughton, WI


Tax Increment District #7


Tax Increment Projection Worksheet


Mixed Use


November 11, 2014


 







  


____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Plan TID No. 7 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton     
Submitted by Ehlers     Page 24   


 


 


Cash Flow – Phase II 
 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
Tax Increment District # 7


Cash Flow Projection - Phase II Only


Year


Year


2020 0 0 5,000 5,000 (5,000) (5,000) 2020


2021 0 0 5,000 5,000 (5,000) (10,000) 2021


2022 105,005 105,005 402,059 5,000 407,059 (302,054) (312,054) 2022


2023 234,849 234,849 402,059 690,000 5,000 1,097,059 (862,210) (1,174,264) 2023


2024 570,299 570,299 402,059 661,250 5,000 1,068,309 (498,010) (1,672,274) 2024


2025 796,116 796,116 402,059 310,500 5,000 717,559 78,557 (1,593,717) 2025


2026 1,014,819 1,014,819 402,059 2,138,250 5,000 2,545,309 (1,530,490) (3,124,208) 2026


2027 1,232,732 1,232,732 1,224,204 5,000 1,229,204 3,528 (3,120,680) 2027


2028 1,402,094 1,402,094 1,154,910 5,000 1,159,910 242,184 (2,878,496) 2028


2029 1,501,905 1,501,905 5,000 5,000 1,496,905 (1,381,591) 2029


2030 1,501,905 1,501,905 5,000 5,000 1,496,905 115,313 2030


2031 1,501,905 1,501,905 5,000 5,000 1,496,905 1,612,218 2031


2032 1,501,905 1,501,905 5,000 5,000 1,496,905 3,109,123 2032


2033 1,501,905 1,501,905 5,000 5,000 1,496,905 4,606,028 2033


2034 1,501,905 1,501,905 5,000 5,000 1,496,905 6,102,932 2034


2035 1,501,905 1,501,905 5,000 5,000 1,496,905 7,599,837 2035


Total 15,869,246 0 15,869,246 4,389,409 3,800,000 80,000 8,269,409 Total


Notes:


Total 


Expenditures


Phase II 


MRO Annual Cumulative


Principal 


Outstanding


Balances


Capital 


Outlay Admin.


ExpendituresProjected Revenues


Tax 


Increments


Interest 


Earnings/ 


(Cost)


Total 


Revenues


 







  


____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Plan TID No. 7 Project Plan Amendment City of Stoughton     
Submitted by Ehlers     Page 25   


 


 


Cash Flow –   TID 7 after Amendment 
 
 


City of Stoughton, WI
Tax Increment District #7


Cash Flow Projection - After Amendment


Note Anticipation Notes, Series 


2015


General Obligation Bonds, Series 


2018A


Year


Dated Date:  Dated Date:  


Principal Rate Interest Principal Rate Interest Year


2015 0 745 4,738,194 4,738,939 380,760 3,363 384,123 4,354,816 4,354,816 4,775,000 2015


2016 0 10,200 10,200 1.25% 0 3,308,319 850 3,309,169 (3,298,969) 1,055,847 4,775,000 2016


2017 242,013 8,449 250,462 1.25% 116,059 75,684 1,239 23,678 216,660 33,802 1,089,649 4,775,000 2017


2018 415,963 4,678 4,184,948 4,605,589 4,775,000 1.25% 39,792 679,308 1,460 8,983 5,504,543 (898,954) 190,695 4,640,000 2018


2019 526,673 4,445 1,959 33,510 15,274 581,861 150,000 2.00% 183,149 1,000 334,149 247,712 438,407 4,490,000 2019


2020 546,394 4,384 550,778 210,000 2.00% 123,975 200,000 10,000 543,975 6,803 445,210 4,080,000 2020


2021 828,665 4,452 833,117 215,000 2.00% 119,725 200,000 10,000 544,725 288,392 733,602 3,665,000 2021


2022 1,105,114 7,336 1,112,450 220,000 3.00% 114,275 150,000 402,059 10,000 896,334 216,116 949,718 3,295,000 2022


2023 1,274,661 9,497 1,284,158 225,000 3.00% 107,600 402,059 690,000 10,000 1,434,659 (150,501) 799,217 3,070,000 2023


2024 1,627,048 7,992 1,635,040 235,000 3.00% 100,700 402,059 661,250 10,000 1,409,009 226,031 1,025,248 2,835,000 2024


2025 1,864,155 10,252 1,874,407 240,000 3.00% 93,575 402,059 310,500 10,000 1,056,134 818,273 1,843,521 2,595,000 2025


2026 2,082,858 18,435 2,101,293 245,000 3.00% 86,300 402,059 2,138,250 10,000 2,881,609 (780,316) 1,063,205 2,350,000 2026


2027 2,300,771 10,632 2,311,403 255,000 4.00% 77,525 1,224,204 10,000 1,566,729 744,674 1,807,879 2,095,000 2027


2028 2,470,133 18,079 2,488,212 265,000 4.00% 67,125 1,154,910 10,000 1,497,035 991,177 2,799,056 1,830,000 2028


2029 2,569,944 27,991 2,597,935 280,000 4.00% 56,225 10,000 346,225 2,251,710 5,050,766 1,550,000 2029


2030 2,569,944 50,508 2,620,452 290,000 4.00% 44,825 10,000 344,825 2,275,627 7,326,393 1,260,000 2030


2031 2,569,944 73,264 2,643,208 300,000 3.00% 34,525 10,000 344,525 2,298,683 9,625,076 960,000 2031


2032 2,569,944 96,251 2,666,195 310,000 3.00% 25,375 10,000 345,375 2,320,820 11,945,896 650,000 2032


2033 2,569,944 119,459 2,689,403 320,000 3.13% 15,725 10,000 345,725 2,343,678 14,289,574 330,000 2033


2034 2,569,944 142,896 2,712,840 330,000 3.25% 5,362 10,000 345,362 2,367,478 16,657,052 0 2034


2035 2,569,944 166,571 2,736,515 0 10,000 10,000 2,726,515 19,383,567 0 2035


Total 33,274,056 796,516 1,959 33,510 15,274 8,923,142 43,044,457 4,775,000 155,851 4,090,000 1,255,986 550,000 4,389,409 8,244,071 4,549 196,024 23,660,890 Total


Notes: Projected TID Closure


- Per 2019 audit


Projected Revenues Expenditures Balances


Tax 


Increments


Interest 


Earnings/ 


(Cost)


Intergov. 


Grants


Developer 


Guarantees


Misc 


Revenue


Net Debt 


Proceeds


Total 


Revenues


4,775,000 4,090,000


Phase II 


MRO


Principal 


Outstanding


10/21/15 04/26/18


Phase I MRO


Capital 


Expenditures


Professional 


Services Admin.


Total 


Expenditures Annual Cumulative







  


 


Exhibit A:  


Calculation of the Share of Projected Tax Increments 
Estimated to be Paid by the Owners of Property in the 
Overlying Taxing Jurisdictions 


Statement of Taxes Data Year: 2019


Percentage


County 3,407,401 12.83%


Municipality 9,383,714 35.33%


School District 12,732,298 47.93%


Technical College 1,038,987 3.91%


Revenue Year County Municipality School District


Technical 


College Total Revenue Year


2017 31,045 85,496 116,005 9,466 242,013 2017


2018 53,359 146,947 199,386 16,270 415,963 2018


2019 67,561 186,058 252,453 20,601 526,673 2019


2020 70,091 193,025 261,906 21,372 546,394 2020


2021 106,300 292,743 397,208 32,413 828,665 2021


2022 141,763 390,404 529,720 43,226 1,105,114 2022


2023 163,512 450,300 610,990 49,858 1,274,661 2023


2024 208,716 574,788 779,902 63,642 1,627,048 2024


2025 239,132 658,551 893,555 72,916 1,864,155 2025


2026 267,187 735,812 998,387 81,471 2,082,858 2026


2027 295,141 812,795 1,102,841 89,995 2,300,771 2027


2028 316,866 872,625 1,184,022 96,619 2,470,133 2028


2029 329,670 907,886 1,231,865 100,523 2,569,944 2029


2030 329,670 907,886 1,231,865 100,523 2,569,944 2030


2031 329,670 907,886 1,231,865 100,523 2,569,944 2031


2032 329,670 907,886 1,231,865 100,523 2,569,944 2032


2033 329,670 907,886 1,231,865 100,523 2,569,944 2033


2034 329,670 907,886 1,231,865 100,523 2,569,944 2034


2035 329,670 907,886 1,231,865 100,523 2,569,944 2035


4,268,367 11,754,745 15,949,432 1,301,513 33,274,056


Notes:


The projection shown above is provided to meet the requirments of Wisconsin Statute 66.1105(4)(i)4.


Estimated portion of taxes that owners of taxable property in each taxing jurisdiction 


overlaying district would pay by jurisdiction.


 
 
 
 







LANGUAGE IN THE ORIGINAL AGREEMENT TO UNDERTAKE DEVELOPMENT 


C.3. Municipal Revenue Obligation. Following the completion of the Site Grading, Developer 
may provide to the City a written request for issuance of a Municipal Revenue Obligation, which 
request shall include Developer's certification of the cost of the Site Grading and documentation 
of Developer's payments to contractors for the Site Grading work. Within forty-five days after 
submittal of a complete written request for issuance of the Municipal Revenue Obligation with 
the required certification and documentation, the City shall issue a Municipal Revenue 
Obligation to Developer, in the principal amount of the lesser of (1) the cost of the Site Grading 
work or (2) Five Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($550,000), in the form attached hereto as 
Attachment E, under the following terms and conditions:  


(a) The Municipal Revenue Obligation shall not bear interest. 


(b) Any payment on the Municipal Revenue Obligation which is due on any Payment Date shall 
be payable solely from and only to the extent that the City has received as of such Payment Date 
Excess Tax Increment, and such Excess Tax Increment has been appropriated by the Common 
Council to payment of the Municipal Revenue Obligation.  


(c) For purposes of the Municipal Revenue Obligation, a “Payment Date” shall mean each of the 
Scheduled Payment Dates set forth on a schedule to be prepared by the City and attached to the 
Municipal Revenue Obligation when issued. The scheduled payment dates shall be prepared 
such that the payments on the Municipal Revenue Obligation are amortized over the remaining 
number of years that tax increment generated by the District may lawfully be allocated to make 
payments on the Municipal Revenue Obligation. On each of the Payment Dates, the City shall 
pay to Developer the Excess Tax Increment, up to the Scheduled Payment Amount shown on the 
schedule attached to the Municipal Revenue Obligation, together with such additional amounts, 
if any, deferred from prior years as may be payable on the Payment Date as provided under the 
terms of the Municipal Revenue Obligation, that has been appropriated for that purpose by the 
Common Council in accordance with the requirements for revenue obligations.  


(d) The City covenants and agrees that Excess Tax Increment held by the City as of a given 
Payment Date shall not be appropriated for any other use, if not appropriated for the Municipal 
Revenue Obligation due as of such Payment Date, until the City has paid the Municipal Revenue 
Obligation payment due on the Payment Date in that year (including the Scheduled Payment 
Amount plus any additional amounts deferred from prior years and payable on that Payment 
Date), or until said Municipal Revenue Obligation has been paid. The District shall not be 
terminated until the Municipal Revenue Obligation has been paid, or until the District must be 
terminated by law, whichever first occurs. 


D. 3. Allocation of Actual Tax Increment. Actual Tax Increment shall be applied as follows:  


(a) In 2015 and 2016, all Actual Tax Increment shall be allocated to the City to pay City 
Administrative Costs and other project costs related to the District.  


(b) In 2017 through 2033, or until the District is terminated, whichever is sooner, Actual Tax 
Increment shall be allocated as follows:  







(1) First, to pay City Administrative Costs.  


(2) Second, to pay Annual Debt Service on City Borrowing for reimbursing 
Developer for the Stormwater Management Improvements.  


(3) Third, to pay Annual Debt Service on City Borrowing for reimbursing 
Developer for the Off-Site Public Improvements.  


(4) Fourth, "Excess Tax Increment" shall be available for payment of the 
Municipal Revenue Obligation referred to in Section C.3 of this Agreement. For purposes 
of this Agreement, "Excess Tax Increment" shall mean Actual Tax Increment remaining 
each year after paying Annual Debt Service on City Borrowing each year. Excess Tax 
Increment remaining after the City has paid the Municipal Revenue Obligation payment 
due on the Payment Date in a given year (including the Scheduled Payment Amount plus 
any additional amounts deferred from prior years and payable on that Payment Date) may 
be used by the City to pay any District project costs it may chose, in its discretion. 


 


LANGUAGE IN THE SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT TO 
UNDERTAKE DEVELOPMENT 


(c) For purposes of the Municipal Revenue Obligation, a "Payment Date" shall mean each of the 
Scheduled Payment Dates set forth on a schedule to be prepared by the City and attached to the 
Municipal Revenue Obligation when issued. The scheduled payment dates shall be prepared 
such that the payments on the Municipal Revenue Obligation are amortized over the remaining 
number of years that tax increment generated by the District may lawfully he allocated to make 
payments on the Municipal Revenue Obligation. On each of the Payment Dates, the City shall 
pay to Developer the Excess Tax Increment, up to the Scheduled Payment Amount shown on the 
schedule attached to the Municipal Revenue Obligation, together with such additional amounts, 
if any, deferred from prior years as may be payable on the Payment Date as provided under the 
terms of the Municipal Revenue Obligation, that has been appropriated for that purpose by the 
Common Council in accordance with the requirements for revenue obligations. 


Section C.3. (d) states as follows:  “The City covenants and agrees that Excess Tax Increment 
held by the City as of a given Payment Date shall not be appropriated for any other use, if not 
appropriated for the Municipal Revenue Obligation due as of such Payment Date, until the City 
has paid the Municipal Revenue Obligation payment due on the Payment Date in that year 
(including the Scheduled Payment Amount plus any additional amounts deferred from prior 
years and payable on that Payment Date), or until said Municipal Revenue Obligation has been 
paid.” 


Section D. 3 (b) (4) states as follows:  “Excess Tax Increment remaining after the City has paid 
the Municipal Revenue Obligation payment due on the Payment Date in a given year (including 
the Scheduled Payment Amount plus any additional amounts deferred from prior years and 
payable on that Payment Date) may be used by the City to pay any District project costs it may 
chose, in its discretion.” 







LANGUAGE IN THE OCTOBER 1, 2020 TIF AGREEMENT 


1. Allocation of Actual Tax Increment.  Beginning in 2020 and continuing through 
2035, the City, subject to annual appropriations and pursuant to the terms contained in this 
Agreement, shall, annually, distribute Actual Tax Increment as follows: 


i) First, to the City for the payment of Administrative Costs. 


ii) Second, to the City to pay the cost of wetland restoration work on Outlot 1 of the CSM. 


iii) Third, for the payment of the Commercial Phase TIF Borrowing. 


iv) Fourth, Actual Tax Increment that remains after paying (i), (ii) and (iii) above shall be 
made available for payment of the Commercial Phase MRO. 


v) Fifth, to pay any City borrowing incurred to finance the construction of improvements 
to Oak Opening Drive and Deer Point Drive in the Town of Rutland. 


vi) Sixth, Actual Tax Increment that remains after paying (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) above 
shall be made available for payment of the Residential Phase MRO.  For purposes of 
this Agreement, Actual Tax Increment that remains after paying (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and 
(v) above shall be referred to as “Available Tax Increment.” 


vii) Seventh, Actual Tax Increment that remains after paying (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v) and (vi) 
above shall be allocated to the City to pay for the construction of the Jackson Street 
force main and the extension of a water main along S.T.H. 138. 


viii) Finally, after the payments are made pursuant to subsections (i) through (vii) 
immediately above, any remaining Actual Tax Increment shall be used by the City at 
its discretion, including to pay the cost of constructing the intersection of S.T.H. 138 
and Oak Opening Drive. 







Annual Payment * Principal Balance
2021 39,285.71$                    510,714.29$                  
2022 39,285.71$                    471,428.58$                  
2023 39,285.71$                    432,142.87$                  
2024 39,285.71$                    392,857.16$                  
2025 39,285.71$                    353,571.45$                  
2026 39,285.71$                    314,285.74$                  
2027 39,285.71$                    275,000.03$                  
2028 39,285.71$                    235,714.32$                  
2029 39,285.71$                    196,428.61$                  
2030 39,285.71$                    157,142.90$                  
2031 39,285.71$                    117,857.19$                  
2032 39,285.71$                    78,571.48$                    
2033 39,285.71$                    39,285.77$                    
2034 39,285.77$                    -$                                 


* - Payments will be issued by the City on November 1st of each year


AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE


KPW Phase I MRO Amortization Schedule
Remaing Life of the TID No. 7


PROPOSED









		09a-.R- -2021 Prepayment of KPW Phase I MRO

		KPW MRO Packet Info

		1.R- -2021 Prepayment of KPW Phase I MRO

		2.KPW MRO Release

		3.4.30.21 Balance Sheet and Income Statement

		BalanceSheetReport

		Income Statement



		4.Project Plan 2020.4.29 - Excerpts

		5.Agreement Language

		6.MRO Amortization Schedule

		Sheet1



		7.Collateral Assignment  of MRO - Executed












Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, May 11, 2021 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open at 


6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/398545045. You can also dial in 


using your phone: +1 (646) 749-3129 . Access Code: 398-545-045. 


The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and 


Spectrum Channel 981. 


 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, 


Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett 


Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, and Rachel Venegas  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


1. Roll Call:  


 


2. Minutes and Reports 


Personnel (11/2/20, 1/4/21, 2/1/21, ); Police and Fire Commission (12/8/20, 1/25/20); Public Safety 


(3/31/21); CACP (3/2/21); Finance (4/13/21, 4/14/21) 


 


 


3. Public Comment Period: 


 If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and 


submit it by 6:30 p.m. on May 11, 2021. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


4. Communications and Presentations  
 Syttende Mai Proclamation 
 Public Works Week Proclamation 
 Police Week Proclamation  
 Clerks Week Proclamation  
 Mental Health Month Proclamation 
 Open Meetings/Ethics Presentation by Attorney Dregne  


 


 


5. Consent Agenda 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/398545045

tel:+16467493129,,398545045

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





A. April 27, 2021 Council Minutes 


B. R- 64-2021- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to 


various applicants. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


6. R-65-2021- Authorizing the Issuance and Establishing Parameter for the Sale of Not to Exceed 


$2,350,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2021A (Finance meets May 11, 2021) 


*Time Sensitive Item* 


 


7. R-66-2021-  Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve a Temporary Class 


“B” Beer and “Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License to the Taste of 


Stoughton (Public Safety recommended 7-0 on April 28, 2021)  


 


8. O-12-2021-  Ordinance allowing for Sidewalk Cafes in the City of Stoughton (Public Safety 


recommended approval 7-0 on April 28, 2021)     FIRST READING 


 


9. R-67-2021-Authorizing the appropriate City Official(s) to pay $550,000 to the Kettle Park West 


developer in full satisfaction of the commercial phase MRO following the conveyance of 


approximately 4 acres of additional parkland to the City (Finance recommended approval 6-0 on 


April 27, 2021)  ***The Common Council may convene in closed session per State Statute 


19.85(1)(e) for the purposes of deliberating or negotiating the purchase of public properties, the 


investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 


bargaining reasons deem a closed session necessary. The Common Council may reconvene in an 


open session to discuss and take action on the subject matter discussed in the closed session*** 


 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 


 








 


Whereas Stoughton, Wisconsin, was incorporated as a village in 1868, and as a fourth class 


city in 1882; and 
 


Whereas there was an influx of Norwegian immigrants in the area in the 1870s and 1880s 


because of the inauspicious conditions prevailing in their native country, the wonderful farm 
land in southeastern Wisconsin, and the jobs provided by the ever-expanding wagon factory; 
and 
 


Whereas, since 1868, there have been periodic celebrations held in the city acknowledging the 


signing of the Norwegian constitution; and 
 


Whereas, in 1939, there occurred the largest celebration of the signing of the Norwegian 


constitution in the city’s history; and 
 


Whereas, in 1952, members of the Chamber of Commerce endorsed a small celebration to begin 


the revival of Syttende Mai in Stoughton; and 
 


Whereas the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce organized the celebration in 1953 and has 


continued to do so ever since; now 
 


Therefore the people of Stoughton, Wisconsin, welcome all our friends and neighbors, from far 


and wide, to our celebration of the signing of the Norwegian Constitution. 
 


VELKOMMEN TIL SYTTENDE MAI ! 
May 14, 15 & 16, 2021 


 
 


In testimony whereof, I, Tim Swadley, Mayor of the 
City of Stoughton, hereunto set my hand and caused 
the great seal of the City of Stoughton to be affixed 
this twenty first day of April in the year two thousand 
and twenty one.  


 
Mayor Tim Swadley  








 


National Public Works Week Proclamation  


May 16 – 23, 2021 


“Stronger Together” 


 
WHEREAS, public works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities and services 


that are of vital importance to sustainable and resilient communities and to the public 


health, high quality of life and well-being of the people of the City of Stoughton; and, 


WHEREAS, these infrastructure, facilities and services could not be provided without 


the dedicated efforts of public works professionals, who are engineers, managers and 


employees at all levels of government and the private sector, who are responsible for 


rebuilding, improving and protecting our nation’s transportation, water supply, water 


treatment and solid waste systems, public buildings, and other structures and facilities 


essential for our citizens; and, 


WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders and children in the 


City of Stoughton to gain knowledge of and to maintain an ongoing interest and 


understanding of the importance of public works and public works programs in their 


respective communities; and, 


WHEREAS, the year 2021 marks the 61st annual National Public Works Week 


sponsored by the American Public Works Association/Canadian Public Works 


Association be it now, 


RESOLVED, I, Time Swadley, Mayor, do hereby designate the week May 16 – 22, 2021 


as National Public Works Week; I urge all citizens to join with representatives of the 


American Public Works Association and government agencies in activities, events and 


ceremonies designed to pay tribute to our public works professionals, engineers, 


managers and employees and to recognize the substantial contributions they make to 


protecting our national health, safety, and quality of life. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the 


City, 


DONE at the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin this 11th day of May, 2021. 


 


_________________________________ 


Tim Swadley, Mayor 


 


 







 








PROCLAMATION 


 NATIONAL POLICE WEEK 


May 9 – 15, 2021 


Peace Officers’ Memorial Day 


May 15, 2021 


 


 


Whereas, there are approximately 900,000 law enforcement officers serving in communities across the 


United States, including the dedicated members of the City of Stoughton Police Department; and 


 


Whereas, the City of Stoughton Police Department plays an essential role in safeguarding the rights and 


freedoms of all members of the community; and  


 


Whereas, it is important that all citizens know and understand the duties, responsibilities, hazards, and 


sacrifices of their law enforcement agency, and that members of our law enforcement agency recognize 


their duty to serve the people by safeguarding life and property, by protecting them against violence and 


disorder, and by protecting the innocent against deception and the weak against oppression; and  


 


Whereas, the men and women of the City of Stoughton Police Department unceasingly provide this vital 


public service; and  


 


Now, Therefore Be It Resolved, that I, Mayor of the City of Stoughton and the City Council hereby 


declares the week of May 9 to May 15, 2021 to be National Police Week in the City of Stoughton and 


May 15 as Peace Officers’ Memorial Day in honor of law enforcement officers who, through their 


courageous deeds, have made the ultimate sacrifice in service to their community, to include Stoughton 


Officer Paul Kraby, killed in the line of duty on September 30, 1934 , or have become disabled in the 


performance of duty, and let us recognize and pay respect to the survivors of our fallen heroes.  


 


Be It Further Resolved, that I, Mayor of the City of Stoughton and the City Council calls upon all 


citizens to join in commemorating law enforcement officers, past and present, who, by their faithful and 


loyal devotion to their responsibilities, have rendered a dedicated service to their communities and have 


established for themselves an enviable and enduring reputation for preserving the rights and security of all 


citizens. The City Council publicly salutes the service of law enforcement officers in our community and 


in communities across the nation.  


 


Signed this 11th day of May 2021 in the City of Stoughton, State of Wisconsin.  


 


 


 


__________________________________________ 


Tim Swadley, Mayor 


 


 


  








 


 


Proclamation 


Professional Municipal Clerks Week  


May 2 through May 8, 2021 


 
WHEREAS, the time honored role that Professional Municipal Clerks play in 


local government and election administration is critical to the endurance and prosperity 


of our state; and 


WHEREAS, our state’s 1,854 Professional Municipal Clerks strive to always be 


impartial in handling their official duties, guided by the overarching goal of providing 


equal treatment to all Wisconsinites, regardless of political affiliation; and 


WHEREAS, among numerous vital responsibilities, Professional Municipal 


Clerks serve as the official record keepers of their respective municipalities and are 


tasked with ensuring transparency and communication between the governing bodies 


they represent and the folks they serve; and 


WHEREAS, Professional Municipal Clerks provide essential support in the 


administration of elections, often preparing ballots, training election officials, and 


tabulating and certifying election results; and 


WHEREAS, even in the face of uncertainty and unprecedented challenges to 


election administration, especially over the past year due to the ongoing COVID-19 


pandemic, our professional municipal clerks never fail to display courage, flexibility, 


resilience, and dedication to the doctrine of free and fair elections; and 


WHEREAS, this week, the state of Wisconsin joins all Wisconsinites in 


appreciating and thanking our Professional Municipal Clerks for the important work 


they do; 


 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor of the City of Stoughton do hereby recognize the 


week of May 2 through May 8, 2021, as Professional Municipal Clerks Week, and further 


extend appreciation to, our Professional Municipal Clerks Holly Licht and Candee 


Christen; and to all Professional Municipal Clerks for the vital services they perform and 


their exemplary dedication to the communities they represent. 


Proclaimed this 11th day of May, 2021 


 


_________________________________________ 


 Tim Swadley, Mayor 








City of Stoughton Mental Health Month Proclamation 


 


 WHEREAS, mental health is essential to everyone’s overall health and well-being; and  
 
WHEREAS, in 2019 almost half of Stoughton High School students report experiencing 
significant problems within the past 12 months due to anxiety or prolonged sadness; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2019 over a quarter of Stoughton High School students report feeling so 
sad or hopeless almost every day for two weeks or more in a row within the past 12 
months that they stopped doing some usual activities; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2019 half of Stoughton High School students report rarely or never 
getting the emotional help they need; and 
 
WHEREAS, all Americans face challenges in life that can impact their mental health, 
especially during a pandemic; and  
 
WHEREAS, prevention is an effective way to reduce the burden of mental health 
conditions; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are practical tools that all people can use to improve their mental 
health and increase resiliency; and  
 
WHEREAS, mental health conditions are real and prevalent in our nation; and  
 
WHEREAS, with effective treatment, those individuals with mental health conditions can 
recover and lead full, productive lives; and  
 
WHEREAS, each business, school, government agency, health care provider, 
organization and citizen share the burden of mental health problems and has a 
responsibility to promote mental wellness and support prevention and treatment efforts.  
 
THEREFORE, I, Mayor, do hereby proclaim May 2021 as Mental Health Month in the 


City of Stoughton. As the Mayor, I also call upon the citizens, government agencies, 


public and private institutions, businesses, and schools in Stoughton to commit our 


community to increasing awareness and understanding of mental health, the steps our 


citizens can take to protect their mental health, and the need for appropriate and 


accessible services for all people with mental health conditions. 


Signed this 11th day of May 2021 in the City of Stoughton, State of Wisconsin.  


 


 


_____________________________________ 


Tim Swadley, Mayor 








Open Meetings Law


Ethics Law


Pa rl ia menta ry Proced ure


Public Records Law


Matthew P. Dregtrê, City Attorney
City of Stoughton







City Council - City of Stoughton 
June 11, 2019 


Matthew P. Dregne, City Attorney 


1. OPEN MEETINGS LAW.


A. WHAT DOES THE LAW REQUIRE?


All meetings of all local governmental bodies must be preceded by public
notice, publicly held in places reasonably accessible to the public, and open
to all citizens at all times unless otherwise expressly allowed by law.


B. WHAT IS A GOVERNMENTAL BODY?


A local agency, board, commission, committee, council, department or
public body corporate or politic created by constitution, statute, ordinance,
rule or order, or a formally constituted sub-unit of any of the foregoing.


The foregoing definition excludes a body or sub-unit formed for or meeting
for the purpose of collective bargaining under subchs. IV or V of ch. 111 of
the Wisconsin Statutes. However, ratification or approval of a collective
bargaining agreement must be done in open session.


C. WHAT IS A MEETING?


(1) Meeting presumed: If one-half or more of the members of a
governmental body are present, the meeting is rebuttably presumed
to be for governmental purposes.


(2) Two-part test:


a. There is a gathering for the purpose of discussing, deciding or
information gathering regarding governmental business;


b. The number of members participating is sufficient to
determine the body's course of action (this can be the
affirmative power to pass or the negative power to defeat a
proposal). In Stoughton, it is possible for 4 members of the
council to defeat a proposal (8 members constitute a quorum,
so 4 members could defeat a proposal).


L:IDOCS\005649\000004\MISC\3GH2340.DOCX 


0423181621 







(3) "Walking quorum"i A walking quorum results when a series of
gatherings occur among separate groups that collectively constitute a


number of members sufficient to determine the body's course of
action, and the participants agree, tacitly or explicitely, to act
uniformly. According to the Department of Justice Compliance
Guide, the essential feature of a "walking quorum" is the element of
agreement among members of a body to act uniformly in sufficient
numbers to reach a quorum.


(4) The "wateríng hole meeting." This type of meeting occurs when
members of a governmental body gather, at a time and place other
than a noticed, regular or special meeting, to discuss governmental
business. This could be a gathering at a local tavern after a council
meeting. It could be a gathering at a coffee shop some morning or
afternoon. It could be anywhere. If the "number test" is satisfied,
this meeting would violate the Open Meeting Law.


(5) The "community organizatíon meeting." This type of meeting
occurs when a group (such as the Arts Council, the School Board,
Sustainable Stoughton, the Chamber of Commerce, or another


organization) holds a meeting to discuss an issue before the City,
and invites Stoughton alderpersons to attend. If the "number test" is
satisfied, this would be a "meeting" of the common council under
the law. Attendance at this type of meeting can be made lawful by
providing public notice of the meeting, and complying with the other
requirements of the law (for example, the meeting must be open and


accessible to the public).


(6) Wrítten correspondence: Attorney General says that circulation of a
paper or hard-copy document, which is a largely one-way flow of
information, with any exchanges spread over considerable time with
no conversation-like interaction, is probably not a meeting.


(7) Email: Attorney General says emails may constitute a meeting.
Courts are likely to consider (1) the number of participants; (2) the


number of communications; (3) the time-frame in which the


communications occurred; (a) the extent of the conversation-like
interactions. Beware that emails can be forwarded, and replies can


be sent to large groups, depriving the original sender of control over
the number and identity of recipients.


L:\DOCS\005649\000004\MISC\3K955 I 0.DOCX
0607191205 2







According to the Attorney General, inadvertent violations can be
reduced if email is used mainly to transmit information one-way,
with the originator reminding people not to reply.


Because the law is unclear on email, the Attorney General's office
"strongly discourages the members of every governmental body
from using electronic mail to communicate about issues within the
body's realm of authority."


(8) Socíal gatheríng: A social or chance gathering that is not intended
to avoid the open meeting law is not subject to the open meetings
law.


D. Wuar rs ADEeUATE NorrcE?


(1) The notice must be specific and detailed enough to apprise members
of the public and the news media of the subject matter of the
meeting. The Attorney General says "the public is entitled to the
best notice that can be given at the time the notice is prepared."


(2) Public comment periods are specifically authorized, but are limited
to receiving information, not acting on it.


E. CIosBn SESSIoN ISSUES.


(1) There must be a statutory basis to meet in closed session. Section
re.8s(r).


(2) A contemplated closed session must be noticed as such


(3) A spontaneous closed session is allowed, but there are limits on
when the body may reconvene in open session.


(4) The Attorney General advises that a governmental body should vote
in open session, unless the vote is clearly an integral part of what is
authorized to be done in closed session. In other words, would
voting in open session undermine the authoúzed closed session
discussion?


L:\DOCS\005649\000004\MISC\3cH2340.DOCX
0423181621 J







F REeo THE ARTIcLE PUBLISHED BY THE Leecug oF .WIscoNsTN


MtxIcpeLITIES ('oUnderstanding and Complying with Wisconsin's Open
Meeting Law").


Usp rHB DnpaRrvreNr o¡' JusrlcB CoIæUANCE GuInn, AVAILABLE AT THE


DOJ wEssrTE (www. doj. s tate.w i. us) .


Sounces oF LAw: Section 2-2 of City Code of Ordinances; Sections 19.59
and946.13 of the \Misconsin Statutes.


UsE or oFFICE FoR rRIVATE cAIN: Public officials are prohibited from
using their offlrces to obtain anything of substantial value for the private
benefit of themselves, their immediate family, or organizations with which
they are associated. 'Wis. Stat. $ 19.59(l)(a); Section 2-2(g)(I).


Note the application of the rule to actions affecting a whole class of
similarly situated interests, in which the official's interest is not
significantly greater than other affected interests. Examples: proposed
development affecting the neighborhood; special assessment affecting the
whole street; public improvement project that would disproportionately
impact the official's property.


G


2. ETHICS.


L:\DOCS\005649\000004Wf iSC\3cH2340.DOCX
042318t62t


A


B


4







C OppnRnqc oR RECEIVING ANvTHING oF vALUE. No person may give and no
public official may receive "anything of value" if it could reasonably be
expected to influence the local public official's vote, official action or
judgment, or could reasonably be considered as a reward for any offrcial
action or inaction. Wis. Stat. $ 19.59(1Xb). See State of Wisconsin Ethics
Board guidance.


AssrarNNc FRoM oFFICIAL ACTIoN. The State of Wisconsin Government
Accountability Board recommends that the official should leave that
portion of the meeting involving discussion, deliberations or votes related
to the matters. The minutes should reflect the absence of the official.


E. PzuvaTB INTERESTS IN PUBLIC CoNTRACTS _ cLASS E FELoNY.


(1) A public official may not participate in the making of a contract in
his or her official capacity if the official has a direct or indirect
financial intcrest in the contract. Wis. Stat. $ 946.13(1Xb).


(2) A public official may not in his or her private capacity negotiate or
bid for or enter into a contract in which the public offlrcial has a
direct or indirect financial interest if the official is authorized or
required by law to participate in his or her capacity as such officer or
employee in the making of that contract. Wis. Stat. $ 946.13(1)(a).
Abstaining from voting doçs not solve the problem.


Exceptions: $15,000 in receipts and disbursements or less per year.
Other exemptions can apply to bankers, partners in law f,rrms and
persons who own no more than 2o/o of the stock of the corporation
involved.


D


F


L:\DOCS\005649\000004\À4iSC\3GH2340.DOCX
0423181621


AovtsoRy oPINIoNS. An official may apply to the City Ethics Board for an
advisory opinion.


(1) Requests must be in writing, and must provide all the material facts


(2) Following an advisory opinion is prima facie evidence of intent to
comply with the law.


5







(3) The ethics board may not make the opinion public, except:


a.


b


V/ith the requester's consent;


In a redacted form that prevents disclosure ofthe requester's
identity; or


If the requester makes or purports to make public all or part
of the advisory opinion.


G SBe DaNIEL OLSoN ARTIcLE FoR DETAILED DrscussroN ("Ethics and
Conflict of Interest Rules").


3. PenrnvrBNTARY PRocpounp.


Sources of law: Rules of the Common Council, Committees, Boards and
Commissions (see attached copy); Robert's Rules of Order, Newly
Revised; Wisconsin Open Meetings Law.


PeRThUBNTARY PRocEDURE. Rules of deliberation that are intended to
ensure fairness to all members of a body, equality among members, and
orderly processes.


C. Rr-lt Bs oF couRTESy AND DECoRUM.


(1) One person at a time should have the floor, and every speaker should
first be recognized by the Chair.


(2) Someone not recognized should generally not interrupt a speaker.
There aÍe a few exceptions. A speaker could be interrupted to make
a "point of privilege" (like noting that you cannot hear), to make a
'þoint of order" (relating to something you believe is inappropriate
conduct of the meeting), or to make a parliamentary inquiry.


D. MorroNs


(l) A Main Motion should be made and seconded.


(2) Discussion follows


LTDOCS\005649\000004\l\4ISC\3cH2340.DOCX
0423t81621


c


A.


B


6







(3) When discussion ends, the chair should call for a vote.


(4) Additional motions can be made, and are ranked. Examples include
a motion to amend, to refer, to lay on the table. See attached
summary of basic information on motions.


4. Pusuc REcoRDS Lew.


A. Wuer rs A RECoRD?


(l) 'oRecord" is defined as "any material on which written, drawn,
printed, spoken, visual or electromagnetic information is recorded or
preserved, regardless of physical form or characteristics, which has
been created or is being kept by an authority .. .."


(2) "Record" includes records not required to be maintained if in
possession of officer, but materials must have a sufficient connection
with the function of the offlrce to qualiff as public record.


(3) 'oRecord" does not include personal drafts and notes and personal
property.


'WHer 
IS AN AUTHoRITv? "Authority" includes "elected officials, local


officers, agencies, boards, councils, commissions, committees, departments
and any other public body corporate and politic created by constitution,
law, ordinance, rule or order or any subunit of the foregoing."


C. WHO IS A CUSToDIAN OF RECORDS?


(1) The chairperson of a committee of elected officials is the legal
custodian of records of the committee.


(2) Every authority shall designate in writing one or more positions
occupied by an officer or employee of the authority or of the unit of
government of which it is part as a legal custodian to fulfill its
duties.


B


L:\DOCS\005649\000004\l\4ISC\3GH2340.DOCX
0423t81621 7







D. WHaT ARE THE CUSToDIAN's oulms?


(1) The legal custodian is responsible for performing all duties imposed
by the public records law. The custodian shall 'osafely keep and
preserve all property and things received from the officer's
predecessor or other persons and required by law to be filed, kept or
deposited in the officer's office. Upon expiration of the term of
office or when a vacancy occurs, each officer must deliver to his or
her successor all such property and things in his or her custody, and
the officer's successor shall issue a receipt to the officer which must
then be filed in the clerk's offiçe."


(2) Retain records for the time required by law (see attached record
retention guidelines).


(3) Provide aocess to records as required by law.


L:\DOCS\005649\000004WfISC\3CH2340.DOCX
0423181621 I







Open Meetings Law







Governing Bodies 135R10


Leqnl Commenr


Urudensrnrudiruq & Corvrplyiruq wirh


By Claire Silverman, Legal Counsel


\ui;i;,:ïäï'
force to every city and village,


regardless ofsize or other char-


acteristics. Because it applies


whenever a govemmental body


conducts the business that it is


entrusted with, it is critical that


members of local governmen-


tal bodies be aware of the open


meeting law and understand its


requirements. This month's legal


comment provides an overview


of the law, as well as a more


detailed explanation of some of


the law's key provisions.


The open meeting law is found in
sections 19.81 ttrrough 19.98 of the
Wisconsin Statutes. The law does not
require absolute openness. However,
the legislature has declared that the
"public is entitled to the ft¡llest and
most complete information regarding
the affairs of government as is compaÈ
ible with the conduct of governmental
business."l To that end, the law re-
quires that all meetings of govemmen-
tal bodies be preceded by public notice,
be held in places reasonably acces-
sible to the public, and be open to all
citizens except as otherwise specifically
provided.2 The law authorizes govern--
mental bodies to meet in closed session
if the subject matter comes within one
of a set number of exemptions set forth
in the law.3


Drrncrrroxs Ann K¡y To
Uxopnsr¿xorxc Lrrr


The open meeting law only applies to
meetings of a 


o'govemmental body" as


defined by Wis. Stat. sec. 19.82(l). This
definition, together with the definition
of "meetingo'in sec. 19.82(2), is the key
to understanding when the open meet-
ing law applies to a particular gathei;


ing of local officials. A "governmental
body" includes a "local agenc¡ board,
commission, committee, council,
department or public body corporate
and politic created by constitution,
statute, ordinance, rule or order," as


well as ooformally constituted" subunits
of any of these bodies. Thus, a common
council and village board are obviously
subject to the open meeting law, as


are municipal committees, boards and
commissions. Quasi-govemmental bod-
ies are also subject to the open meeting
law.4


Bodies formed for or meeting for the
purpose of collective bargaining are
specifically excluded from the defini-
tion of "govemmental body."5


A "meeting" is defined as the conven-
ing of members of a governmental
body for the purpose ofexercising the
responsibilities vested in that body.
A meeting does not include social or
chance gatherings that are not intended
to avoid the law When one-half or
more of the members of a govern-
mental body are prgsent, a meeting is
"rebuttably presumed" to be for offcial
þurposes.6


l. Wis. Stat. sec.l9.8l(l).
2. Wis. Stat. secs. 19.81 and 19.83.
3. The exemptions are set forth under sec. 19.85.
4. Aprivate entity is a 


o'quasi-governmental corporation" within the meaning of the open meetings and public records
laws if, based on the totality of circumstances, it resembles a governmental corporation in fr¡nction, effect, or status.
Key factors include but are not limited to: (l) the entity's finances; (2) whether the entþ serves a public function; (3)
whether it appears to the public to be a govemment entity; (4) whether the entity is subject to government conhol;
and (5) the degree of access that government bodies have to the entity's records. No one factoi is determinative and
determinations must be made on a case-by-case basis. State of llisconsinv, Beaver Dam Area Development Corpora-
tion,2008 tttll 90. See Governing Bodies 386 for a more detailed summary of this case.


5. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.82(l).
6. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.82(2).


244 t}le Municipality August 2014







teqal Commrrur


!iliscor,tsir,,l's Operu Meeri¡¡q Lnw


In addition to the above two defini-
tions, the term "open session" is also
important. It is defined as a meeting
"which is held in a place reasonably
accessible to members of the public
and open to all citizens at all times."7
The Msconsin Supreme Court has
interpreted this to mean "that a govern-
mental body must meet in a facility
which gives reasonable public access,
not total access, and that it may not
systematically exclude or arbitrarily
refuse admittance to any individual."S


case, the Wisconsin Supreme Court
ruled that the test ofwhether a meeting
occurs is fwofold: "First, there must be
a purpose to engage in governmental
business, be it discussion, decision
or information gathering. Second,
the number ofmembers present must
be sufficient to determine the parent
body's course ofaction regarding the
proposal discussed."


With regard to the second part of the
Showers test, the potential of a gather-
ing to determine the parent body's
course ofaction concerning a proposal
can be either the affirmative power to
pass or the negative power to defeat.
Thus, a gathering ofless than one-half
the members of a body may constitute
a meeting if the number of mem-
bers present constitutes a "negative
quorum,".(i.e., a sufficient number to
block action by the body on a particu-
lar issue).


For example, when a proposal requires
a two-thirds vote ofthe entire body,
such as a budget amendment under
Wis. Stat. sec. 65.90(5), if more than
one-third of the govemmental body
members are present at an unnoticed
meeting, discussion of that partiou-
lai proposal would violate the open
meeting law This is what happened in
the Showers case. Four out ofeleven


members met privately to discuss a
budget matter. The court held that
the meeting was illegal because four
members constituted a negative quo-
rum since they could determine the
outcome by voting as a block against
the budget change, which required a
two-thirds maj ority vote.


The same principle would seem to ap-
ply with regard to matters that can be
passed by a vote based on the qubrum
rather than total membership, such as
a majority or fraction of a quorum.
In such cases, the minimum figure
for triggering the open meeting law
may be less if it is known that fewer
members will attend a meeting. For
example, if a village board has seven
members and all attend a meeting, a
matter requiring a majority vote may
be blocked by four members. But if
only four members attend, the matter
may be blocked by two.lo


Local officials must also be aware of
and avoid what is sometimes called a
"walking quorum.'o A "walking quo-
rum" is a series of gatherings among
separate groups of members of a gov-
ernmental bod¡ each less than quorum
size, who agree, tacitly or explicitly,
to act uniformly in sufficient num-


Open Meetíng Løw
continued on page 246


Wnn¡¡ Is TH¡nn A Menr¡Nc Sun¡ocr
To TnB L¡w?


The slmplistic ans\ryer to this ques-
tion is, "Whenever a govemmehtal
body meets." Although the application
of the open meeting law is usually
straightforward, determining whether
there is a "meeting" can sometimes be
complicated and there are pitfalls for
the unwary.


The statutory definition of a meeting,
which provides that a meeting is pre-
sumed if one-half of the membçrs of
a govemmental body are present at a
meeting, may lull officials into a false
sense ofsecurity, The trouble is that
the courts have interpreted the law to
apply when there is less than one-half
of the body present. Inthe Showers9


7. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.82(3).
8. State ex rel. Badke u. Wlage Bd. of Greendale, 173 Wis.2d 553, 580, 494 N.W.2d 408, 418 (1993).


-1. S!2( e1rel. Newspapers, Inc. v, Showers, 135 Wis.2d 77,102,398 N.W.2d 154,165 (iggZ).
10. A UW law review note criticizedthe Showers court for not considering this issue, and'recommends that "To be safe,


offioials will need to hold in public all meetings at which at least a majority of a quorum is present." lggg Wis. L.
Rev. 827, 851, 856. fhþ is hardly the safe approach where, as in the example in the above fext, less than a majority
of the quorum can block a matter. Consider also an eleven member villagaboard. A quorum ofthe board is six and
four is thus a majority of the quon¡m. So th¡ee can defeat a matter if only six are present.


the Municipality August 2014 245
I







Commerur


Open Meeting Low
from page 245


ber to reach a quoru..l1 A series of
gatherings, telephone calls, or e-mails
between a small enough number of
officers so as not to trigger the law at
one specific gathering may constitute
an illegal meeting.12


From the public's perspective, the
danger of the walking quorum is that
it may produce a consensus or pre-
determined outcome with the result
being that the publicly-held meeting
is a mere formality without any real
discussion or consideration ofthe issue
being conducted in public.


The use of a walking quorum to
conduct business is subject to prosecu-
tion under the open meeting law13
Local officials must use caution when
using electronic message technologies.
These technologies have the potential
to create walking quorums because of
the rapid pace of communication and
the inability of the sender to control
whether and how other members may
choose to respond. For this reason, the
Attorney General strongly discourages
members of govemmental bodies from
using electronic mail to communicate
with other members of the body about
matters within the body's realm of au-
thority. I 4 The Wisconsin Department
of Justice's 2010 Open Meeting Com-
pliance Guide provides as follows:


Because the applicability
of the open meetings law to
such electronic communica-
tions depends on the particular


way in which a specific mes-
sage technology is used, these
technologies create special
dangers for governmental of-
ficials trying to comply with
the law Although two mem-
bers of a governmental body
larger than four members may
generally discuss the body's
business without violating the
open meetings law, features
like "forward" and "reply to
all" common in electronic mail
programs deprive a sender of
control over the number and
identity of the recipients who
eventually may have access to
the sender's message. More-
over, it is quite possible that,
through the use of electronic
mail, a quorum of a govern-
mental body may receive in-
formation on a subject within
the body's jurisdiction in an
almost real-time basis, just as


they would receive it in a phys-
ical gathering of the members.


Because e-mail is so easy, quick and
inexpensive, it is unlikely that govem-
mental bodies will be able or willing
to refrain from using it completely.
However, it is advisable to set proce-
dures in place or parameters for the
use of e-mail to ensure that its use


does not violate the open meeting law.
The Attorney General's Open Meet-
ing Compliance Guide suggests that
inadvertent violations ofthe open
meetings law through the use of elec-
tronic communications can be reduced


"if electronic mail is used principally


to transmit information one-way to a
body's membership; if the originator
of the message reminds recipients to
reply only to the originator, if at all;
and if message recipients are scrupu-
lous about minimizing the content and


distribution of their replies."


In addition to being careful about the
number of members of a particular
body that gather to talk about topics
pertaining to that body, it is important
to be aware that a "meeting" might
take place when a sufficient number
of members are present at meetings of
other govemmental bodies, Clearly,
planned joint meetings of govemmen-
tal bodies must be separately noticed
by each governmental body planning
to attend the joint meeting. But what
about situations where members of
one govemmental body independently
attend the meeting of another govern-
mental body?


Inlhe Badke care,ls a majority ofthe
village board regularly attended meet-
ings of the village plan commission
to gather information about subjects
over which they had decision-making
responsibilities. The Wisconsin
Supreme Court concluded that since
the trustees regularly attended plan
commission meetings, the gatherings
were not chance and therefore should
have been noticed as meetings of the
village board. Specificall¡ the Wiscon-
sin Supreme Court held that when
one-half or more of the members of a


governmental body attend a meeting of
another govemmental body to gather
information about a subject over which


ll. Showers, 135 Wis.2d at 92.
12. SeeShowers,3gSN.V/.2dat16l,l64;l988Wis.L.Rev.at846-7,ïS1;GoverningBodies33gand3Tl.
13. State exrel. Lynchv. Conta,7l Wis.2d 662,687,239N.'W.2d 313 (1976).
14. Ilisconsin Department of Justice Open Meeting Compliance Guide (2010), at p. 8 citing Correspondence, October 3,


2000.
15. Badke, supra, n.7.


246 the Municipalify August 2014







Lrqnl Commerur


they have ultimate decision-making
responsibility, such a gathering is a
"meeting" within the meaning of the
open meeting law and must be noticed
as such, unless the gathering is social
or chance.


Thus, whenever a majority of the
members of one govemmental body
regularly attend or plan in advance to
attend the meeting of another govern-
mental body, it is necessary to provide
notice that a majority of that body will
be attending the meeting of another
body for the purpose ofobserving
and gathering information. However,
municipalities should avoid routinely
placing boilerplate language designed
to comply wilh Badke at the bottom of
all committee, commission and board
meetings notices.


Such a Badke notice should be pro-
vided only if:


l) governing body members rou-
tinely attend the meetings of a
second body, such as a committee
or commission;


or


2) the chair of the goveming body
or clerk has been informed or
otherwise has reason to believe
that governing body members will
likely be attending the meeting of
the second body.


For a further discussion of this issue
see Goveming Bodies 353.


Badke also held that when a quorum
of a goveming body is present at a
meeting of a second governmental
body merely because all of the indi-


vidual members of the quorum make
up the membership of the second
govemmental bod¡ additional notice
is not required.16


Local officials should not place too
much reliance on the exception to the
definition of a meeting for chance or
social gatherings. Remember, that
exception is qualified by the tag "not
intended to avoid" the law. Ifa nega-
tive quorum (or more) of a body gets
together by chance or for a social oc-
casion there is no violation ofthe law
unless the discussion turns to matters
pertaining to that bod¡ in which case
the gathering probably converts to an
improper meeting.


By now it should be clear that govern-
mental body members must be very
careful when discussing public body
b-usiness with other members outside
of a properly noticed meeting. The
numbers test raises a troubling ques-
tion, however, relating to the legality
of one-on-one conversations between
members outside of a meeting. The
obvious problem is that prohibiting
person-to-person discussions outside
of meetings does not jibe with how
govemment works. Officials need to
discuss matters they are working on.
In addition, the legislature chose not
to make the requirements of the open
meeting law automatically applicable
whenever two members of a govem-
mental body get together.


The Wisconsin Supreme Court strong-
ly suggested in an earlier case that
such one-on-one discussions would be
protected by the First Amendment and
would not violate the open meeting


Open Meetíng Law
continued on page 248


be clenn rhnr


qovERNMENTAI


body MEMbERs


MUST br veny


cARE[uI whe rrl


discussiNq public


body bus'ir,,less


wirh orhEn


mEvrbens oursidE


oI n pnope n[y


¡loricEd me


ould


16. Id. at 417-418.


the Municipality August 2014 247







Leqal Commrrur


REA5ONAbIEru e ss


srnrudnnd


Rccourur rhe


ci ncu vr srANcEs


of rhe cRse iru


dErEnnniruiruq


whErhen


noricr is


suf I


Open Meeting Løw


from page 247


law, but, unfortunately, this was not
discussed inlhe Showers or Badlre


"ur"a. 
l7


If govemmental body members should
arguably violate the law by discussing
matters outside of a meeting, a wise
course to take would be to make sure
that the matter receives an appropri-
ate level ofdiscussion at a properly
noticed meeting before it is voted on.
This may help avoid prosecution and
decrease the likelihood that a court
will void the action.


The open meeting law requires that all
meetings of a govemmental body be
preceded by public notice. The presid-
ing officer of a govemmental bod¡ or
that person's designee (typically the
clerþ, must give proper notice of a
meeting twenty-four hours in advance.
If good cause exists and twenty-four-
hour notice is impossible or impracti-
cal, shorter notice may be given but
in no case may the notice be provided
less than two hours in advance of the
meeting.lS If the notice is mailed, it
must be mailed early enough to allow
it to arrive within the statutory time
frame.l9


must be in such form as is o'reasonably


likely to apprise" members of the
public and the news media of the time,
date, place and subject matter of the
meeting.


A few years ago, the Wisconsin
Supreme Court ovem¡led Støte ex


rel. H.D. Enterprises II, LLC v. City
of Stoughton, which held that gen-
eral notice of a topic (e.g,, licenses)
is sufficiently specific to comply
with the notice requirement in sec.


lg.s4(Ð.21 The Wisconsin Supreme
Court stated that the notice require-
ment in sec. 19.84 is not amenable to
a bright line rule but, rather is subject
to a "reasonableness standard." This
reasonableness standard requires tak-
ing into account the circumstances of
the case in determining whether notice
is sufficient. This includes analyzing
such factors as the burden ofproviding
more detailed notice, whether the sub-
ject is ofparticular public interest, and
whether it involves non-routine action
that the public would be unlikely to
anticipate.22


The court further stated:


The determination of whether
notice is sufficient should be


based upon what information
is available to the officer no-
ticing the meeting at the time
notice is provided, and based
upon what it would be reason-


able for the officer to know.
Thus, whether there is particu-


Tu,,


REQU iR Es


rnkiruq irrrro
Norrcn RneurnnupNr


The notice must speciff the date, time,
place and subjeot matter of the meet-
ing, and any contemplated closed ses-


sions must be included.20 The notice


17. The earlier case is State ex rel. Lynch v. Conta, Tl Wis.2d 662,239 N.W.2d
313, 331 (1976), and this issue is discussed in Governing Bodies 309,
which was published in the July 1987 issue of the Municipality,pp,262-
263.


18. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.84(3).
19.77 Op. Att'y Gen.312 (1988).
20. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.84(2).
21, State ex rel. Buswell v. Tomah Area School Dístrict, 2007 W 7l
22. 1d.,2007 WlTl para.28.


248 the Municipality August 2014







Leqnl Commrtr


lar public interest in the subject
of a meeting or whether a spe-
cific issue within the subject of
the meeting will be covered,
and how that affects the speci-
ficity required, cannot be de-
termined from the standpoint
of when the meeting actually
takes place. Rather, it must be
gauged from the standpoint of
when the meeting is noticed.23


League attorneys are often asked
whether it is appropriate to rely on
broad umbrella clauses such as "old
business" or "miscellaneous business"
on the agenda to take up unforeseen
matters which arise shortly before the
scheduled meeting. In most cases, the
ans\ryer is no. It is best to deal with
late-breaking events by amending
the notice, with twenty-four hours,
or posþoning the matter until it can
be properly noticed. Minor matters
may appropriately be subsumed under
broader topics, but matters of particu-
lar interest should be given explicit
notice. In recent years, the attorney
general has taken the view that govem-
ing bodies may not rely on a general
designation clause in their agenda,
such as "other business," to discuss,
receive information or take action on
a matter not identified in the notice of
that meeting.


A related issue is whether governmen-
tal bodies may discuss or act on mat-
ters raised by citizens during a "public
commenf' or "citizen participation"
portion of a meeting if the subject is
not on the agenda. The open meet-
ing law allows governing bodies to
designate a period for public comment
in the notice of the meeting.24 During
such a designated public comment
period, a governmental body may "dis-
cuss" information raised by a member
of the public.25 A governmental body
may not take action on matters raised
during a public comment period if the
subject was not on the agenda.


Some governing body members have
inquired whether they, as members
of the public, can bring up items not
specifically designated on the agenda
under a period of public comment
allowed by Wis. Stat. sec. 19.84(2).
The answer is no. The limited excep-
tion allowing members of the public
to bring up items not specifically on
the agenda during a period ofnoticed
public comment was intended to allow
local governments to be responsive
to their constituents and to allow the
goveming body to receive information
from members of the public. It was
not intended to allow governing body
members to bring up items for discus-
sion without placing the items on the
agenda. Any such use ofthe excep-


tion by goveming bodies in that way
will likely be viewed as an attempt to
circumvent the notice requirements of
the open meeting law.26


With regard to who must be given
notice of a meeting, notice has to be
given to any news medium that has
requested the notice, and to the official
newspaper or, if there is none, to a
newspaper, TV or radio station that
is likely to give notice in the area.21
The open meeting law does not require
that the notice actually be published,2S
although it does require that notice
be given as required by other specific
statutes goveming the subject matter
(e.g., Wis. Stat. sec. 62.23 (7)(d)2,re-
quires a Class 2 notice be published in
advance ofa proposed rezoning).2g As
an alternative to written notice, tele-
phone or other verbal communication
to members of the news media is suf-
ficient.3O The law also requires some
form of,direct notice to the public; this
requirement may be met by posting
the notice in o-ne, or preferably several,
public places.3l


A limited exception to the notice
requirement allows subunits of gov-
ernmental bodies32 to meet during the
meeting of the parent bod¡ during a
recess, or directly after such meeting,


Open Meeting Law
continued on page 250


23. Id.,para32.
24. Wis, Stat. sec, 19.84(2).
25. \Vis. Stat. sec. 19.84(2).
26. For additional discussion of this issue see Goveming Bodies 361.
27. Wis. Stat. sec. 19,84(lXb).


ll. Uarlnv. rl/ray,473 F. Supp. ll3l (8.D. Wis. 1979); 77 Op.An'y Gen.312 (t9SS).
29. Notice requirements of other statutes must be met in addition to the requirements of the open meeting law. Wis. Stat.


sec. 19,84(lXa).
30. 77 Op. Att'y Gen. 312 (198S).
31. wis. stat. scc. 19.8a(l)(b); 63 op. Atr'y Gen. 509, 510-11 (1976);66 op. An'y Gen. 93,95 (1977).
32. The League has opined that statutory boards or commissions, such as a iibraryboard, a utility commission and a


police and fire commission, are not subunits of a common council or village board, although committees (e.g., a
finance committee, a public safety committee) are typically subunits. Govérning Bodies 3 i0.


the Municipalify August 2014 249







Leqnl Commrrur


Open Meeting Løw


fron page 249


to discuss or act on matters that were
the subject of the meeting of the parent
body.33 The presiding officer of the
parent body must announce the time,
place and subject maffer of the subunit
meeting in advance at the meeting of
the parent body. This announcement
must mention any contemplated closed
session.34


No charge may be made for provid-
ing notice to meet the requirements
of the open meeting law Howeveç
once these notice requirements have
been met, charges may be made, under
the public records laq for additional
notices and supplementary informa-
tion.35


Closno Sessroxs


Generally, meetings of governmental
bodies must be held in open session.
However, the law authorizes meetings
to be closed if the subject matter falls
within one of the specific exemptions
set forth in V/is. Stat. sec. 19.85. Note
that the general authority to close a
meeting is inapplicable where specific
authority requires openness, as in the
case ofhearings before a police and
fire commission under Wis. Stat. sec.
62.13(5), and Board of Review meet-
ings under sec. 70.46(2m).


As a general rule, we recommend us-
ing the term "closed" session or meet-
ing instead of "executive" session,


which suggests that meetings may be


closed whenever the body wishes to
take action on a matter.


Section 19.85 authorizes closing meet-
ings for a number of reasons including
the following:


l) deliberating after a quasi-judicial
hearing;


2) considering the discipline of an
employee or person licensed by
the municipality;


3) considering employment, promo-
tion, compensation or perfor-
mance evaluation data of a public
employee;


4) deliberating or negotiating the
purchase ofpublic properties, or
conducting other business when-
ever competitive or bargaining
reasons require a closed session;36


5) considering financial, medical,
social, personal history and dis-
ciplinary data of specific persons
or specific personnel problems
which, if discussed in public,
would be likely to have a substan-
tial adverse effect on the person's
reputation; and


6) confening with legal counsel with
respect to litigation in which the
body is involved or is likely to
become involved.


See Wis. Stat. sec. 19.85(l)(a)-O,
for the specific exemptions. For more
detailed information on the appropriate
use of these exemptions, see Govern-
ing Bodies 375.


'When deciding whether it is appro-
priate to hold a particular meeting in
closed session, a good rule of thumb
is to ask the preliminary question: "Is
there a reason why this matter is best


discussed privately, other than the de-


sire to escape the scrutiny of the public
eye or the mçdia?" When closing a


meeting is appropriate, it is important
to follow the statutory procedures.


As mentioned above, closed sessions
planned in advance must be specified
in the public notice; however, if the
closed session was not contemplated,
the meeting may still be closed for a
valid reason.37 the body must first
convene in open session and vote to
go into closed session, Before the vote
is taken, the presiding officer must
announce the nature ofthe business to
be discussed and the specific statutory
provision which authorizes the closed
session. The vote of each member
must be recorded and preserved.3S


Attendance at the closed session is
limited to the body, necessary staffand
other officers, such as the clerk and
attorney, and any other persons whose
presence is necessary for the business
at hand. If the meeting is of a subunit
of a parent body, such as a committee,
the members of the parent body (i.e.,
the common council or village board)
must be allowed to attend the closed
session, unless the rules of the parent
body provide otherwise.39 Discussion
in the closed session must be limited to
the topics for which the meeting was
closed.4o


33. IVis. Stat. ses. 19.84(6).
34. 65 Op. Att'y Gen. Preface vi (1976).
35. 77 Op. Att'y Gen. 312 (1988); Governing Bodies 323.
36. This exemption was read rather narrowly by the Wisconsin court of appeals in State ex rel Citizens for Responsible


Development v. City of Milton,2007 WI App. I14, 300 Wis.2d 649.731N.W.2d 640. For an in-depth summary of
that case, see Goveming Bodies 380 (the Municipality, May 2007).


37. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.8aQ);66 Op. Att'y Gen. 106 (1977); Governing Bodies 325.
38. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.85(l). These requirements also apply to a closed session of a subunit meeting without notice as


provided by sec. 19.84(6). 65 Op. Att'y Gen. Preface vi (1976).
39. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.89.


250 the Municipality August 2014







Leqnl Commrrur


Questions sometimes arise as to
whether a member of a governmental
body may tape record closed ses-
sions. An individual member of a
governmental body does not have the
right to tape record closed sessions of
the govemmental body. Although a
governmental body is obliged under
sec. 19.90 to make a reasonable effort
to accommodate any person desiring
to record, film or photograph an open
meeting (provided the person does not
do so in a disruptive manner), the law
does not apply to closed sessions.4l


A governmental body may not re-
convene in open session until twelve
hours after completion of the closed
session, unless notice ofthe subse-
quent open session was given at the
same time and in the same manner as


the public notice of the meeting held
prior to the closed session.42


meeting law.45 Members may protect
themselves from liability by voting in
favor of a motion to prevent the viola-
tion (e.g., voting against going into
an unauthorized closed session).46 In
addition to finding personal liability
for violations of the law a court may
also order the violations to cease and
void action illegally taken. In order to
void action taken in violation of the
open meeting law, the court must find
that the public interest in enforcing the
open meeting law outweighs the pub-
lic interest in sustaining the validity of
the action taken.47


Coxcr,us¡oN


For additional information on Wis-
consin's open meeting law, see the
Wisconsin Department of Justice's
Open Meeting Compliance Guide on
the Department of Justice's website
wwwdoj.state.wi.us. Another good
source of information is the State Bar
of Wisconsin, Govemment Lawyers
Division's lYisconsin Public Records
and Open Meeting Handbookwhich
is available from the State Bar for a
fee. The Bar's phone number is (800)
728-7788.


Em brns


of locnl


qovERNMENTAI


bod¡Es MUsr


undensrnrrld nnd


coMply wirh rl-le


oPEN MEEr¡rrrq lnw


Members of local governmental bod-
ies must understand and comply with
the open meeting law. As with other
legal matters, officials should consult
their municipal attomeys if they have
questions.


Pru¡,lrrcs.rNo Rnmorns


Violations of the open meeting law
may be prosecuted by the district at-
torney, the attomey general, or by a
private individual, ifthe district attor-
ney does not take the case.43 Govern-
mental body members who violate the
open meeting law are subject to a for-
feiture of between $25 and $300; this
is a personal liability which may not
be reimbursed by the municipality.44
However, members may very likely
obtain reimbursement for costs and
attomey fees incurred in defending
against prosecutions under the open GovemingBodies 135R10 (}


40. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.85(t).
4l. See 66 Op. Att'y Gen. 318 (1977).
42. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.85(2).
43. Stat. sec. 19.97(l), (2) and (4).
44. Wis. Stat. sec, 19.96.
45. Wis. Stat. secs. 62.115,895.35 and 895.46(l)(a);77 Op. An'y Gen. 177


(1e88).
46 Wis. Stat. sec. 19.96.
47. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.97(3).


the Municipality August 2014 251







Ethics Law







ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL


Sec. 2-1. Forn of gover:rment.


The cþ operates underthe mayor-councilform
of government under Wis. Stats. cia.62.
(Code 1986, $ 1.01)


Sec. 2-2. Code of ethics.


(a) Defr,nítiozs. Ttre following words, tems and
phrases, when used in this section, shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in this subsection,
except where the context clearly indicates a dif-
ferent 6saning:


Finønciø|, ínterest means any interest which
shall yield, directly or indirectly, a monetar5l or
other material benefit to the ofÊcer or employee
or to any person employing or retaining the ser-
vices of the officer or employee.


Immed,íøte fa,rnily means an individual's spouse;
and an individual's relative by marriage, linsal
descent or adoption who receives, directly or in-
directþ more than one-half of his support from
the individual or from whom the individual re-
ceives, directly or indirectþ more than one-half of
his support.


Person means any person, corporation, partner-
ship orjointventure.


(b) PenøIty and, sanctio¿s. Violations of any
provisions of this section may constitute a cause
for suspension, removal from offi.ce or srnplof-
ment or other disciplinar¡r action.


(c) Decløration of policy. The proper operation
of democratic government requires that:


(1) Public officials and employees b9 indepen-
dent, irnpartial and responsible to the
people;


(2) Government decisions and policy be made
in proper channels of the governmental
structure;


(3) Public office not be used for personal gain;
and


(4) the public have confidence in the integ-
rity of its government.


g2-2


In recognition ofthese goals, there is established
a code of ethics for all city officials and employees,
whether elected or appointed, paid or unpaid,
including members of boards, committees and
commissions of the city. The purpose of this sec-
tion is to establish guidelines for ethical stan-
dards of conduct for all such officials and employ-
ees by setting forth those acts or actions that are
incompatible lrith the best interests of the cþ
and by directing disclosure by such officials and
employees of private financial or other interests
in matters affecting the city. the provisions and
purpose of this section and such rules and regu-
lations as may be established are declared to be in
the best interests of the city.


(d) Responsibility for public ffica Pabhc offi-
cials and employees are agents of public purpose
and hold offices for the benefit of the public. They
are bound to uphold the Constitution of the United
States and the constitution ofthis state and carry
ss¡ impartially the laws of the nation, state and
municþality and to obserr¡e in their official acts
the highest standard of morality and to discharge
faithfrlly the duties of their office regardless of
personal consideration, recognizing that the pub-
lic interest must be their prime concern. Their
conduct in their official affairs should be above
reproach so as to foster respect for all govenr-
ment.


(e) Ded,icøted, seruice.


(1) AII ofEcials and employees of the city
should be loyal to the objectives expressed
by the electorate. Appointive officials and
employees should adhere to the rules of
work and performance established as the
standard for their positions by the appro-
priate authority.


(2) Officials and employees should not exceed
their authority or breach the law or ask
others to do so, and they should work in
full cooperation with other public officials
and employees unless prohibited from so
doing by law or by ofñcially recognized
conûdentiality of their work.


(Ð Fair and, equal treøtment.


(1) Use of public property. No official or em-
ployee shall request or permit the unau-


ADMINISTR¡IITION


Supp. No. 11 CDZ:7







ç 2-2 STOUGTITON CODE


thorized use of city-owned vehicles, equip-
ment, materials or propert¡r for personal
convenience or profit.


(2) Oblþøtions to citizens. No official or em-
ployee shall grant any special consider-
ation, treatment or advantage to any cit-
izen beyond that which is available to
every other citizen.


re) ConfXfut of interest.


(1) Financial interestprohibíúed. Nolocalpub-
Iic official or employee may use his public
position or offi.ce to obtain financial gain
or anything of substantial value for the
private benefit of himself or his immedi-
ate family or for an organization with
which he is associated. This subsection
does not prohibit a local public ofñcial
from usingthe title or prestige ofhis office
to obtain campaign conüributions that are
permitted and reported as required by
Wis. Stats. ch. 11.


(2) Specific conflicts enumera,ted,.


a. Ircornpøtible employm¿¿ú. No offi-
cial or employee shall engage in or
accept private emplo¡ment or ren-
der senrice, forprivate interests, when
susþ smplo}¡ment or senrice is incom-
patible with the proper discharge of
his official duties or would tend to
impair such offi.cial or employee's
independence ofjudgment or action
in the perforrnance of his official
duties, unless otherwise permitted
bylaw and unless disclosure is made
as provided in this section.


b. Disclosure of confidential inþrmø-
úio¿. No official or employee shall,
without proper legal authorization,
disclose confi dential infonmation con-
cerning the propert¡r, government or
affairs of the cit¡r, nor shall such
official or employee use such infor-
mation to advance the financial or
other private interest of such official
or employee or otJrers,


c. Gifts ønd, føuors. No official or em-
ployee shall accept any gift, whether


in the fom of service,loan, thing or
promise from any person which to
his knowledge is interested directly
or indirectly in any manner whatso-
ever in business dealings with the
city; nor shall any such official or
employee accept any gift, favor or
thing of value that may tend to in-
fluence such official or employee in
the discharge ofhis duties, or grant
in the discharge of his duties any
improper favor, senrice or thing of
value, except campaign contribu-
tions as controlled by subsection (i)
of this section. Gifts received under
unusual circumstances should be re-
ferred to the ethics board within ten
days for recommended disposition.


(3) Contracts wíth the ciúy. No official or em-
ployee who in his capacitSr as such officer
or employee particþates in the meking of
a contract in which such officer or em-
ployee has a private pecuniary interest,
direct or indirect, or performs in regard to
that contract some firnction requiring the
exercise of discretion on the part of such
ofEcial or employee, shall enter into any
contract with the city unless, within the
confines of Wis. Stats. $ 946.13, the con-
tract is awarded through a process of
public noüice and competitive bidding.


(4) Disclosure of interest inlegisløtio¿. To the
extent known, any member of the city
council who has a financial interest in any
proposed legislation before the council shall
disclose on the records ofthe council the
nature and extent of such interest. Any
other official or employee who has a finan-
cial interest in any proposed legislative
action of the council and who particþates
in discussion with or gives official opin-
ions or recommendations to the council
shall disclose on the records ofthe council
the nature and extent of such interest.


(h) Disctosure of certain financial interests.


(1) All elected and appointed. offrcials and
employees as directed by the city council
shall file an initial statement of economic


Supp. No. 11 CD2:8







interests and amend such statement if
substantial changes have occurred in eco-
nomic interests as defined and limited to
subsection (hX3) of this section, within a
time period specified by the ethics boa¡d.


(Z> If a person must make a disclosure as
provided in subsection (hXl) of this sec-
tion, within seven days after such person
becomes a candidate for any elective city
office, prior to appointment to such office
such person shall file a statement of eco-
nomic interests or a statement as pro-
vided in subsection ftX4) of this section
with the ethics board.


(3) Aperson filing any statement of economic
interests under this section shall file the
statement on a fom prescribed by the
ethics board and shal supply the follow-
ing infomation to the ethics board: a
description of all parcels of real estate
within the city and adjoining towns or
villages in which the person or spouse
or¡rns any interest, including an option to
purchase, ifsuch properby is to be consid-
ered for rezoning or purchase, if such
property is to be considered for rezoning
or purchase by an entity of government,
but exempting homestead property. All
candidates for elective and appointive of-
fice required úo file under this section
shall identiff any and all interests of
more than two percent or $7,500.00, which-
ever is lesser, he or his spouse has in any
business organization, either as an owner,
part owner, partner, silent partner or
lender. The statement shall include a list-
ing of all corporations or businesses on
which the person or spouse serves as a
director or on a consultation basis.


(4) Any candidate, elected or appointed offi-
cial or employee who feels their standards
of privacy would be compromised by a
statement of economic interests may de-
cline to offer such a statement. In lieu
thereo4 he shall initially file a statement
with the ethics board of his knowledge
and. awareness of the requirements to
disclose interest in legislation required
under subsection (gX4) of this section.


ç 2-2


(i) Cørnpaþn contríbutíozs. Campaign contri-
butions shall be reported by all candidates for city
office in strict confomity with the provisions of
statute. Any campaign contribution tendered to or
accepted by a candidate subsequent to the final
statutory report shall be reported to the clerk,
who shall forward a copy of such report to the
ethics board.


ß) Eth¡cs board.


(1) Ttrereis created anethicsboardto consist
offive members asfollows: one alderperson
as appointed by the mayor, one city officer
or employee and tbree citizen members
all appointed by the mayor and confirmed
bythe citycouncil. Terrns of office shallbe
three years. The ethics board shall elect
its own chair and vice-chair, and the city
attorneyshall firrnish the board whatever
legal assistance is necessary to carry out
its function. If any member of the ethics
board petitions the board for a hearing
and advice regarding his own conduct,
such member shall be mandatorily ex-
cepted from sitting in his own case and
the cþ attorney shall be substituted there-
for.


(2) The ethics board maymake recommenda-
tions to the city council with respect to
emendments to this section.


(3) Upon the verified complaint of any person
allegingfacts which, if true, would consti-
tute improper conduct under the provi-
sions ofthis section, the ethics board shall
first conduct a private and confidential
inquiry into the merits of the complaint.
Upon a finding of probable misconduct by
a majority of the ethics board, the ethics
board shall conduct a public hearing in
accordance n¡ith all common law require-
ments of due process and, in written find-
ings offact and conclusions based thereon,
make a determination concerning the pro-
prieff of the conduct of the subject official
or employee. If the ethics board finds
probable cause exists for action against
an employee based on a violation of this
section, it shall refer the matter for appro-
priate action to the council or district


ADMIMSTRATION


Supp. No. 11 CDZ:9







$ 2-2 STOUGHTON CODE


attorney. ft1 making such referral, the
ethics board shall supply tJre council or
district attorney with a written statement
of their determination.


(4) The ethics board shall be required to only
report probable cause for misconduct when
three-fourths ofthe members of the ethics
board present and voting vote to do so.


(k) Applicability.When an official or employee
has doubt as to the applicability of a provision of
this section, such official or employee shall apply
to the ethics board for an advisory opinion. TÌre
ofñcial or employee shall have the opportunity to
present his interpretation ofthe facts at issue and
of the applicability of provisions of this section
before such advisory decision is made. This sec-
tion shall be operative in all instances covered by
its provisions except when superseded by an ap-
plicable statutory provision and statutory action
is mandatory, or when the application of a statu-
tory provision is discretionar¡r but deterrnined by
the ethics board to be more appropriate or desir-
able.
(Code 1986, $ 1.12; Ord. No. 0-02-06, g 1,.1-24-
2006; Ord. No. 0-17-06, $ 1,4-11-2006)


Sec. 2.8. Wardboundaries andpollingplaces.


ïre city council adopts by reference the pam-
phlet entitled "Establishing Wards, Ward Bound-
aries and Polling Places" in its entirety and con-
firming in all respects as amended. See Wis.
Stats. $ 66.0103.
(Code 1986, $ 1.16)


Sec. 2.4. Aldermanic districts.


Aldermanic districts are established as follows
by combining contiguous whole wards and as
shown on a map entitled "City of Stoughton
Aldermenic Districts and Wards" on file in the
office ofthe clerk. Such aldermanic districts shall
become effective beginning with the Spring 2002
Electíon.


(1) First aldemanic district:'\üards 1 through
3.


(2) Second aldermanic district: \üards 4 and
5.


(3) Third aldemanic district: Wards 6 through
8.


(4) Fourth aldermanic district: Wards I and
10.


(Code 1986, $ 1.16)


Secs. 2-6-2-80. Resen¡ed.


ARTICLE II. CITT COUNCIL


DTVISION 1. GENERALLY


Sec. 2.81. Organization meeting.


Following a regular cþ election, the new coun-
cil shall meet on the third l\resday of April. A
president and vice-president of the council shall
be chosen at this time from among the alderpersons
by majority vote.
(Code 1986, $ 2.02(L))


Sec. 2-32. Regular neetings.


Ttre regular meetings of the council shall be
held at the council chamber at 7:00 p.m. on the
second and fourth Thesday of each month, except
that when the second Thesday of the month is an
election day or a legal holiday the first regular
meeting of the month of the council shall be held
on the second Wednesday of the month, and
except thatwhen the fourth lbesday ofthe month
is a legal holiday or falls on the day before
Christmas, the second regular meeting of the
month shall be on the fourth Thursday of the
month. One of the two regular meetings in any
month may be canceled for cause shown. The
clerk shall notiff the official newspaper of such
cancellation in a timeþ fashion.
(Code 1986, $ 2.02(2); Ord. No. 0-26-05, $ 1,
7-26-2005)


Supp. No. 11 CD2:10







Compatibllity of Offfce 605R
Pecuniary Interest 389R


Leqal Commrrur


by Daniel OlsonrAsst. Legal Counsel


\Ifn 
we published a comment similar to this one a little


Y Y more than nine years ago, \¡/e noted the highly publicized


allegations of misconduct by state legislators and how such activ-


ity served to remind us all of the public and private consequences


when a public offrcial violates the public trust of his or her publ.ic


office. Unfortunately, newspaper headlines over the last twelve


months have once again highlighted multiple stories of alleged


mísconduct by Wisconsin public officials. Toda¡ as then, such


conduct provides energy for expanding the public trust deficit


between citizens and public officials, a serious threat to any de-


moçracy. It thus seems an appropriate time to once again provide


an overview of some of the important ethics and other conflict of


interest laws and rules that regulate the conduct of local officials


and a few hypothetical situations as a means to help local officials


recognize and avoid conduct that will further increase the lack of


trust too many citizens seem to have for public ofÊcials.


Sr¿rs Coou on Erurcs non Locrr, Ornchls, Enrplov¡us.lxn C¡nn¡urrBs


The state code of ethics for local government officialsl went into effect onAu-
gust 15, 1991. These and other rules regulating the conduct of local officials
continue to generate frequent questions to League legal counsel.


Government Units and Individuals Affected


The state code applies to a "local governnental unit"2 which is defined to in-
clude a political subdivision of the state, an instrumentality or corporation of
such a political subdivision or a combination or subunit of any such entíty. This
means cities and villages are covered. It also means a city redevelopment au-


Erhics ANd Corrrflicr of lrurenEsr Pnnr l:


thorþ or similar instrumentality or
subunit of cþ or village government
is covered.


The state oode limits coverage in the
covered local government units to
local publíc officials who are defrned
as individuals holding a local public
office.r The definition of local public
office includes elective offices; city
and village managers; appointive
offices and positions where the indi-
vidual serves for a speciûed term, ex-
cept independent contraotor positions
and positions limitedto the exercise
of ministerial action.a The definition
also includes appointive offices or
positions filled by the governing body
or executive or administrative head
where the appointee serves at the
pleasure of the appointing authority,
except independent confactors aqd
cleriðal and ministerial positions.s
This means a city council member,
village trustee, mayor, village presi-
dent, city clerk, village attomey, city
finance direotor, village director of
public works, oity zoning adminisha-
tor, village building inspector, a park
board member and fhose holding
similar elected or appointed offices/
positions are subject to the code.


Prohibited Conduct


The state ethics code prohibits local
officials from engaging in the follow-
ing conduct:


l. Using their office to obtain finan-
cial gain or anything of substantial
value for the private benefit of them-
selves, their immediate families, or
organizatio¡rs with which they are
associated.Ó


l. Wis, Stat. sec. 19.59. For a further discussion of the statc
ethics law, soe the legal comments in the June 1995, Octo-
ber l99l and December l99l issues of the Municipalíty.


2. Wis. Stat. scc. 19.42(7u).


3.
4.
5.
6.


Wis.
Wis.
Id.
Wis.


Stat. sec. 19,59(7x).
Stat. sec. 19.42(7w).


Stat. sec. 19,59(l)(a).


38 the Municipality February 2012







Lec,nI Coçrtrre n¡r


Srnre Code ANd Fin¡nrr¡cinl lNTEREsrs


The restriction on "using" an office
encompasses more than voting. The
Govemment Accountability Board
(GAB) (formerþ Wisconsin Ethics
Board) interprets this rule to prohibit a
local official from accepting any item
or service, including food or drink, and
travel, of more than nominal value of-
fered and available because the official
holds public office.7 It would also pro-
hibit an officiat from using information
derived from holding office that is not
available to the public. In short, an
official may violate the restriction on
"using" her office even if she does not
vote on a matter.


An official is "associated" with an
organization for purposes ofthe state
ethics law when the individual or a
member of the individual's immedi-
ate family is an officer, director or
trustee, or owns at least l0 percent of
the organization. An individual is not
associated wíth an organization mereþ
because the individual is a member or
employee of the organization.S


The term "immediate family" means
an ofrcial's spouse and family mem-
bers who receive more than one-half of
their suppof from the official or from
whom the official receives more than
one-halfofhis or her support.g


2. Receiving "anything of value" if it
could reasonably be expected to influ-
ence the local public official's vote,
official action or judgment, or could
reasonably be considered as a rew.a d
for any official action or inaction.l0


The term "anything of value" includes
any r-npney, property, favor or ser-
vice.l I The GAB guidelines for local
officials indicate that a local public
official may only accept items of in-
substantial value such as "mere tokens
and items or services of onlv nominal.
insignificant, or hivial valuã."l2


3. Taking official action substantially
affecting a matter in which the official,
an ímmediate family member, or an
organization with which the ofrcial is
associated has a substantial financial
interest or using his or her office in a
way that produces or assists ín the pro-
duction ofa substantial benefit fo¡ the
official, immediate family member or
organization with which the official is
associated. I r


State law does provide a limited ex-
ception to these restrictions. Msconsin
Statutes sec. I 9.59(l)(d) expressly
exempts lawfirl payments of expenses,
beneûts, or reimbursements, or actions
on proposals to modi$ an ordinance.


Also, the GAB guidelines and advisory
opinions indicate that a local official
may pafticipate in an action that will
affect the official or an organizatiori
with which the official is associated
when: (a) the official's action affects a
whole class of similarþ-situated inter-
ests; þ) neither the official's interest
nor the interest ofa business or orga-
nization with which the official is as-
sociated is significant when compar_ed
to all affected ¡nterests in the class;la
and (c) the action's effeot on the Ín-
terests of the official or of the related


business or organization is neither
significantly greater nor less than upon
other members of the clæs. The bæic
test, therefore, appears to be whether
the action has a general impact on, or
whether the aotion chiefly benefits, the
oiâcial, a member of the official's im-
mediate family or an organization witå
which the official is associated. Thus,
a public official should not participate
in or perform any discretionary act
with respect to making, granting, or
imposing an award, sanction, permit,
license, contract, offer of employment,
agreement or other matter in which the
official, a member of tle official's im-
mediate family or a business or organi-
zation with which the official is associ-
ated has a substantial financial interest
or would gain a substantial benefit.


The GAB guidelines for state officials
suggest that when a matter in which
a local officíal should not particípate
comes before a body, which the ofÊ-
cial is a member of, the ofrcial should
leave that portion of the body's meet-
ing involving discussion, delib_erations,
or votes related to the matter,Il When,
because ofa potential conflict ofin-
terest, an ofñcial withdraws from the
body's discussion, deliberation, and
vote, the body's minutes should reflect
the absence.


4, Giving, offering or promising to
give, or wittrholding or offering or
promising to withhold, his or her vote
or influence, or promising to take or


Elhícs Part I
continued on page 40


7. GAB Guideline 1219 (cAB 12l9): Receþ of Foo{ Drink,
Favo¡s and Services. GAB guidelines for local officials
arc available onl¡ne at http://gab.wi.gov/guidelines/ethics


8. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.42(2).
9. Wis. Stat. soc. 19.42(7).


10. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.59(l)O).


ll. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.42(l).
12. Supra notc 7.
13, Wis. Stat, sec. t9.59(1)(c).
14, GAB Guideline 1240 (cAB 1240): Mirigat¡ng Confliding


Interosts: Private Interest vs. Public Responsibility.
15. úd.


the Municipality February 2012 39







Ltqat Comme¡¡r


Ethics Pt I
contínuedfrom page 39


refrain from taking official action with
respect to any proposed or pending
matter in exchange for any other per-
son making or refraining from making
a politícal contribution or providing or
refraining from providing any thing of
service or thing of value to or for the
benefit of a candidate, political party,
any other person who is subject to reg-
istration under Wis. Stat. sec. I1.05, or
any person making a commudication
that cont¿ins a reference to a clearly
identified local public official holding
an elective ofrce or to a candidate for
local public office.16


Enforcement and Penalties


Local officials may request advisory
ethics opinions from the municipal
ethics board or, if there is none, from
the municipal attomey. The municipal
ethics board or attorney may issue a
written advisory opinion. If the official
follows the advice in the opinion, it is
evidg4ce of intent to comply with the
law.l7


The state ethics code for local officials
is euforced by the local distict at-
torney gpon verified complaint of any
person. ¡Õ If the district attomey fails
to commence an action within twenty
days after receiving such complaint
or refi,¡ses to commence an action, the
person making the complaint may peti-
tion the attglney general to act on the
complaint.lY


The ethics code provides civil and
criminal penalties for violations. A lo-
cal official who intentionally violates
any part ofsec. 19.59 except 19.59(l)
@r), may be fined not loss tha¡ S100
nor more than $5,000 or imprisoned
not more th4n one year in the county
jail or both.2oln tfre alternative, a civil


forfeiture of up to $1,000 may be im-
posed against a local official for violat-
ing any part ol$e state ethics code for
local officials.¿t


State Ethics Code Gaps


The state ethics code for local govern-
ment officials has not been amended
since adoption in 1991. This does not
mean there are no flaws or gaps in the
law, there are.


Many public positions are not covered
by the law since it applies only to local
public ofrces and the law narrowly de-
fines "local public office." This nanow
definition leaves many public positíons
uncovered by the law including police
andfire chiefs, assistant city attorneys,
deputy treasurers, and other officials
not appointed by the governing body
or the executive or administrative head
of the local govemment. Thus, the law
does not cover a number ofpublic of-
ûcials the general public might expect
to be subjeot to the state ethics code
requirements,


The law also allows conduct the gen-
eral public might not approve of. For
example, the law does not prohibit a
public official from voting on a matter
involving his parent unless the parent
receives, directþ or indirectly, more
than one-halfofhis or her support
tom the ofÊoial or the official re-
ceives, directþ or indirectly, more than
one-halfhis or her support from the
parent. The same provisions also apply
to brothers and sisters and other family
members of the public official.


The law also does not prohibit an of-
ficial from voting orusing his or her
office to help on a matter involving a
person they are not married to but live
and share a home with, an employer,
or a large campaþ oontributor, How'


eveç activþ by an official in such sit-
uations is also likely to be disfavored
by the general public.


However, these and other gaps in the
st¿te ethics code can be addressed. The
law authorizes local ordinances that
might be used to set highor strndards
and/p¡ expand coverage beyond state
law.¿2


Hypothetical Ethtcs Code Problems


L You øre a màmber of the common
cot¿ncí|. Your I $-year-old daughter
who lives qt homewithyouwqs qrrest-
ed last nightþr underage drinkingin
yow city and given a tícket with afine
of $96. She is distraught and begging


for your help wtth the ticket because
she thinlrs an underage drinking con-
víctíonwill ruín her chances of gettíng
into law school. She søys shewas not
drinking arcn though a breathalyzer
result shows she wa* You call the city
attornsy and tell him thatyou beliarc
your daughter andyou think the ticket
should be dísmissed or leqst amended
to a lesser violation. Haveyouviolated
the state ethìcs codefor local oficials?


Probably. The line between being a
parent and being a publio official is
fuzry at best in this circumstance.
Since dismissal or amendment of the
underage drinking ticket will provide
relief from the inoreased insurance
rates, a financial gain, something of
substantial value, or substantial benefit
for you, your call to the city attorney
could easily be consbued as an attempt
to use the influence ofyour public of-
ñce contrary to Wis. Stat. sec. 19.59(1)
(a) or 19.59(1)(c)2. Even ifyour ac-
tion does not violate the state ethics
code, ifthe contact does produce a
favorable result, the prosecutorial in-
tegrþ ofthe city attorn€y is severely
compromised. Any favoritism by the


16, Wis. Stat. sec, 19.59(lXbr).
17. Wis. Stat. ses, 19.59(5)(a).
18. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.59(8)(a).
19. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.59(8)(c).


20. Wis. Stat, sec. t9.58. An intentional violation of 19.59(lXbr)
isaClasslfelony.


21. Wis. Stat. sec. 19.59(7).
22. Wis. Stat, sec. 19.59(1m).


40 the Municipality February 2012







Leqnl Commenr


city attorney would call into question
all future prosecutions by him and
expose him and your munioipality to
charges of selective prosecution. ln
shof, you should not make the call
even ifyou think it does not violate the
state ethics code.


lf the person who got the ticket is not
your daughter but the døughter ofa
friend, doyoustíll have aproblem
wíth sec. 1 9.59(I)(a), or I 9.59(l)(c) 1,
Stats,, ifyou mqke the call?


No, unless the aotion produces a sub-
stantial direct or indirect benefit (e.g.,
campaign contribution, free food at the
your friend's restaurant, etc.) for you
conûary to sec. 19.59(l)(c)1., Stats.
Nonetheless, the problems regarding
the prosecutorial integrity ofthe cþ
attorney noted above are still impli-
cated and you should not make the call
even though it may not be a violation
ofthe state ethics code.


2, You are a village trustee- While
you andyour spouse are attending a
conferenceþr local public fficíals,
an engìne ering consulting firm int ites
you andyour spouse to attend a dinner
and offers to pay aII costs. Thewritten
policies established by your village
only authorize meal reímbursement
for you, Meal expenses þr spouses or
children trøveling with an oficial are
not covered. Shouldyou let thefirm
pøy for you ønd your spouse?


No. A local public official should not
accept an offer to purchase a moal or
other item unless, and only to the ex-
tent thaÇ the local government would
otherwise bear the official's cxpense
and the goverirmental unit's oblígation
to bear the expense is expressly autho-
rized by, and in accordance wittr, es-
tablished written criteria. Can you pay
the costs for your spouse and let the
firm pay foryours without violating
the state ethics code? You could if your
village policies are sufficiently specifio
to permit it. However, the better prac-
tice is to pay for the meal yowself and
advise the trm that they can reimburse
the village directly if it wíshes.


3, You are a member of a common
council, The committeeyou serve
on ß reviewing bids that the city has
receivedfrom anumber of computer
consultingfirms. One of thefirms thøt
has submitled a bíd is owned byyour
spouse, Can you participate in this
møtter?


No. Ifyou participate, you will be vio-
lating the prohibition in sec, 19.59(l)
(c)1., Stats., against taking any official
action affecting a matter in which you,
a member of your immediate family
or an organization with which you are
associated has a substantial financial
interest.


At what point should you withdrav¡
from participation?


You should oxcuse yourself from par-
ticipating in any discussion, delibera-
tions or votes relating to the selection
of a computer consultant for the cþ.
The best way to proceed would be to
remove yourself from the committee
meeting before the bids are discussed,
reviewed and evaluated. Also, the min-
utes should reflect your absenoe.


If thefirm ís owned byyourfather in-
stead ofyour spouse, canyou partici-
pate ín the matter without vìolating the
stste ethics code?


Yes. Assuming you do not provide
one-half of your fatheros support or
he does not provide one-halfofyours,
there is no violation of sec. 19.59(l)
(c)1., Stats. or any other provision of
the state ethics code if you particípate
in the matter. However, your local
code may be more restictive and
should be checked. In additíon, you
should also consider the public re-
sponse even ifyour local ethics code
does permit your paficipation since
man¡ if not most, people will ques-
tion your abilþ to place your public
obligations over your personal connec-
tions.


4. You are a member of a common
councì|. The council ß coruidering
plans and specificatiora for ø major


street wídening and repair project
and a resolutíon authorizíng special
assessments to be lwied agøínst abut-
tìng property owners to payþr the
project, Your home abuts the street that
is going to be widened and repaired.
Shouldyou participate ln the matter
when it comes before the council?


The state ethics code would probably
not prohibit you from participating
in this matter even though the action
affects you and your property. This is
because the action will affect a whole
class of similarly situated property
owners abutting the steet project.


Whøt if the proposed project will
greatb ìmprove the value of a piece
of commercíal propertyyou ownbut
does not høve a similar ffict on most
of the other properties? Can you still
participate?


Probably not since the test for deter-
mining whether you can participate
is not limited to the number of other
persons affected but also asks whether
the impact of the action hæ a similæ
effect. Under the ethics law, you may
vote on the'project only ifyour inter-
est is not significant relative to all the
affected persons and the action's effect
on your propefy is neither signifi-
cantly greater nor less than upon other
propeúy owners abutting the street
project.


5. You are q member of the víllage
plan commíssion. The commissíonis
coruiderÍng a condítional use permit
request by a personwho owns property
next door to yourfather-lnJsw, Do
yoa part¡cìpate in the matter?


Ifyour father-inJaw does not receive
more than 50 percent of his support
from you and you do not receive more
than 50 percent ofyour support from
him, then the state ethics law would
not preclude you from voting on the
zoning chânge. However, the state and
federal constitutional guarantees of


Ethics Part I
continued on page 42


the Municipality February 2012 4l







lrqnl Commrrur


Ethics Pt I
continuedfrompage 4l


due process require administrative or
quasi-judicial decisions such as this
to be made by an impartial decision
maker. If you cannot be impartial, then
you should not participate. Even if
you believe that you can be impartial,
you should advise the applicant that
your father-in-law lives next door to
the property and determine whether
the applicant has any objeotion to your
participation.


Pn¡v¿re FNllrctll, Ir.rrnRnsrs rr,¡


Pu¡uc Coxrnncrs


Msconsin Statute section 946.13
prohibits public officials and employ-
ees ftom having a private interest in
a public conhaot. Ûnportantly, it is a
stict liability statute and a convic-
tion requires no Droof of criminal
intent.E This mèans public officials
and employees must regularly review
their public and private connections
to avoid inadvertent violations of this
law.


Prohibited Conduct.


Section 946.13(l) prohibits a public
official or employeo from engaging in
the following conductl


l. In his or her private capacity, nego-
tiating or bidding for or entering into
a contact in which the official of em-
ployee has a direct or indirecf private
pecuniary interest if the official or em-
ployee is also authorized or required
by law to participate in his capacity as
such officer or e¡r-rployee in the making
of that conhact.24'


ThÍs is the most signifrcant prohibition
in the pecuniary interest statute since
tlere is no requiremont that an official


or employee actually take any action
in regard to the confract. The statute
imposes liability simply when an oÊ
ficial or employee is autho¡ized to par-
ticipate in its making. Abstaining from
voting will not prevent a violation.


It is also important to note that a viola-
tion ofsec. 946.13(l)(a) is also not
automatically avoided if someone
other than the official or employee
negotiates orbids foror enters into a
conEact in which they have a private
pecuniary interest. This position is
reflected ín the following statement
by the Wisconsin attomey general:
"It is equally clear, however, that the
law [rWis. Stat sec.946,13(l)] forbids
a public officer or employe from ac-
complishing through an agent that
which the law prohibits [the officer
or employeel liom doin! directly."25
This means that if another person or
entity is acting as agent for the public
official or employee, then the actions
of that person or entþ wíll be deemed
those of the official or employee for
purposes of sec. 946.13(l).


Similarly, officials and employees
should be mindful that violation of
sec. 946,13(1)(a), Stats., does not
require that a contact actually be ex-
eoutedj Attempts to negotiate or bid
for the contract are enough to violate
the restiction and there is nothing in
the plain language of the statute that
defines or limits negotiation or bid-
ding to only formal procedures. Thus,
inforrnal discussions with a person in-
volved in a municipal employee hiring
process about abilities and interest in
the position prior to r€signation might
be sufficient to violate the law.


2. Participating in the making of a
municipal contract in his or her officiat
capacity or performing some fi¡nction
requiring the exercise ofdiscretion in


regards to a municipal contact if the
official has a di¡ect or indirect financial
interest in the confract.26


This restiction requires some af-
firmative act such as a vote or some
other participation in the making or
exeoution ofthe contract before there
is a violation. Accordingly, refraining
from acting in all official or authorized
capacities on the conüact will prevent
violation.


Exceptions.


There are a number of-slatutory excep-
tions to sec. 946.13(l)27. noUâUty 


-


the most important exception is for
contacts in which any single public
offioer or employee is privately inter-
ested that do not involve receipts and
disbursements by the state or its politi-
cal subdivision aggregating more than
$15,000 in any yãä.z8


lt is important to note that the excep-
tions do not authorize any partioular
behavior. They only remove the con-
duct from the scope ofsec. 946.13(l).
They do not immunize the behavior
from other applicable restrictions such
as the state ethics code for local of-
ficials, cornmon law rules, or local
ordinanoes and rules.


Enforcement and Penalties


Violation of Wis. Stat. sec.946.13 is a
Class I felony and subjects the person
to a fine of not more than $10,000,
ímprisonment for not more thar1 three
yeãrs and six months, or both.29 A
conviction would also lead to an au-
tomatic vacation of an elective office
since the ofrcial would be constitu-
tionally_barred from holding public
office.3o


23. Støte v. Stoehr, 134 Wis.2d 66, 396 N.W2d 177 (1986).
24. Wis. Stat sec.9a6.13(l)(a).
25. 75 Op. Att'y Gen. 172,174 (1986).
26. Wis. Stat. scc.946.13(l)O).


27. SeeWis. Stat. secs. 946.13(2),(5), (6), (7), (8), (9), (10), and
(lt).


28. Wis. Stal. scc. 9a6.13(2)(a).
29. Wis. Stat. sec. 939.50(3Xe).
30. Wis. Const. art. XlI, scc. 3(3) and scc, 17.03(5).


42 the Municipality February 2012







Leqnl Commrnr


Hypothetical Pecuniary Interest
Statute Problems


I. You are amember of the city eouncil
ønd are employed by a local engi-
neeríngfrm. Your city has recenþ
decíded to solicit bids from qualified
engíneeringfirmsfor a stuþ of its
municlpal water system. The contract
will pay 850,000. You are not irwolved
ìn arry management decisíons at your
engineeríngfirm but a major portion
of your work with the engineer ing firn
is related to the desígn and opera-
tìon of municipal water and sewage
systens. Infact, you are the expert in
yowfirm on municípal water systems,
Yourfirm Íntends to bidfor the water
system contract with your c¡ty ønd you
intend to do work on the contract if it
is øwarded to yourfirm. Do you høve a
problen with sec. 946.13(l)?


There is no case law or legal authorþ
that provides a clear answer. How-
ever, League legal staffbelieve there
is probably sufficient evidence under
these facts to suggest that the engi-
neering firm is aoting as your agent
for purposes ofthe contract. Ifso, any
attempt by the firm to negotiate or bid
for or enter into the \Mater system con-
tract with the cþ is a violation by you
ofsec. 9a6.13(l)(a).


What ifyou did not do any work on the
contract?


If you did not do any work on the
contact, it is less likely that the firrn is
acting as your agent. What if you were
a senior partner in the firm but still did
not do any work on the contract? If
being a senior partner means you have
a say ín the management decisions of
the ûrm, your firrn is probably actíng
as your agent and sec. 946.13(l)(a)
has probably been violated if the finn
submits a bid.


2. You are ø nomineeþr a position on
a cþb redevelopment authority and
the director ofa local non-profit or-
ganizatio4 which received a 825,000
development loan from the authoríty


one year ago, Canyou serve on the
authoriþ?


Yes. Since the loan was negotiated, bid
for, and entered into prior to appoint-
ment to the redevelopment authority
and before you had any authority to
participate as a public official in the
making of the loan, there is no viola-
tion of sec. 946.13(1). However, if
your organìzation attempts to renegoti-
ate the terms of the existing loan or
seeks a new loan while you serve on
the authority, the statute would be vio-
lated. Moreover, you cannot take any
action regarding the current adminis-
tation of the existing loan while you
serve on the authority.


3. You øre a member of thevillage
board. You also own the only hard-
ware store in thevillage. Thevillage
regularly purchøses supplies from the
slore, You alwrys abstainfrom voting
on bìlls and clqhns relatìng lo your
store. Lastyear total sales to thevil-
lage amounted to 812,000. This yea4,
sales to the village are øpproachíng
8 I 7,000 dollars. Did you violate sec.
94 6. I 3 Q ), Stats,, last year?


No. You are allowed to do a total of
$15,000 wortl¡ of business with the
municipality in ayear.


Areyou inviolûion of sec. 946.13(I),
Stats., this year?


Yes. The sales hansaction that pushed
you over the S15,000limit of sec.
946.13Q)@\ constituted execution of
an impermissible contact under sec.
946. I 3(l)(a). While abstention will
protect you from violating the prohibi-
tion on official action on a contact
where you have a finanoial interest, it
will not prevent you from violating the
provision prohibiting private involve-
ment in a contract where you have of-
ficial autlority to act.


4, You are ø city council memben The
human resoutces director posÍtion
with the city wíll be vacant in the near
future due to the retirement of the cur-
rent directon The posilion pcrys qn øn-


nual salary of 850,000. Canyou apply


þr the position before you resignfroru
the city councll?


No. Submission of an application for
ernployment is a bid for a contract.
Since the position will pay an annual
salary in excess ofthe sec.946.13,
Stats., limit of $ 15,000, you must re-
sign from the cþ councilbefore you
can apply for the position.


You intend to resignfrom ffice before
you submít your application Howæer,
you know the møyor will nomlnøte
the new director to the cìty councíl
for approval andwant to talkto her
øbout your optíons. Can you tslk to the
mayor while you me still a member of
the cþ coancìl and let her knou¡ that
you cne interested in lhe position?


Probably not. Such discussion prob-
ably constitutes negotiation or bidding
for the employment and violates sec.
9a6.13(1)(a). The discussion with the
mayor may also be an improper use of
your office and be a violation of sec.
19.59(lXa) ofthe state ettrios code for
local government offi cials.


Would you víolate sec. 946. I 3 ( I ),
Stats., dyou applied before resigning
but w ithdrevt your appllcatìon beþre
the city acted on it?


Yes. Section 946.13(1)(a) prohibits a
public official from merely negotiating
or bidding for a conEact in which the
official has a financial interest if the
ofÊcial is authorized to participate in
his official capacity in the making of
the conhact. Here, you have submit-
ted a bid by applying for the position
while being authorized to exercise
official discretion with regard to the
contract. This violates the statute and
it does not matter that you have with-
drawn your application before it was
acted on.


Compatibility of Offices 605R
Pecuniary Interest 3 89R


I
the Municipalþ February 2012 43







Leqnl CooriuEpr¡


Erl-rics ANd Co¡¡flicr of lrurenEsr Pnnr Il:
by Daniel OlsonrAsst. Legal Counsel


Co*tplrln¡ury or Orrrcns nnn
Pos¡noxs


One ofthe ¡¡ss¡ imFortant conrmon-
law (court made) rules regarding con-
flict of interest is the doctine of in-
compatibility. This docüine recognizes
a conflict of interest in some situations
where a public official holds two pub-
lic offices or holds apublic position
and a public office.J t


A leading commentator on municipal
law states the basic concem associated
with conflicts in this context as fol-
lows:


Public policy demands that
an officeholder disoharge his
or her duties with undivided
loyaþ The doctine of incom-
patíbility is intended to assure
performance of that qualþ
Its applicabilþ does not turn
upon the integrþ of the per-
son concerned or his or her
individual capacity to achieve
impartial,ity, for inquires of
that kind would be too subtle
to be rewarding. The doctrine
applies inexorably if the of-
fices come within it, no mat-
ter how worthy the officer's
purpose olgxtraordinary his or
her talent.Jz


The Wisconsin Attomey General cited
approvingly in a formal opinion, 74
Op. Att'y Gen. 50 (1985), a summary
of common law incompatibilþ prin-


ciples discussed in 63AAm. Jur. 2d
Public Officers and Enployees sec. 78
(1984):


Incompatibility is to be found
in the character of the ofrces
and their relation to each other,
in the subordination ofthe one
to the other, and in the nature
of the duties and functions,
wþich attachto them. They are
generally considered incom-
patible where such duties and
frnctions are inherently incon-
sistent and repugnant, so that
because ofthe contrariety and
antagonism which would result
from the attempt of one person
to discharge faithfully, impar-
tiall¡ and effioientlythe duties
of both offices, considerations
of public polþ render it im-
proper for an incumbent to re-
tain both. Two offices or posi-
tions are incompatible if there
are many potential conflicts of
interest betweçn the two, such
as salary negotiations, supervi-
sion and conftol ofduties, and
obligations to the public to ex-
ercise independent judgment.
If the duties of the two ofrces
are such tlat when placed in
one person they might dis-
serve the public interests, or if
the respective offces might or
will conflict even on rare occa-
sions, it is sufficient to deolare
them legally incompatible.


The commentator and attorney general
statements reveal a key principle ofthe
incompatibility doctine. The doctrinc
is not concerned with actual evidence
of disloyaþ orbias. Rather, incom-
patibilþ is present ifthe dual service
creates any potential for a confliot
over salary negotiations, supervision
and control ofduties or obligations
to the publíc to exercise independent
judgment. This means the question of
íncompatibility is determined upon a
review ofthe duties and responsibili-
ties of the two ofÊces or office and
position involved, not the personal
character or abilities of the official or
employee.33


The incompatibilþ doctine probably
does not apply to an individual who
holds a public position and provides
a service to a governmental entif as
an independerit contractor.3a rnó wis-
consin supreme court has adopted the
following definition of an independent
conftactor:


An independent contactor is
one who is employed to do a
piece of work without restuic-
tion as to the means to be
employed, and who employs
his own labo¡ and undertakes
to do the work in accordance
with his own ideas or under
plans furnished by the person
for whom the wort is done,
to produce certain results re-
quiied by such person.35


31. See Statev Jones, l30.Wis. 572(1907\ Martínu Smith,239'Wis. 314 (194t); utdOtradøecv. Cþ of Green Bay,lllWis,2d
393, (Ct.App. 1984).


32. 3 McQuillin, Mu¡. Conn., seo. 12.67 (3d ed.)
33. See StatevJones,l30Wis. 572(1907);Martínv. Smíth,239Wis.314(1941); andOtradovecu. CityofGreenBay,llgWis.2d


393 (ct. App. 1984).
34. Compatibilþ ofOffices 581.


M the Municipality February 2012







Leqnl Commen¡r


CorvrpAr¡b¡[¡Ty of Office ANd Orhen Lnws


The court has also explained that the
"reservation by a municipalþ of the
privilege of inspecting and generally
supervising the work, and making
changes in the plans, does not destroy
or impairthe character of indepen-
dent óontractor."36 In additioq the
court advised that "whether one is an
enployee or an independent contrac-
tor generally should be determined
ftom the facts ofthe particular case,
and from a proper construction ofthe
contract as a whole."r / This means
an official cannot avoid an incompat-
ibility problem by simply deolaring his
non-public employment to be that of
an independent contractor. Rather, the
particulars of the relationship between
the official and the government entity
will be olosely examined to determine
whether the official is truly a¡ inde-
pendent contractor.


Agood rule of thumb for governing
body members to follow is that they
cannot hold other public offices or
positions unless the arrangement is
speciûcally authorized. For example,
governing body members are expressly
authorized to serve on looal boards and
commissions, as long as they receive
no additional remuneration other than
a per diem that is paid to all qembers
of the boa¡d or commission.3S Also,
electedpublic officials may serve
as EMTs and volunteer firefighters
for their municipalities, as long as
total compensatíon, including fringe
benef,ls does not exceed $l 5,000 per
year.39A member of a oity councíl


or villase board mav also serve as a
county íupervÍsor.4o


Enforcement and Penalties


the level of funding and the appoint-
ments to the board.


2. You are employed by a prìvøtefirn
whose headìs thevillage assessor and
are lhinking about runnìngfor thevil-
Iage bowd. Canyou continue towork
for thefirm and serve on the víllage
board if the head ofyourfrm is still
the village assessor?


The answer is probably yes since the
íncompatibiþ doctrine has not been
extended to non-public employment
situations. However, this situation is
very close to the one found incompati-
ble in the Otradovec decísion and does
create some potential for a conflict
over salary negotiations, supervision
and control ofduties or obligations
to the public to exercise independent
judgment that migþt lead a court to
include such private employment
within the scope ofthe incompatibilþ
doctrine.


What ìf the engíneeringfirm, not just
íts heød, hqs been appoìnted as village
engìneer?


This minor change in facts probably
renders your employment with the
fimr and service æ a village trustee
incompatible sinoo a court is unlikely
to find the "private" employment sig-
nificant enough in light ofthe potential
for a conflict over salary negotiations,
supervision and contol ofduties or
obligations to the public to exercise
independent judgment.


Ethícs Parl II
continued on page 46


Under the doctrine of incompatibility,
if a second office is taken that is in-
compatible with an existing office, the
official is deemed to have vaoated the
ûrst office. The law is not so clear re-
garding the holding of an incompatible
office and position. While it is clear
that the official must give up the office
or position, there is no clear direction
in the law as to whether the ûrst office/
position is automatically vacated or
whether the person may choose be-
tween the office and position.


Hypothetical Incom patibility
Problems


I. You are a metnber of a city library
støffand are thinking about running
for the city coun;cil. Canyouworkfor
the library and serve onthe city coun-
cil if elected?


No; The fact that the library board
comes between the librarian and the
common council does not remove the
incompatibilþ problem. This is be-
cause the common council contols the
amount of money the cþ appropriates
to the library board and confirms ap-
poinünents to the library board. Thus,
a person who is an employee of the
library and who simultaneously sits on
the common council can exeroise ulti-
mate control over his or her employern
the library board through controlling


35. Weber v. Hurley, 13 Wis. 2d 560, 568, 109 N.W.2d 65
(le6l).


36. Id.
37. Id.


38. Wis. Stat sec.66.0501(2).
39. Wis. Stat sec.66.0501(4).
40, Wis. Stat. sec. 59.10(4) and Compatibility of Office 604.


the Municipalþ February 2012 45







Leqnl Commenr


Ethícs Part II
from page 45


3. You have served as a member of
your v ìllage b v olunteer fire depart-
ment þr I 0 years. You have received,
on cverage, 81,000 a year for your
semices. You havejust been elected
to the village board Must you resign
from the volunteerfire department?


No. Section 66.0501(4) allows gov-
erning body members to serve as vol-
unteer ûrefighters for their municipali-
ties, as long as the total compensation
they receive does not exceed $15,000.
Note: There may be some question
under the Fair Labor Standards Act
(FLSA) whether an individual who is
paid $15,000 in any year is a volunteer
under that law and the $15,000 thresh-
old under sec. 66.0501(4) should not
be interpreted as permitting noncom-
pliance with the requirements of the
FLS.A,.


Orgr,n Co¡vrr,¡cr on Ittnnesr Llws
r¡vp Rur,ns


The "HaIP'Decision


The general rule of law, according to
an old Msconsin supreme court deci-
sion, is that members of a legislative
body or municipal board are disquali-
fied to vote therein on propositions
in which they have a di¡ect pecuniary
interest adverse to the municipal-
ity. Boørd of Supervisors of Oconto
Countyu. Hall,47 Wis.208,2 N.W.
291 (1879). This rule seems to expand
upon the restrictions in the ethics code.
If the rule extends to legislative deci-
sions, it would, for example, prohibit a
city council member who olmls a res-
taurant with a lÌquor license from vot-


ing on a proposed change in the lîquor
license fees to be charged. Howeveç it
is not clear whether the rule applies to
legislative and non-legislative actigns
ofã governmental boãy or board.4l


Robert's Rules of Order


Many munÍcipalities have adopted
Robert's Rules of Order. Officials
should be aware that section 44 of
those rules provides:


No member should vote on
a question in which he has a
direct personal or pecuniary
interest not common to other
members of the organiz;ltioî,


The rule on abstaining
from voting on a question of
direct personal interest does
not mean that a member is pre-
vented from votìng for himself
for an office or otler position
to which members are gener-
ally eligible, nor from voting
when other members are in-
cluded with him in a motion.


This rule and the I/ø/I case noted
above were cited by the Wisconsin
court ofappeals in a case where the
employee of an entity seeking a.remn-
ing abstained from voting as a cqunty
board supervisor on the matter.az The
court concluded that had the employ-
ee-supervisor voted, his vote would
have been disqualified.


Eligibility for Other Public Positions
Statute


The pecuniary interest statute, sec.
946. l3(l) discussed earlier, is proba-
bly the most significant limitation on a
public offioial's eligibilþ for another


public position with the municipality
she serves. However, it is not the only
one. A separate provision also provides
that a member of a city council or
village board is ineligible, duríng the
term of ofücc for which the member
ís elected: (l) for any office or posi-
tion that has been created during that
term, even if the member resips this
or her office prior to appoinûnent; and
(2) an existing office or position, if the
selection for it is vested in the govem-
ing body, unless the member.qesigns
before the selection is made.aj


Mid-term Salary Change Statute


An elected offìcial who is entitled to
participate in the establishment of the
salary for their office shall not during
the term of the office collect salary in
excess ofthe salary providedat the
tÍme the ofrcial tók office.44 This
provision does not prohibit all votes
on salary dwing aterm of office. An
official may vote on aproposed salary
increase that will take effect at thc be-
ginning of the next tenn of office.


Misconduct in Ofñce Statute.


State law45 providos that any public
officer or employee who does any of
the following is guilty of a Class I fel-
ony, punishable by a fine not to exceed
$10,000 or imprisonment not to exceed
three years and six months or both:


l. Intentionally fails orrefusesto
perform a known mandatory non-
discretionary ministerial duty of
the officer's or employee's office
or employment lv¡thin the time or
in the mannerrequired by law


2, In the officer's or employee's of-
fioial capacity does an act which


41. See 6ppg. elt'f Qon'545{1974), citing 133 A.L.R. 1257; 62 C.J.S,, Municipal Corporations,.sec. 402 (rule may nor extend to
legislative decisions) and McQuillin Mw. Cow., sec. 13.35 (3d ed) (this niunicipá law treatise does not cite any legislative act
exception to the IIal/ rule).


41. !-qllenger u Door County, I 3 I ìVis. 2d 422, 388 N.tü/.2d ó24 (Cr. App. 1986).
43. Wis. Stat. sec. 66.0501(2),
44. Wís. Stat. sec. 66.0505.
45. Wis. Stat. sec. 946.12.


46 the Municipalþ February 2012







Lrqnl Commenr


he or she knows is in excess ofthe
officer's lawful authorþ or which
the officer or employee knows the
officer or employee is forbidden
by law to do in the officer's or
empþee's ofr cial capacity.


3. By commission or omission, in
the offcor's or employee's official
capacity, exercises a discretionary
power in a manner inconsistent
with the duties ofthe ofrcer's or
employee's office or employment
or the rights of others with intent
to obtain a dishonest advantage
for the officer or employee or an-
other.


4, In the officer's or employee's of-
ficial capacþ intentionally and
materially falsifies an enly in an
acaount or record book or retum,
certificate, report or statement.


5. Under color of the office or em-
ployment, intentionally solicits or
accepts for the performance of any
service or duty anyttring of value
which the officer or employee
knows is greater or less than is
fixed by law.


Bribery Statute


Any public officer or public employee
who directly or indirectly accepts or
offers to acoept any property or per-
sonal advantage, which the officer or
employee is not authorized to receive,
pursuant to an understanding that
the officer or employee will act in a
certain manner regarding any matter
which is pending or might come before
the officer or employee in the officer's
or employee's capacþ as such officer
or employee or that the officer or em-
ployee will do or omil to do any act in
violation of the officer's or employee's


is guilty of bribery a Class


Discounts at Certain Stadiums
Statute


No person serving in a local elective
office may accept any discount on the
price of admission or parking charged
to members of the general public, in-
cluding any discount on the use ofa
sþ box or prívate luxury box, at a sta-
dium that is tax exempt from general
property taxes under éec. zo.ti(¡e).47


Liquor Llcensee Relations Statute


No member of the municipal govern-
ing body may hold an alcohol bever-
age wholesalers permit under sec.
125.54 or, with respect to the issuance
or denial of licenses under tlis section,
do any act in violation of sec. 19.59
(l).4r


Rules of Professional Conduct


Some public officials and employees
are also subject to special conflict of
interest rules that me imposed pursuant
to professional rules of conduct related
to their profession or position.


One public officer subject to such pro-
fessional rules of conduct is the mu-
nicipal attorney. Like other attomeys,
a municipal attorney is subject to the
rules of professional conduct for attor-
neys, which includes a set of conflict
of-ínierest rules.49 In some instances,
these rules or others rules of profes-
sional conduct may prohibit a cþ or
village attorney from acting in a mat-
ter and necessitate the use ofoutside
counsel.


Some of these rules extend to munici-
pal court staff.52 A municipal judge is
also subjeot to a special incompatibil-
þ confliot of interest rule that prohib-
its a municipal judge from holding any
other office of public-gust during his
or her term of office.)J


Wis. Const. Art. XlI, Sec. 1l


The Wisconsin Constitution also con-
tains an important ethics provision for
public officials in Article XIII, Section
1 1. It provides in relevant part:


No person, association, co-
partnership, or corporation,
shall promise, offer or give,
for any pulpose, to any politi-
cal committee, or any member
or employee thereof, to any
candidate for, or incumbent of
any office or position under the
constitution or laws, or under
any ordinance of any to\ryn or
municipality, of this state, or
to any person at the request or
for the advantage ofall or any
of them, any ûee pass or Êank,
or any priviloge witlùeld from
any person, for the faveling
accommodation or transpor-
tation of any person or prop-
erty, or the Íansmission of any
message or communication.
No political committee, and no
member or employee thereof,
no candidate forandno incum-
bent of any ofñce or position
under the constitution or laws,
or under any ordinance ofany
town or munioipality of this
state, shall ask for, or accept,
from any person, association,
copartriership, or corporation,
or use, in any manner, or for


Ethìcs Part II
contirued onpøge 5A


Another "local" official with special
conflicl^of interest rules is a municipal
judge.50 Municipal judges, even thôse
who are not lawyers, are subject to the
same rules ofjudicial conduct as othe¡-
judges with sõme [mited exceptions.sl


46. Wis. Stat. sec.946.10.
47. rüis. Stat. sec. 19.451.
48. Wis. Stat. sec. 125.5I(lxb).
49. See c.g. SCR 20:1.7,


50. A municipal judge is included in the list of officials subject
to thc state ethics code for state ofrcials. See Wis. Stat.
secs. 19.42(13) and (14).


51. See Chapter SCR 60 of the Wisconsin Statutes.
52. SCR60.04(2Xb).
53. Wis. Stat sec. 757.02(2).


the Municipality February 2012 47







[rqn[ Commerur


Ethícs Part II
lrom page 47


any purpose, any free pa$s or
frank, or any privilege witlr-
held from any porson, for the
fraveling accommodation or
tansportation ofany person or
property, or the transmission
of any message or communi-
cation.


No political oommittee, and no
member or employee thereof,
uo candidate for and no incum-
bent of any office or position
under the constitution or laws,
or under any ordinance of any
town or munioipality of this
state, shall ask for, or accept,
from any person, association,
coparurership, or corporation,
or use, in any manner, or for
any purpose, any free pass or
frank, or any privilege with-
held from any person, for the


Any violation of any ofthe above pro-
visions shall be bribery and punished
as provided by law, and if any officer
or any member ofthe legislature be
guiþ thereof, his office shall become
vacant.


In 1988, the WisconsinAttorney
General opined that Art XIII, Section
I I was "intended to prohibit bribery
of public officials through gifts of
tansportation and traveling accom-
modation services; in short, to prohibit
covert as well as overt bribery." 77 Op.
Att'y Gen.237 (1988), 244. He also
concluded that the provision "prohibits
the giving of any ftee pass, fiank or
privilege involving taveling accom-
modation, or transportation of any
person or properly, or the transmission


taveling aocommodation or
transportation ofany person or
property, or the transmission
of any message or communica-
tion.


of any message or cornmunication to
any of the listed offices and positions,
including all state officers and employ-
es." Id, at243.


Conclusion


The foregoing provides an introduc-
tion and overview of some of ttre more
important rules and laws addressing
ethics and conflict of interests for Wis-
consin municipal officials. Some, such
as the impartiality requirement under
the due process clause ofthe state
and federal constitutions are too oom-
plex to fully address in an overview.
However, it is hoped that this short
re esher course or infioduction will
help local officials recognize and avoid
potential oonflict of interest problems
in their community and encourage
further discussion with their municipal
attorney.


Compatibilþ of Offices 605R
Pecuniary Interest 389R


Prrn"idinfî Personal Service
& Quatity Süorli for
S[¡isconsin Towns


Crack Filling Service, Corp.
Fir¡nc*r-:rs in c.¡acl¡ ruuting and n¡bbr:¡i¡cd ¡r:¡lans


(inr+¡ Flirinr, ït'I 53.1!E
qrww.Cr¡¡kFil I in ßscwicc,co m


t.tfi04lt-ts?9


'I'irecl of strt¡ggling?


Hflst $'¡th tlìe*ce t--tlrrllllg'roolst
trfrfrct FGG!


Ut¡l¡tyCrûrtiÊn
Capitrl Planning


.Ai3ct M¡nrgËmê{ìt
EeôrffriÊ. E êvÊl¿rpnìarìr


lntÊrrnunl( tpå I CoopÊråtton
ljYatÊr & sêtv€r Uilllty ßatÊs


Flannlng & Ëomrnunlty bewlopment


fttsü{ral E(ÊrûrJ(t 3 F¡rìrr¡ñt hf l* ûroñkþ¡lliÉ -(t¡i(a¡?
Hgh'qultl dÌ.Cûporîç ¡nfr¡f¡rvqgr. .lrúÍrvl¿af .


fi.\a.\T trrtõtit'llx¡h'r'llf tr¡rl¡ ¡.. ¡rlr¡


Eæn¡smicrEr-


50 the Munioipality February 2012







Parliamentary Procedure







Rules of the Common Council, Committees, Boards, and
Commissions City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


Adopted June 2015


Adopted pursuant to the authority granted in wis. stat. g 62.11(3).


Rule 1. MEETINcS
A. Regular Meetings


1. Following the spring election of each year, the Common Council shall meet on
the third Tuesday of April for the purpose of organization. Regular meetings of
the Common Council shall be held on the second and fourth Íuesday of ðvery
month at 7:00 pm, in the council chambers.


2' lf any meeting date, as fixed by paragraph (1) above, falls on a legal holiday or
election day, the meeting shall instead be held on the first business 


-day


succeeding that holiday or election day at the same hours and place, unless thä
meeting is cancelled or another date is specifíed by the council president.


B. Special Meetings


The mayor or council president may call special meetings by written notice to each council
member and the mayor. The notice shall be delivered to all council members either personally,
electronically to those who have consented to electronic delívery of notices from the city, or tett
at their usual abode at least 24 hours before the meeting, unlesê for good cause a 24-hour
notice is impossible or impractical. ln that case, a shorter notice may be given, but the notice
may not at any time be provided less than 6 hours in advance of the meeting. The notice shall
specify the time, place, and purpose of the meeting. Attendance by any couñcil member is a
waiver of any defect of notice.


C. Adjournment
Any council member may move to adjourn a meeting. lf any agenda item is not considered
before a motion to adjourn, it shall automatically be referred lo the councit's next regular
meeting, unless the motion provides for a specific date and hour.


Rule 2. QUORUM REQUIRED
A quorum is necessary for the transactíon of any council business. Two-thirds of all members of
the council shall constitute a quorum. ln determining whether a quorum is present, neither
vacancies nor the mayor shall be included in calculating the number of members of the council
or in calculating the number of members present.


Rule 3. PRESIDINc OFFICER
A. Designation Of
The mayor shall be the presiding officer of the meetings of the council. ln the absence of the
mayor, the president of the council shall preside at the meetings of the council. lf both the mayor
and the council president are absent, the vice president of the council shall preside at ine
meetings of the council. lf the mayor, council president, and vice president are absent, the clerk
shall call the council to order and preside until the council selects a member to preside at the
meeting.


1







B. Function
The presiding officer shall preserve order, conduct the proceedings of the council, and be its
parliamentarian. lf a member does not follow the council's parliamentary rules, the presiding
officer may, on his or her own motion, or shall, at any members' request, call the offending
member to order. The council, if appealed to, shall decide the matter.


C. Question of Order
Any alderperson may raise a point, or question of order'. The question of order must be raised at
the time the alleged breach of order occurs. The presid'ing officer may confer with legal counsel
during the meeting. The presiding officer shall, in turn, immediately rule on the question of order,
subject to an appeal by a member to the council. The appeal may be sustained by a majority
vote of the members present, exclusive of the presiding officer.


D. Motion
The mayor or other presiding officer may speak on any question. lf the mayor or other presiding
officer wishes to make a motion, he or she must first vacate the chair while the motion is
pending. lf the mayor or other presiding otficer vacates the chair while a motion is pending, the
next officer in line to preside at the meeting shall preside while the motion is pending.


E. Veto
The mayor may veto all acts of the council as permitted by law. The council may override the
mayor's veto by a two-thirds vote of all members of the council.


Rule 4, NOTICE OF MEETINGS
Wisconsin law requires the chief presiding officer of the Common Council or such person's
designee to give public notice of every Common Council meeting::Such notice must set forth the
time, date, place, and subject matter of the meeting, including that intended for consíderation of
any contemplated closed session. The mayor or mayor's designee shall give notice of every
Common Council meeting in accordance with the Wisconsin Opên Meeting Law,


Rule 5. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS
lf any alderperson, for any reason, cannot attend a regularly scheduled meeting of the Common
Council, he or she shall notify the city clerk as soon as practically able prior to the meeting, of
his or her anticipated absence.


Rule 6. ORDER OF BUSINESS
The business of the council shall be conducted in the following order:


Call to order by the presiding officer
Rollcall
Presentation of accounts and other claims against the city
Presentation of committee reports and minutes
Communication, reports of city otficers, and recommendations of the mayor
Comments and suggestions from the preregistered citizens
Consideration of the minutes of the prior meeting(s).
Consent agenda
Unfinished business from previous meetings (old business)
New business


1.


2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10


2


The council may chose to take business out of order







Rule 7. INTRODUCTION OF BUSINESS
A. lntroduction Requirements
All new, proposed ordinances, resolutions, or other new business (collectively "New Business")
shall be ín writing, shall contain a brief statement of their content, shall indicate the name of thé
presenting membe(s) or presenting committee, and, prior to their consideration by council, shall
be delivered to the clerk. Once a proper request to add an item to the Common iouncil agenda
has been made, the Mayor shall approve placement of the item on the agenda for one ót tne
next two regular Common Council meetings following such timely request. Any item added to an
agenda at the direction of the Common Council shall not be removed from the agenda without
the approvalof the Common Council.


B. Agenda
The following individuals and/or bodies may request the city clerk to add an item to the Gommon
Councilagenda:


1. The mayor
2. The Common Council or any alderperson
3. Any standing committee of the Common Council or the chair thereof4. Any city committee, board or commission, or the chair thereof, wíth respect to an


item of business referred to such committee, board or commission by the
Common Council, or with respect to an item which such committee, boaid, or
commission is required by law to report or recommend to the Common Council


The final agenda and packet must þe approved by the mayor prior to distribution to the common
council. Once approved by the mayor, the agenda may not be amended without approval from
the mayor. The mayor and council president shall make reasonable efforts to cooperatively
review the agenda before it is approved. Except as otheruvise provided by this rule, tne nnãt
agenda and packet must be sent to council members no later than 5:00 p.m. the Thursday prior
to the regular Council meeting. The mayor may, in consultation with the Council president if
feasible, approve sending the final agenda to council members, or amending the agenda, less
than 5 days prior to the meeting, when the mayor, in consultation with the Councilþresident if
feasiþle, deems appropriate to protect the City's interests or to avoid unnecessary delay or
hardship for the City or interested parties


C. Reintroduction Restricted
Unless othenruise provided by city ordinance, or unless allowed by approval of a motion for
reconsideration pursuant to Rule 10, no proposed ordinance or resolution, having been once
defeated, may again be introduced in the same or in substantially the same form until 30 days
after the date when that ordinance or resolution was defeated.


Rule L PRESIDENT OF THE COUNCIL
A. Selection
The council president shall be selected by a majority vote of all council members at the annual
o¡ganizational meeting conducted on the third Tuesday of April.


B. Absence of Mayor
Durilg the mayor's absence or inability to serve, the council president shall be acting mayor and
shall be vested with the powers and duties of the mayor, except the council presidént may not
approve a council act that the mayor has vetoed. When acting as the presiding officer at
meetings of the Common Council, the council president or other presiding officer retains his or


3







her right to vote as an alderperson and if he or she exercises that right, may not vote in case of
a tie.


Rule 9. VOTINc
A. Modes of Voting


1. Any alderperson may demand an aye and noe (roll call) vote on any matter.
However, the vote must be by roll call if the council is:
a. Confírming appointments
b. Adopting any measure that assesses or levies taxes
c. Appropriating or distributing money
d. Creating any liability or charge against the city or any fund of the city2. No member may explain his or her vote during the calling of ayes and noes.3. All ayes and noe votes shall be recorded in the journal (minutes of the common
council) by the clerk.


B. Majority Vote Required
Any item appearing on the agenda of the Common Council that requires the vote of councíl for
approval or passage must be approved by a simple majority except where a different vote is
required by law.


C. Tie Vote
The mayor shall not vote except in the case of a tie. When the mayor does vote in the case of a
tie, his or her vote shall be counted in determining whether a sufficient number of the council
has voted favorably or unfavorably on any measure.


D. Abstentions
A council member who abstains from voting on a matter for the stated reason that voting would
violate or might be perceived to violate a law or ethical standard, shall not be couñted for
determining the number of members present if passage of that measure requires a favorable
vote by a majority or other frâctional vote (i.e. 2t3 or 314) of the members "present", or the
presence of a quorum for purposes of that particular vote.


E. Vote Change
A council member may change his or her vote on a matter up to the time the result of the vote is
announced.


Rule 1 0. RECONSIDERATION
Any member who voted with the prevailing side on any question may move for reconsideratíon
ímmediately after the vote on the question ís determined, or at the next sucçeeding regular
meeting of the council. First a vote is taken on the motion to reconsider, if it passes tne queétion
can be debated and voted on again. A defeated motion for reconsideration is not subject to
further reconsideration. Council actions that have already been implemented, such as approval
of contracts that have been signed or ordinances that have become effective are not subject to
reconsideratíon. Nothing in this rule prohibits the reintroduction of any business, subject to the
restriction in Rule 7 C.


Rule 11. ORDINANCES
A. All proposed ordinances shall be read a total of two (2) times at two separate meetings
before the council may vote on any of them. Each shall be read:


a. At the time the proposed ordinance is first submitted to the councilfor its
consideration (first reading).


4







b. lmmediately prior to the council's actualvote on it (second reading).B. The council may dispense with any required reading.


Rule 12. COMMITTEES, BOARDS, & COMMISSTONS
A. SpecialCommittees
The council may provide for special committees as it may from time to time deem necessary.
Appointments to these special commÍttees shall be made by the mayor.


B. Committee of the Whole.
The council may meet as a committee of the whole pursuant to Robert's Rules of Order.


C. Minutes
Each committee, board, and commission shall keep minutes. Minutes shall be approved by a
majority of the committee, board, or commission at a subsequent meeting. After âpproval, ihe
minutes shall be filed with the clerk.


D. Notice of Meetings
The chairperson or designee shall file notice of each meeting with the clerk. The notice shall
comply with notice requirements found in Wis. Stats. 19.84.


E. Absence of Member.
lf any member cannot attend a scheduled meeting, he or she shall notify the city clerk of his or
her anticipated absence as soon as practically able prior to the meeting.


F. Quorum.
A quorum is necessary for the transaction of any business. A majority of all members of the
committee, board, or commission shall constitute a quorum. The mayor, as ex officio member of
standing committees, has the right, but not the obligation, to participate in the proceedings of
standing committees, and he or she is not counted in determining the number required for a
quorum or whether a quorum is present at a meeting.


D. Agenda
The chair of each committee, board, and commission shall approve all agenda items. He or she
shall consider all referrals for the purpose of establishing said agendas.


Rule 13. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
A. Public.Comment
A citizen may address the council provided the citizen registers with the clerk before the meeting
is called to order, and indicates his or her interest to address the council; and provided thé
agenda provÍdes for a public comment period.


B. Time Limited
With the exception of informational and public hearings, speakers shall be limited to a maximum
of three (3) minutes. The cíty clerk will maintain the timer and inform the speaker when 30
seconds remain.


C. Other Restrictions
lf the
officer


presiding officer decides the comments are not relevant or are abusive, the presiding


Order the citizen to modify his or her comments
Order the citizen to refrain from speaking
Order the citizen to leave council chambers


m
1


2
3


5


ay:







Take such other steps as may be necessary to insure the efficient conduct of the
council's business


D. Registration and Time
The city clerk will arrive 30 minutes prior to the start of the council meeting to distribute
registration forms as requested. Each form will be dated, numbered, and diðtributed on a
"fi rst-come, first-served" basis.


I ' A completed registration form is required to speak by each individual completing
his or her own form and is limited to addressing one subject per meeting only2. Speakers will utilize the microphone at the poáium anO w¡ll 


'begin 
by stating tneir


name and address prior to addressing the council3. The maximum time allotted for public comment is 30 minutes4. The council reserves the right to restrict or increase time limits


Rule 14. MANNER OF DELIBERATTON
A. Manner Of
No alderperson shall address the council until recognized by the presiding officer. The
alderperson shall then address the presiding officer and keep all remarks to the question under
discussion. The alderperson shall also avoid personal confrontation when speaking.


B. Motions
No motion shall be discussed or acted upon untíl it has been seconded. No motion shall be
withdrawn without the consent of those alderpersons making and seconding the motion.


C. Motions: Precedence Of
When a question is under consideration, no motion shall be entertained except the motion to:1. Fix the time to adjourn


2. Adjourn
3. Recess
4. Privilege
5. Lay on the table
6. Move the previous question
7. Limit or extend limits of debate
8. Postpone to a certain day
9. Refer to committee
10. Amend
11. Postponeindefinitely


The above motions shalltake precedence in the order listed.


Rule 15. CONSENT AGENDA


A. Clerk's Responsibilities
The city clerk may.create a subsection on any council agenda entitled, "consent agenda." ln a
consent agenda the clerk shall place matters that, in the clerk's judgment, are routine and
noncontroversial and do not require a special vote or specific action by the council. Thç consent
agenda shall be approved by the council president prior to being placed on the council àgenda.


B. Procedure for Adoption


4.


6







The following procedure shall apply when a consent agenda is used:
1. No separate discussion or debate may be permitted on any matter listed on the


consent agenda
2. A single motion, seconded and adopted by a majority vote of all members of the


council shall be required to approve, adopt, and act or othen¡rise favorably
resolve all matters listed on the consent agenda


3. Any alderperson may request removal of any item or part of an item included in
the consent agenda. At the time the consent agenda is considered, the removal
of an item as requested by an alderperson shall be approved without debate or
vote


4. lf an item or any part of an item has been removed from the consent agenda in
accordance with this rule, the council shall consider that item at an appropriate
time during the council's regular order of business


Rule 16. ROBERT'S RULES OF ORDER
ln the absence of a standing rule, the council, committees, boards, and commissions shall be
governed by the most current edition of Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised, unless contrary
to State law.


Rule 17. SUSPENSION OF RULES
These rules or any part of them may be suspended in connection with any matter under
consideration by a recorded vote of two-thirds of the members present.


Rule 18. VALIDITY OF COUNCIL ACTIONS
No action by the Common Council shall be invalid or subject to challenge on the grounds that
such action was taken in violation of the Rules of the common council.


7












Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, April 27, 2021 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open at 


6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/162365613. You can also dial in using 


your phone:  +1 (571) 317-3116. Access Code: 162-365-613.    


The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and 


Spectrum Channel 981. 


 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, 


Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett 


Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, and Rachel Venegas  
 


CALL TO ORDER 


Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 


Roll Call:  


Clerk Licht called the roll and noted there were 12 alders presents.  


 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record.  


Utilities (3/22/21); Parks & Rec (3/16/21); Finance (3/23/21); Plan Commission (3/8/21)  


 


Public Comment Period: 


 Sharon Mason-Boersma, 243 E McKinley St., spoke in opposition of the Whitewater 


Park.  
 


Communications and Presentations  
 Tentative 2022 Budget Schedule  
 American Rescue Plan 2021 Presentation-Stoughton will be receiving $1.3 million (paid in 


2 installments. The first payment will be in June.)  Send ideas to Director Friedl and it will 


be on the 2nd meeting in May.   
 


Consent Agenda 


A. April 13, 2021 Council Minutes 


B. April 20, 2021 Council Minutes  


C. Stoughton Utilities March Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities February Financial 


Summary; Stoughton Utilities February Statistical Report  


D. R-53-2021- Confirming the Mayor’s Citizen Appointments to the Library Board, pursuant to 2-


127 of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Hundt to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


  


  


 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/162365613

tel:+15713173116,,162365613

https://wsto.tv/live





OLD BUSINESS 


 
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-54-2021- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division request by Kyle Raasch for 


property located at 1478 Lake Kegonsa Road, Town of Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Hundt to approve R-54-2021 Approving an extra-territorial 


jurisdictional (ETJ) land division request by Kyle Raasch for property located at 1478 Lake Kegonsa 


Road, Town of Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin. . Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-55-2021- Approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to combine two parcels at 835 Devonshire Road, 


owned by Kurt Silberschmidt, Stoughton, WI.  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Doom to approve R-55-2021 Approving a Certified Survey Map 


(CSM) to combine two parcels at 835 Devonshire Road, owned by Kurt Silberschmidt, Stoughton, WI. 


Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-56-2021- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton Conditionally Approving the 


Final Plat of Outlot 1, Block 1, Kettle Park West – The Meadows Addition  


Motion by Caravello, second by Hundt to approve R-56-2021 Resolution by the Common Council of 


the City of Stoughton Conditionally Approving the Final Plat of Outlot 1, Block 1, Kettle Park West – 


The Meadows Addition. Motion carried 12-0. 


R-57-2021- Approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to split the property at 2501 Jackson Street, 


Stoughton, WI into two parcels 


Motion by Caravello, second by Hirsch to approve R-57-2021 Approving a Certified Survey Map 


(CSM) to split the property at 2501 Jackson Street, Stoughton, WI into two parcels. Motion carried 12-0. 


R-58-2021-Authorizing the Partial Release of a Platted Storm Water Management Easement and the 


Partial Release (From 12’ to 10’) of a Platted Utility Easement on Lot 27 of Westview Ridge (2233 


Hilldale Cir) 


Motion by Jenson, second by Caravello to approve R-58-2021 Authorizing the Partial Release of a 


Platted Storm Water Management Easement and the Partial Release (From 12’ to 10’) of a Platted 


Utility Easement on Lot 27 of Westview Ridge (2233 Hilldale Cir). Motion carried 12-0. 


R-59-2021- Authorizing the Recording of a Correction Affidavit referencing the Partial Release of a 


Platted Storm Water Management Easement and the Partial Release (From 12’ to 10’) of a Platted 


Utility Easement on Lot 27 of Westview Ridge (2233 Hilldale Cir)  


Motion by Jenson, second by Caravello to approve R-59-2021 Authorizing the Recording of a 


Correction Affidavit referencing the Partial Release of a Platted Storm Water Management Easement 


and the Partial Release (From 12’ to 10’) of a Platted Utility Easement on Lot 27 of Westview Ridge 


(2233 Hilldale Cir). Motion carried 12-0. 







 


R-60-2021-Authorizing the submittal of a Wisconsin DNR Stewardship Local Units of Government, 


Land and Water Conservation Fund, and Recreational Trails Grant Programs grant application by the 


Director of Parks & Recreation for Phase II of the Yahara Riverfront Development Project  


Motion by Caravello, second by Ligocki to approve R-60-2021 Authorizing the submittal of a 


Wisconsin DNR Stewardship Local Units of Government, Land and Water Conservation Fund, and 


Recreational Trails Grant Programs grant application by the Director of Parks & Recreation for Phase II 


of the Yahara Riverfront Development Project. Hundt stated that the council should not apply for any 


grants until the studies are complete. Motion carried 11-1 with Hundt voting no.  


R- 61-2021-Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Wolf 


Paving and Excavating of Madison, Inc. for the 2021 Street Pulverization Project Contract 3-2021.  


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-61-2021 Authorizing and directing the proper 


City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Wolf Paving and Excavating of Madison, Inc. for the 


2021 Street Pulverization Project Contract 3-2021. Motion carried 12-0. 


R- 62-2021- Resolution supporting the EDA Build2Scale grant in the amount of $600,000 for an 


Innovation Center and Stoughton Area Lifelong Learning Network 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-62-2021 Resolution supporting the EDA 


Build2Scale grant in the amount of $600,000 for an Innovation Center and Stoughton Area Lifelong 


Learning Network. Gary Becker presented the grant application and project proposal. Motion carried 12-


0. 


R-63-2021-Resolution calling on the Legislature to pass a state budget increasing funding for the shared 


revenue program and directing the City Clerk to send a copy of this resolution to the state legislators 


representing the City of Stoughton, to Governor Tony Evers and to the League of Wisconsin 


Municipalities 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-63-2021 Resolution calling on the Legislature 


to pass a state budget increasing funding for the shared revenue program and directing the City Clerk to 


send a copy of this resolution to the state legislators representing the City of Stoughton, to Governor 


Tony Evers and to the League of Wisconsin Municipalities. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to adjourn at 9:00 p.m. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Holly Licht, City Clerk  
 





